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COUNTY~ 
OF ... ~ 

..,-Placer· 
MEMORANDUM 

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
MEDICAL CLINICS 

County of Placer 

TO: Board of Supervisors DATE: July 12, 2016 

FROM: JeffreyS. Brown, M.P.H., M.S.W., Director of Health and Human Services 

SUBJECT: Proposed closure of the County-operated Auburn Medical Clinic and the Tahoe Medical and 

Dental Clinic 

ACTION REQUESTED 
As a result of the analysis of the County-operated Medical Clinics and the response to the Request for 
Proposal, the following actions are recommended: 

1. Hold a public hearing to receive input on a proposed closure of the County-operated Auburn 
Medical Clinic and the Tahoe Medical and Dental Clinic (Health & Safety Code Section 1442.5) 
and the transition of that service to a private service provider, and approve closure of the County 
run clinics to occur between September 1 and December 31, 2016. 

2. Approve the award of Request for Proposals (RFP) No. 10514 for expansion of medical and dental 
clinic services to Western Sierra Medical Clinic. 

3. Approve a transition agreement with Western Sierra Medical Clinic for the period of July 12, 2016 
to June 30, 2018 to facilitate the smooth transition of uninterrupted clinical medical services and 
authorize the Chair of the Board of Supervisors to execute the agreement, and the Director of 
Health and Human Services to execute subsequent amendments consistent with the agreement's 
subject matter and scope of work. 

4. Authorize the Director of Public Works and Facilities to conclude negotiations and execute a Lease 
with Western Sierra Medical Clinic for use of the Tahoe Medical Clinic Building at 8665 Salmon 
Ave., Kings Beach, CA as a medical clinic, on terms consistent with those contained in the draft 
lease agreement. 

5. Designate the Department of Health and Human Services as the agency to provide a 24-hour 
information service regarding the closure of the County run Medical Clinics in Auburn and Tahoe 
and Dental Clinic in Tahoe and the alternative availability of such services, and provide for the 
listing in an appropriate telephone directory, as set forth in Health & Safety Code Section 
1442.5(b)(3) and (4). 

6. Adopt a Resolution delegating authority to the County Executive Officer to direct the Health and 
Human Services Director to lay off Medical Clinic employees based on necessity due to a lack of 
work, pursuant to Placer County Code section 3.08.1090 of the Placer County Code. 

BACKGROUND 
History 
Placer County established Rural Health medical clinics in both Auburn and Tahoe in 1983 as the most 
cost effective way of providing mandated medical services. The Medical Care Services Program (MCSP) 
was established to provide medical care to Placer County's indigent residents as required under California 
Welfare and Institutions Code Section 17000. The Medical Clinic utilized the enhanced Medi-Cal rates 
provided to Rural Health Centers for those with Medi-Cal. 

As the patient population increased in South Placer the County attempted to establish a Rural Health 
Clinic in that area. However, the higher income and denser population, coupled with an abundance of 
physicians in the area, did not allow for the Rural Health Center designation. Although a Roseville Medical 
Clinic was established, the inability to bill Medi-Cal at the enhanced Rural Health Center rate limited its 
ability to generate sufficient revenue to offset operational expenses. 
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Financial History 
Even with the higher Rural Health Center Medi-Cal reimbursement rate in its Auburn and Tahoe clinics, 
the Placer County Medical Clinics (PCMC) have required a significant investment of County General Fund 
each year to offset operational costs. Furthermore, the cost of providing services continues to increase 
each year at a much higher rate than reimbursements. Excluding dental services, the cost per patient 
has increased over the past 5 years. The decreasing number of patients seen below was by design to 
reduce poorly reimbursed services such as immunizations and travel shots that could be provided as part 
of primary care or privately. This effort was designed to increase revenue, however as seen below, this 
strategy was ultimately not able to reduce the County General Fund necessary to operate both the PCMC. 

Fiscal Year Patients Cost per Encounter County General Fund per 
encounter 

2010-11 11405 $237 $116 
2011-12 11073 $243 $113 
2012-13 9573 $341 $188 
2013-14 7536 $409 $188 
2014-15 5599 $379 $204 

During this time Department staff addressed these financial issues by privatizing services, increasing 
productivity, and limiting services to County residents only. For example, in December 2010, the Auburn 
Dental Clinic was closed and Chapa De Indian Health Services was contracted to operate these services. 
In August 2013, with the implementation of Medi-Cal Managed Care, pharmacy services were transitioned 
to a number of private pharmacies that accepted Medi-Cal reimbursement. In November 2013, the 
Roseville Medical Clinic was closed and patients were transferred to WeiiSpace Health, a new Federally 
Qualified Health Center that had opened a clinic in conjunction with Sutter Roseville Hospital. In August 
2015, PCMC stopped serving out-of-county patients. All affected individuals were provided with referral 
assistance to providers in their county of residence. 

Current Status 
In the past 12 months approximately 3,000 individuals received 12,600 visits for medical care services in 
the Auburn Medical Clinic, and 1,000 individuals received 2,400 medical care services in the Tahoe 
Medical Clinic. These services were mostly primary care but included reproductive health, mental health, 
and immunizations. In Tahoe approximately 600 individuals received 1,500 visits for dental services. In 
FY 2015-16 the PCMC costs to provide these services are projected to exceed the revenue generated and 
therefore require a county general fund subsidy of approximately $3.9 million. In FY2016-17 the subsidy 
requirement for the same level of service is budgeted to increase to approximately $4.6 million. 

Analysis/Recommendations: ECG Management Consultants and Pacific Health Consulting Group 
The Tahoe Medical Clinic was analyzed by ECG Management Consultants on behalf of Tahoe Forest 
Hospital and Placer County in November 2015. Their recommendations were to increase provider 
coverage if expansion of higher reimbursement patients was possible, decrease nursing staff and 
substitute with multifunctional positions such as Medical Assistants, decrease administrative staff 
(clerical/management), and decrease salaries. However, they suggested that even if all of the above 
recommendations were implemented, losses in the Tahoe Clinic would only be reduced by 22 percent, 
leaving an annual county general fund subsidy of approximately $760,000. 

The Auburn Medical Clinic and the Tahoe Medical and Dental Clinic were also analyzed, at the 
Department's request, by Pacific Health Consulting Group (PHCG). That analysis determined that the 
medical clinic providers appear to have a comparable, if somewhat lower, level of productivity as 
compared to Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs) in California, however the financial losses were 
much more substantial. These losses do not seem to be related to the revenue per encounter that is 
received by the Medical Clinics. The loss is the result of the extremely high overall operation and 
administration costs as compared to FQHCs. For example, in FY 2014-15 the average cost per visit 
(excluding immunizations) was $343 at the Tahoe Clinic and $444 at the Auburn Clinic, compared to the 
2013 California FQHC median cost per visit of $181. Some of these high operational costs are due to high 
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clinic administration staffing levels. PHCG highlighted that PCMC percent of non-clinical support staff, 
currently 50 percent, is double the median percent of 21 percent in California FQHC organizations. 

PHCG identified one option for reducing the level of financial loss by significantly reducing non-clinical 
support staff to more closely match those of other FQHCs. Though a reduction in personnel and other 
administrative expenses would decrease annual financial losses, even significant reductions would not 
enable the County clinics to operate without continued county general fund subsidies from Placer County. 
PHCG noted that statewide, all California counties that operate primary care clinics subsidize operations 
with county funding. 

PHCG goes on to recommend: 
One potential opportunity for the County would be to transition operation of primary care clinics to 
non-profit FQHC providers as a cost-saving measure. Several California counties, including San 
Luis Obispo, Sacramento, and Marin, have transitioned their county clinics or their facilities to non­
profit FQHCs. FQHCs offer a number of potential advantages, including lower operating expenses, 
enhanced Medi-Ca/ and Medicare reimbursement rates, mandated commitment to serve the 
uninsured and Medi-Ca/ enrollees, federal 330 grants to care for the uninsured, and greater 
flexibility and nimbleness to grow and expand services. 

County Responsibility 
In January 2014, the implementation of the Affordable Care Act radically altered the health care 
landscape. First and foremost, almost all indigent adults between the ages of 18 and 64 became eligible 
for Medi-Cal. Local outreach efforts helped Placer County residents take advantage of health insurance 
options. This resulted in the increase of those on Medi-Cal from 25,000 to 56,000 while at the same time 
reducing those on MCSP to zero. California also implemented Medi-Cal Managed Care for all California 
beneficiaries. Anthem Blue Cross and California Health and Wellness Program plans were selected by 
the State to operate managed care plans in this region and assume responsibility for serving all local 
Medi-Cal patients. PCMC has contracted with both of these managed care plans. 

Given the transfer of indigent residents from MCSP to Medi-Cal, the great majority of Placer County's 
statutory responsibilities to provide healthcare have effectively been eliminated. Although a small number 
of individuals will potentially be eligible for MCSP in the future, costs and required services will be minimal 
and delivered through contracts with local providers. 

Placer County Internal Proposal 
The Medical Clinic Program Manager and Medical Director requested the opportunity to submit a proposal 
that would keep the current county operations in place. Their proposal seeks to reduce the county general 
fund subsidy by 50 percent over a three year period by adding clinical staff, doubling the number of 
patients served, renovating a number of clinic rooms, and utilizing several new revenues to support the 
clinics. 

Unfortunately, this plan lacks a number of details to clearly show how this operating deficit would be 
reduced. Similarly it makes a number of assumptions that are unrealistic. Specifically, the plan suggests: 

1. Increasing Clinical Staffing - Clinic staff's proposal calls for increasing clinic staffing by three mid­
level practitioners, three medical assistants, and one licensed clinical social worker, resulting in 
over $810,000 of new costs. Interesting to note that the PHCG report specifically states that 
productivity for the mid-level practitioner position in our county clinics only meets 75 percent of the 
average productivity reported by FQHC clinics. 

2. Renovating portions of the existing Auburn Clinic- Clinic staff seek to invest over $900,000 to add 
waiting room restrooms and reorganize a few other rooms to improve patient flow. However, these 
improvements would not be sufficient to upgrade the facility to modern standards to meet Office of 
Statewide Health Planning and Development certification. This facility is over 70 years old and is 
at the end of its useful life. It will soon need to be replaced if clinic operations were to continue. 
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Leadership in the Department of Public Works and Facilities estimated that such a replacement 
would cost the county general fund at least $8 million. 

3. Utilizing New Revenues to Offset Operating Expenses - Clinic staff propose using one-time 
recently received Rate Range Inter-Governmental Transfer (IGT) funds of $1.5 million to offset 
ongoing operational expenses. However, using such funds to offset Medi-Cal provided clinic 
services is specifically precluded under this program which is specifically stated in Placer County's 
contract with the local managed care organizations. Clinic staff also proposes utilizing one-time 
incentive funding of $820,000 from Anthem Blue Cross to similarly cover ongoing operational 
expenses. Relying on the use of one-time only funding for ongoing operational deficits will only 
lead to increased deficits beyond the end of the current proposed three year plan. 

Additional fiscal analysis was completed on the financial plan included in the clinic staff proposal to verify 
the revenue and expenditure assumptions that were included. For FY 2015-16, this analysis found clinic 
staff's proposal had both the current revenue and existing staff salary/benefit assumptions too low, 
included one-time IGT revenue that is not allowed to be used in the clinics, and made no mention at all of 
the other expenditure categories such as services and supplies, other charges, and intra-fund transfers. It 
is impossible to analyze the impact to the county general fund subsidy without assuming total revenue and 
total expenditures. For FY 2016-17 through FY 2018-19, this analysis found clinic staff's proposal also 
had the salary/benefit costs for the new positions too low and again included one-time IGT revenue that is 
not allowed to be used in the clinics, while not including any cost increase to the existing staff 
salary/benefit costs or any mention of the other expenditure categories. 

With the assumptions corrected, while still including clinic staff's proposal of significant patient revenue 
increases, use of one-time incentive funds, and their proposed expenditure cuts, the county general fund 
subsidy does decrease from approximately $3.9 million in FY 2015-16 to approximately $3.3 million in FY 
2018-19. This potential $600,000 decrease represents a 15 percent decrease in county general fund 
subsidy over three years, not the 50 percent the clinic staff's proposal was attempting to produce. 

Overall, the staff proposal does not address the principal causes of the ongoing operating deficit --­
expenses associated with high levels of clinic administrative staffing, and the high costs of staff wages, 
employee benefits, and organizational overhead. 

RFP-Award Recommendation 
On November 17, 2015 this Board approved the solicitation of organizations qualified to provide medical 
and dental services to Placer residents by transitioning from the county-operated services in Auburn and 
Tahoe to an alternative organization. The solicitation was sent to 20 organizations and three associations 
of providers. There were four respondents to this solicitation. A panel of five members and a Tahoe 
representative reviewed all proposals and interviewed all responding organizations, and recommended 
Western Sierra Medical Clinic (WSMC) as the highest scoring proposer. 

WSMC was established in 1974 to serve Sierra County with an office in Downieville. WSMC added a 
mobile clinic in 2009 that allowed services to expand to remote regions of Sierra and Yuba County and to 
the homeless at Hospitality House in Grass Valley. In 2010 WSMC merged with Miners Clinic in Nevada 
County to become the leading healthcare provider in both Nevada and Sierra Counties. WSMC is 
committed to serving low income residents with accessible, quality, medical, dental, and behavioral health 
services through innovative, patient-centered care. 

The WSMC approach is to treat the whole person using the primary care providers as the hub for a 
patient's health care, bringing in specialists as well as referring out as needed. WSMC's goal is to create 
a one-stop health center that focuses on the diagnosis and treatment of disease as well as the promotion 
of healthy lifestyles that reduces unnecessary visits to local emergency rooms. WSMC plans expansions 
to serve Placer County residents, including our growing elderly population, with the provision of specialty 
care in OBGYN, integrated behavioral health, substance use disorder medication treatment, state of the 
art pain management protocols, ophthalmology, orthopedics, podiatry, gastroenterology, and chiropractic. 
In addition, this year WSMC received a two year federal grant to plan for and implement medication 
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assisted treatment for persons with substance use disorders. At this time the planning has been 
completed and services have begun. 

The WSMC Board of Directors approved opening a new facility in Auburn which is expected to open this 
summer. WSMC is currently serving 1 ,000 Placer patients in their Grass Valley office. WSMC is located 
in the same complex as Community Recovery Resources, a major substance use services program in 
contract with Placer County, enhancing services for people needing both substance use treatment and 
medical care. WSMC will expand the footprint in this location if awarded the transition contract for the 
PCMCs. 

Support for the WSMC proposal was provided by Community Recovery Resources, Dignity Health-Sierra 
Nevada Memorial Hospital, Sierra College, Placer Independent Resource Services, Hospitality House, 
County of Nevada County Executive Office, FREED Center for Independent Living, The Health Alliance of 
Northern California, California State Assemblyman Brian Dahle, California State Senator Ted Gaines, and 
the California Primary Care Association. 

The WSMC proposal allows for an expedited transition of Placer patients in both Auburn and Tahoe to 
WSMC with no costs to Placer County. The requested agreement is in place to coordinate the transition 
of care of existing PCMC patients to WSMC, clarify expectations and establish primary care services at 
the county's Cirby Hills outpatient mental health site to better serve county patients with serious mental 
illness. 

Beilenson Hearing 
California Health & Safety Code Section 1442.5 mandates that prior to transitioning medical or health care 
services your Board holds a public hearing to allow for public input to the proposed service reductions. 
Per law, the Department has prepared Attachment A describing the proposed service reduction that 
includes the location, nature of the reduction, number of people affected, and estimated cost savings. 
This document has been posted in all Public Health Department and Clinic Services locations since at 
least June 28, 2016 as required. The service reduction described has taken into account public health 
mandates and mission critical activities, and existing alternative services provided in the community. In 
fact, the reductions in these services will be offset by the overall increase of services expected to be 
provided by WSMC. However the direct patient care hours of operation in Tahoe will be reduced from 40 
to 30 hours per week. The direct patient care will be consolidated during the public hours of operation and 
the non-public hours will be available for staff to complete activities that are not direct patient care. In 
addition, the Chapa De Indian Health Services is also available for medical and dental services for Placer 
residents on Medi-Cal. Other considerations considered include efficiencies, minimum staffing levels, and 
health outcome impacts. 

This Beilenson Hearing is being held to consider eliminating the provision of county-operated medical 
services in Auburn and Tahoe and a transfer of patients to a newly established medical service provider. 
In Auburn, the new provider would be located near the current location but not at the Placer County 
Government Center. In Tahoe, the new provider will establish a satellite clinic that would operate out of 
the existing Placer County Tahoe clinic building in Kings Beach, which requires a lease agreement 
between the new provider and Placer County. The general lease terms would be those as contained in 
the draft least agreement which is included in the agenda packet. The lease agreement rental rates are 
below market for the Tahoe area, however, are above cost to the County except to the extent a major 
systems repair might need to occur. It is recommended that the below market lease rate be approved as 
the transition of clinic services utilizing the current Tahoe clinic site would provide needed services to the 
greater community at a facility that the public is familiar with, would further facilitate the transition of these 
services, and accordingly would provide for a significant public benefit. 

If the closure is approved, it is estimated that the transition of patients may occur between September 1 
and December 31, 2016. All patients will receive information by mail about the closure of the county­
operated Medical Clinics and their option to transition to WSMC. Per Health & Safety Code Section 
1442.5(b)(3) and (4}, Health and Human Services will provide a 24-hour telephone line to ensure that all 
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persons seeking services at the Medical Clinics are further directed to all the options available to them. 
Per regulation, this hotline will be listed in appropriate telephone directories. 

County Staff Implications 
The county's two medical clinic sites currently have a total of 30 funded and filled positions, of which four 
are unclassified. The physicians, mid-levels practitioners, and other clinical staff will have an opportunity to 
be considered for hire by WSMC. Physicians and mid-level practitioners will also be eligible for WSMC 
recruitment incentives to join their organization. 

HHS has a number of vacant administrative positions throughout its divisions and will transfer all 
administrative staff to such open positions. It is anticipated that there will be up to nine clinical and clinical 
support classified positions that could be impacted by a layoff if the employees filling these positions do 
not choose to transition to employment with WSMC. Therefore, the Department is requesting that the 
County Executive Officer be granted lay off authority based on necessity due to a lack of work, pursuant to 
Chapter 3 section 3.08.1 090 of the Placer County Code. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
This is an agreement to transition Auburn Medical Clinic and Tahoe Medical and Dental Clinic services to 
WSMC. The PCMC FY2016-17 Proposed budget includes a county general fund subsidy of $4,627,360. 
With the transition of medical and dental services proposed to occur during the fiscal year, and with the 
potential for even more time needed to transition all positions to funded vacancies, it is estimated that 
there will be $1.8 million in county general fund savings for FY2016-17 as a result of the PCMC closure. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A - Notice of Public Hearing 
Attachment 8 - Resolution 
Attachment C - Draft Lease 
Attachment D- Transition Agreement (Including RFP #10514) 
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Attachment A 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON PROPOSED REDUCTIONS IN HEALTH SERVICES 

The Placer County Board of Supervisors will conduct a Beilenson hearing pursuant to Section 
1442.5 of the California Health and Safety Code (Beilenson Act) on the proposed closure of the 
County of Placer Medical Clinics in Auburn and Tahoe and Dental Clinic in Tahoe and transition 
to privately-operated clinics. The Beilenson Hearing will be held: 

Tuesday July 12, 2016 
1:00 p.m. 

Placer County Community Development Resource Center 
3091 County Center Drive 

Aubum CA 

At this hearing, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Placer will consider the impact of the 
proposed closure of the Medical Clinics in Auburn and Tahoe and Dental Clinic in Tahoe that may 
affect some of the County's indigent population. Public testimony, both oral and written, will be 
accepted at this hearing. 

The Placer County Department of Health and Human Services has prepared Attachment "A" that 
describes the Medical Clinics' and Dental Clinic's transition from county-operated clinics to 
privately-operated clinics that will at minimum continue all currently provided services. The 
hearing will consider all the items contained within the attachments. 

The Board will also consider the closure of the Placer County Medical Clinic in Auburn and the 
Placer County Medical and Dental Clinic in Tahoe so that services can transition to another 
provider selected through a Request for Proposal process. The proposed provider is Western 
Sierra Medical Clinic. 

The Board of Supervisors may approve the proposed reductions and/or eliminations, in whole or 
in part, in order to eliminate and/or reduce the estimated shortfall of available resources. 

Further information is available by telephoning the Department of Health and Human Services at 
530-886-2915. 
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

PROGRAM/SERVICE: Medical and Dental Services Provided by the Placer County Medical 
Clinics 

LOCATION OF FACILITY OR PROGRAM SERVICES 

Medical Clinic, Auburn 
11526CAve 
Auburn, CA 95603 
(530) 889-7188 

Medical and Dental Clinic, Tahoe 
8665 Salmon Ave 
Kings Beach, CA 96143 
(530) 546-1970 

PROPOSED CHANGES: 

It is proposed that the Medical Clinic in Auburn and the Medical and Dental Clinic in Tahoe be transitioned 
to Western Sierra Medical Services. The County proposes to close the current County Medical Clinic in 
Auburn and transition all interested patients (and interested staff) to a privately operated FQHC approved 
by the Board of Supervisors selected through a Request For Proposal. This will not reduce offered 
medical services and could provide for increased services. The organization will be located in Auburn 
however not at the current location of the Placer County Medical Clinic. It is also proposed to eliminate 
the current county-operated medical and dental clinic in Tahoe and to transition all interested patients (and 
interested staff) to the same privately operated Federally Qualified Health (FQHC). The current Tahoe 
Medical Clinic building will be used and the new clinic provider will establish a satellite clinic in this 
location. However the direct patient care hours of operation in Tahoe will be reduced from 40 to 30 hours 
per week. The direct patient care will be consolidated during the public hours of operation and the non­
public hours will be available for staff to complete activities that are not direct patient care. 

CLIENTS AFFECTED: 

This reduction will eliminate all county-operated Medical Services in Auburn and all county-operated 
Medical and Dental services in Tahoe as those services will be transitioned to a FQHC provider. In the 
past 12 months approximately 3,000 individuals received 12,600 visits for medical care services in the 
Auburn Medical Clinic, and 1,000 individuals received 2,400 medical care services in the Tahoe Medical 
Clinic. These services were mostly primary care but included reproductive health, mental health, and 
immunizations. In Tahoe approximately 600 individuals had 1,500 visits for dental services. 

EXPECTED SAVINGS: 

The proposed elimination of county-operated medical services in Auburn and medical and dental services 
in Tahoe would net an estimated ongoing operational savings of $3.6 million annually. This reflects the 
elimination of the subsidy necessary for the county-operated services. 
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Placer County Health and Human Services Department 
Proposed Medical Service Reduction 

Service Specific Reduction, Number of 
Percentage of Reduction People Affected 
and Location 

Medical Care (Auburn and Tahoe 1. Eliminate the provision 1. 3,000 
Medical Clinic) of county-operated individuals 

• Health Assessments Medical Care at the received 

• Physical exams Placer County Auburn services in the 

• Selected Laboratory Services Medical Clinic, 11583 last year at the 

• Diagnosis and treatment for chronic C Ave., Auburn, CA Placer County 

and acute health conditions 95603 Auburn 

• Reproductive health/family planning Medical Clinic. 

• Immunizations child and adult 2. Eliminate the provision 

Immunizations for the community of county-operated 2. 1,000 • Medical Care at the Individuals 
• Tuberculosis Testing 

Placer County Tahoe received 
• Referrals to specialists Medical Clinic, 8665 services in the 
• Sexually Transmitted Disease Salmon Ave, Kings last year at the 

testing Beach, CA 96143 Placer County 
• HIV testing Tahoe Medical 
• Teen Clinic (Tahoe) 3. Eliminate the Provision Clinic. 
• Occupational Health Immunizations of county-operated 

(limited to a few County workers) dental services at the 3. 600 individuals 
• Diabetes Education Placer County Tahoe received dental 
• HIV education Medical Clinic, 8665 services in the 
• Ability to provide Telehealth Salmon Ave, Kings last year at the 

Beach, CA 96143 Placer County 
Mental Health (Auburn and Tahoe Tahoe Medical 
Medical Clinic) Clinic. 
• Psychiatry 

• Tele Psychiatry 

• Medical Management 

• Consultation for Medical Care 
Providers 

• Short term individual counseling 

• Therapy groups 

Dental (Tahoe Dental Clinic) 

• General exams 

• Cleaning 

• X-Rays 

• Fillings 

• Extractions 

• Dentures 

• Space maintainers 

• Crowns 

• Dental education outreach to 
schools and community 

3 

Anticipated 
Ongoing 
Cost Savings 

$3.6 million 
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Before the Board of Supervisors 
County of Placer, State of California 

Attachment B 

In the matter of: Resol. No: ______ _ 

A resolution directing and approving the layoff 
of Medical Clinic employees based on 
necessity due to a lack of work, pursuant to 
Chapter 3 section 3.08.1 090 of the Placer 
County Code. 

The following Resolution was duly passed by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Placer at 

a regular meeting held July 12, 2016, by the following vote on roll call: 

Ayes: 

Noes: 

Absent: 

Signed and approved by me after its passage. 

Chair, Board of Supervisors 
Attest: 

Clerk of said Board 

WHEREAS, Placer County Code Chapter 3, section 3.08.1 090 provides that layoffs shall be 
made solely under the direction of the Board of Supervisors, and with Board approval, the county 
executive officer may direct the department's appointing authority to lay off employees for 
necessity, based on lack of funds or work; 

WHEREAS, the implementation of the Affordable Care Act, in January 2014, radically altered the 
health care landscape with almost all indigent adults between the ages of 18 and 64 becoming 
eligible for Medi-Cal; Placer County Medical Clinic contracting with Anthem Blue Cross and 
California Health and Wellness plans to assume responsibility for serving all local Medi-Cal 
patients; outreach efforts increasing those on Medi-Cal from 25,000 to 56,000 while reducing 
those on Medical Care Services Plan (MCSP) to zero; 

1 



89

WHEREAS, the Placer County Medical Clinics requires a significant investment of county general 
fund each year to offset operational costs; the cost of providing services increases each year at a 
much higher rate than reimbursements; the cost per patient has risen over the last five years 
(excluding dental services); and, efforts to limit services that can be provided as part of primary or 
private care did not reduce the county general fund necessary to operate the Auburn and Tahoe 
Medical Clinics; 

WHEREAS, the Tahoe Medical Clinic was analyzed by ECG Management Consultants in 
November 2015, on behalf of Tahoe Forest Hospital and Placer County, with resulting 
recommendations reducing the Tahoe Clinic losses by only 22 percent, leaving significant county 
general fund subsidy; 

WHEREAS, the Placer County Medical Clinics were also analyzed by Pacific Health Consulting 
Group (PHCG) resulting in the determination that medical clinic providers productivity level is 
comparable to Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs) in California; however, the financial 
losses are much more substantial as a result of the extremely high overall operation and 
administration costs; specifically, Placer County Medical Clinics non-clinical support staff, 
currently 50 percent, is double the 21 percent median in California FQHCs; 

WHEREAS, Placer County issued a Request for Proposal (#1 0514) to select a contractor to take 
over provision of medical services provided in Auburn and medical and dental services provided 
in Tahoe; and, 

WHEREAS, Placer County approved the award of the Request for Proposal to Western Sierra 
Medical Clinic and entered into an agreement with Western Sierra Medical Clinic to operate 
medical, dental, and behavioral health clinics in Auburn and Tahoe; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By The Board of Supervisors Of The County Of Placer, 
State Of California As Follows: 

The Board directs the layoff of County employees in the classifications identified below as may 
become necessary and based on necessity due to a lack of work as related to the transition of 
County clinical services at the Auburn and Tahoe clinics to Western Sierra Medical Clinic: 

Client Services Assistant 
Community Health Aide II 
Licensed Vocational Nurse 
Medical Assistant 
Mid-Level Practitioner II 
Registered Nurse 
Registered Nurse Supervising 
Utilization Review and Quality Assurance Coordinator 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED, the Board delegates to the County Executive 
Officer the authority under the County Code section 3.08.1 090 to determine the timing of layoff. 
The layoff shall be conducted in accordance with the County Code sections 3.08.1090 through 
3.08.1120. 
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Lease No. 

Administering Agency: County of Placer 

Lessee: Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 

Location: 8665 Salmon Ave. Kings Beach CA 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

WHEREAS, the County of Placer Health and Human Services, Adult System of Care 
("ASOC") has contracted with Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. (a California non-profit 
corporation), to provide Clinical Services, hereinafter referred to as ("WSMC"). 

WHEREAS, such CONTRACT specifies that WSMC shall have the use and possession 
of the Kings Beach Clinic building pursuant to a Lease Agreement with the County of 
Placer, hereinafter referred to as (COUNTY). 

WHEREAS, COUNTY is willing to lease said Building to WSMC; however, the COUNTY 
has agreed to charge a reduced rental rate in recognition of the public benefits of 
providing low cost and public clinic services to North Tahoe residents; 

NOW THEREFORE, this Lease Agreement is made andentered into, by and between 
the COUNTY and, WSMC. WSMC and COUNTY are sometimes hereafter each 
singularly referred to as ''PARTY" and collectively referred to as the "PARTIES." 
COUNTY and WSMC agree as follows: 

BASIC LEASE INFORMATION 

This Basic Lease Information is an integral part of this Lease Agreement and all of the 
terms hereof are incorporated into this Lease Agreement in all respects. In addition to 
the other provisions which are elsewhere defined in this Lease Agreement, the 
following, whenever used in this Lease Agreement shall have the meanings set forth 
below: 

PREMISES 

Said Premises encompass a two story 2,908 square foot building, parking lot and 
landscaped grounds located at 8665 Salmon Avenue, Kings Beach, CA, referred to as 
APN 090-126-025-000, and as more particularly shown on the attached Exhibit A 
("Premises"). 

LEASE TERM 

The term of this Lease Agreement ("Term") shall be a period of six (6) years. The Term 
shall begin on and end on . For the purposes of this 
Lease Agreement, "Lease Year'' means a period of twelve (12) consecutive calendar 
months beginning with the first day of the first calendar month following the 
commencement date of the Term ("Effective Date"). 
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OPTION TO EXTEND INITIAL TERM 

The Initial Term may be extended, at Tenant's option, for_-,---:------:--:-----;-:-:-:­
years (the "Extended Term") provided WSNC is not in default of any provisions of this 
Lease beyond any applicable cure period. Tenant must deliver written notice to the 
County of its intent to exercise the Extended Term no later than One Hundred and 
Eighty (180) days, but no more than Two Hundred and Seventy (270) days, prior to the 
end date of the Initial Term. The Extended Term will be granted on the same terms, 
covenants, and conditions as contained in this agreement except as follows: For the 
Extended Term the Section 5.0 Monthly Rent will be adjusted to the 
PARTIES __ they shall promptly execute an amendment to agreement section 5.0 
stating the rent __ 

USE OF PREMISES 

During the Term of this Agreement, WSMC is authorized to use Premises for only those 
purposes and activities as set forth in the Transition Services Agreement entered into 
between WSMC and the COUNTY on (hereinafter "Use"). WSMC 
shall not use, or permit said Premises or any part thereof, to be used for any purpose 
other than the purposes which said Premises are hereby permitted. WSMC agrees not 
to use or permit the use of the Premises in any illegal manner or conduct any business 
in or around the Premises in violation of County, State and Federal laws, rules, or 
regulations. 

RENT 

Rent shall commence at the monthly rate set forth in section 5.0 of this agreement. 
Thereafter, the annual rent shall be adjusted pursuant to Section 5.2. Annual Rent 
Adjustments. 

UTILITIES & JANITORIAL 

WSMC shall pay for all public utility costs in connection with the use and occupancy of 
the Premises including, but not limited to, electricity, gas, trash removal, and telephone 
service per month subject to Section 6 Utilities. WSMC shall be responsible for janitorial 
services for the Premises. 

BALANCE OF PROVISIONS 

1. GRANTING CLAUSE: 

For and in consideration of the Rent and of the covenants, conditions and 
agreements herein contained, COUNTY hereby leases to WSMC, and WSMC 
hereby leases from COUNTY, the Premises referred to in the Basic Lease 
Information above, to have and to hold for the Lease Term, subject to all of the 
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terms, covenants and conditions set forth in this Lease Agreement (hereinafter 
"Agreement). 

2. PREMISES: 

COUNTY shall lease to WSMC for WSMC's exclusive use; and subject to the 
terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, the Premises located at 8665 
Salmon Avenue, Kings Beach, CA. 

3. USE: 

The Premises shall be used, occupied by WSMC exclusively for the operation of 
a public health clinic. COUNTY, at its sole discretion, may approve, in writing, 
other or additional uses. No use shall be made or permitted to be made of said 
Premises, nor acts done, which will increase the existing rate of insurance for the 
building in which said Premises may be located. WSMC shall not sell or permit to 
be kept, used or sold in or about said Premises, any articl.e which may be 
prohibited by standard form of fire insurance policies. 

4. LEASE OF COUNTY EQUIPMENT: 

COUNTY shall lease to WSMC existing equipment currently located in the 
Premises and shall be included in the Monthly Rent. The equipment and 
their value are listed in Exhibit D attached hereto. The COUNTY has no 
obligation to repair or provide new equipment if any of the equipment 
breaks and/or fails to operate as intended, and WSMC accepts the 
equipment on an as-is and where-is basis. Upon Notice from WSMC, 
COUNTY shall make arrangements to have the broken equipment 
removed from the Premises. The Premises is leased for the sole purpose 
of clinic services and the COUNTY's equipment cannot be removed from 
the Premises without prior written consent from the COUNTY. 

5. RENT: 

5.0 WSMC hereby agrees to remit to COUNTY as monthly rent for the 
Premises, the sum of two thousand one hundred eighty-one dollars 00/100 
($2, 181.00) per month (hereinafter "Monthly Rent"). The rent charged is based 
on an initial rate of approximately seventy-five cents ($0.75) per square foot. 
Rent for ariy partial month's occupancy shall be prorated based on a thirty (30) 
day period. 

5.1 In consideration of improvements to the Premises along with other 
payments and other obligations by WSMC, payment of rent for the first 
four (4) months of occupancy of the Initial Term is waived, and all 
provisions of the lease shall be effective for this period as if rent were fully 
paid. 

5.2 Annual Rent Adjustments: Monthly Rent shall be increased by two percent 
(2%) per year effective on the first anniversary of the Effective Date 
(hereinafter "Adjusted Monthly Rent"). Any such adjustment shall take 
effect no earlier than the anniversary date of the Effective Date. 
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5.3 Additional Rent: Additional Rent constitutes any and all additional fees, 
charges, expenses, penalties, interest, or any other payment obligations, 
other than the Monthly Rent and adjustments thereto, that are identified as 
"Additional Rent" in this Agreement. COUNTY shall charge as Additional 
Rent and WSMC shall be liable for payment of the total amount of 
charges, fees, expenses, costs incurred by COUNTY as a result ofWSMC 
failure to perform or fulfill any of the promises, terms, conditions or 
covenants required of it herein. Unless otherwise provided in the 
Agreement, Addition Rent shall be due and payable within ten (1 0) days of 
the date of written demand. 

5.4 Payments: WSMC shall pay Monthly Rent to the Public Works and 
Facilities Accounting Division, in advance of the first day of each calendar 
month at or by mailing to the address in Section 33. All payments shall be 
paid in lawful money of the United States of America and shall be paid 
without deduction, offset, prior notice or demand. 

5.5 Late Charges: For any payment of Monthly Rent, Additional Rent, or any 
other charges identified herein as the obligation of WSMC to pay, which is 
not made within ten (1 0) days of its due date, WSMC agrees to pay late 
.charges at the rate of ten percent (1 0%). Late charges shall be calculated 
from the payment due date and shall accrue on a monthly basis based on 
the total amount due. Late charges constitute Additional Rent and 
imposition of the same shall not constitute a waiver of COUNTY'S right to 
serve a Three-Day Notice to Rent or Quit. 

5.6 Failure to Pay Rent: If any Rent payment or Additional Rent payment or 
any charges for which WSMC is obligated to pay has not been paid within 
ten (1 0) days following its Due Date, COUNTY may prepare at its sole 
discretion a three (3) day Notice to Pay Rent of Quit pursuant to Code of 
Civil Procedure Section 1161.1 and shall constitute a material breach of 
this Agreement. If COUNTY elects to issue a three day Notice, WSMC 
account will immediately be charged fifty and no/1 00 dollars ($50.00) in 
this regard. 

5.7 Interest Charges: WSMC agrees to pay interest on all overdue amounts 
from the due date until such amounts are paid in full at the rate of ten 
percent (10%) per annum or such lesser amount as may be the maximum 
allowed by applicable law. Interest charges shall be calculated from th~ 
payment due date and shall accrue on a monthly basis on the total 
amount past due. Any interest that accrues constitutes Additional Rent. 

5.8 Miscellaneous Charges: Any charges levied against COUNTY as a result 
ofWSMC's operations, including but not limited to, building fees, TRPA 
fees and or penalties, medical, sheriff, or fire response charges due to 
actions by WSMC's agents, contractors, employees or clients shall be 
billed to WSMC as Additional Rent. 

5.9 Monthly Rent: For all purposes under this Section 5 and in any suit, action 
or proceeding of any kind between the PARTIES hereto, and receipt 
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showing the payment of any sum or sums by COUNTY for or in 
connection with any work done or material furnished shall be prima facie 
evidence against WSMC that the amount of such Additional Rent is 
necessary and reasonable. 

5.10 Dishonored Checks: Any dishonored check shall be treated as rent unpaid 
and shall be subject to a late charge as set forth in this Section 5 in 
addition to any charges levied by the Bank. If WSMC's check has been 
drawn on insufficient funds or if WSMC has stopped payment on it, 
COUNTY may serve, in accordance with Code of Civil Procedure Section 
1947.3(a)(2), a thirty (30) day written Notice to WSMC that future Monthly 
Rent payments for a time period to be determined by COUNTY shall be in 
form of a cashier's check or money order. Ary late charges or other costs 
associated with a dishonored check constitutes Additional Rent. 

5.11 Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, it is the intent and purpose 
of COUNTY and WSMC that all rent payable to COUNTY herein shall be 
absolutely net to COUNTY so that this Agreement shall yield to COUNTY 
the entire Rent and, when applicable, the entire Additional Rent free of 
any charges, assessments, impositions or deductions of any kind or 
character which may be charged, assessed, or imposed on or against 
WSMC of the Premises and without abatement, deduction, hold-back or 
set-off by WSMC. 

6. UTILITIES & JANITORIAL: 

WSMC shall be solely responsible for all public utility costs in connection with the 
use and occupancy of the Premises including, but not limited to, water, electricity, 
gas, trash removal, and telephone service. WSMC shall also pay all installation 
or hookup charges required for these services. WSMC shall be responsible for 
janitorial services for the Premises. 

7. SECURITY DEPOSIT: 

6.1 Unless otherwise provided, prior to COUNTY's approval of this Agreement 
WSMC shall deposit with COUNTY a Security Deposit equal to two (2) 
times the amount of the Initial Monthly Rent as specified in Section 5. The 
Security Deposit shall be held by COUNTY as security for the faithful 
performance by WSMC. WSMC shall not be entitled to interest on such 
deposit. In no event shall the Security Deposit be considered or utilized by 
WSMC as the last month's rent. 

6.2 In the event of a breach or damage to the Premises caused by WSMC, its 
agents, contractors, or employees or invitees which, having been invoiced 
as Additional Rent, remains unpaid after 30 days from date of invoice, 
COUNTY, may at its sole discretion, upon a five (5) day notice to WSMC, 
appropriate and apply any or all of the Security Deposit as compensation 
for any such breach or damage. COUNTY shall invoice WSMC as 
Additional Rent that portion of the Security Deposit so applied. Failure by 
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WSMC to restore Security Deposit to its full amount within ten (1 0) days of 
written demand by COUNTY shall constitute a breach of this Agreement. 

6.3 Upon termination or expiration of the Agreement, COUNTY is authorized 
to use any or all of the Security Deposit to satisfy any outstanding invoices 
which WSMC has not paid and/or refund that portion that remains. 
WSMC's termination and refund of the balance of the Security Deposit 
shall be subject to Section 27. Surrender. 

6.4 No trust relationship between COUNTY and WSMC is created on account 
of the Security Deposit. 

8. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE: 

At WSMC's sole cost, WSMC shall maintain and repair the interior of the 
Premises and grounds as depicted on Exhibit A Premises. All such repairs and 
maintenance shall be made in a timely, professional and workmanlike manner. 
WSMC's obligations shall include, but not limited to the following: floor coverings; 
interior painting; doors and locksets; all plumbing fixtures including sewer drains; 
interior and exterior lighting; snow removal; landscaping and irrigation. 

COUNTY shall maintain in good working order fire protection systems; backflow 
prevention devices; roofing; windows; exterior building surfaces; building 
structural components; electrical systems; generator electrical backup system; 
and the heating/air conditioning system. 

WSMC shall at its own cost and expense repair or replace any damage done to 
the Premises or improvements or any part thereof, or neighboring properties or 
improvements thereon, caused by WSMC or WSMC's agents, contractors, 
employees, invitees, or visitors. 

9. IMPROVEMENTS, MODIFICATIONS AND /OR ALTERATIONS: 

Prior to making any improvements, modifications, and/or alterations to the 
Premises, (hereinafter, "Improvements") WSMC shall submit proposed plans and 
specifications to the COUNTY's Public Works and Facilities Department (PW&F) 
for review and approval. WSMC's submittal shall include the names and license 
numbers of any person or entity proposed to perform the work. PW&F is 
delegated the authority to impose any reasonable conditions for project approval. 
Additionally, PW&F may waive this requirement to provide plans and 
specifications following review of the proposed lmprovement(s). PW&F may 
deny the proposal if PW&F determines, in its sole discretion, that the proposed 
improvement, modification and/or alteration is not in the best interests of the 
COUNTY. For purposes of this Agreement, "best interests" means but is not 
limited to an assessment of whether the proposal complies with all applicable 
County Code provisions, and whether the proposal complies with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. Prior to proceeding with said Improvements, 
PW&F shall require WSMC's construction contract to comply with COUNTY 
Insurance requirements as set forth in Exhibit B. WSMC shall comply with all 
local, State and Federal laws, rules and regulation including, but not limited to, 

Page 6 of24 



96

the acquisition of appropriate permits and agency approvals, and shall have sole 
responsibility for the payment of fees as required for such permits or approvals. 
WSMC shall comply with all laws regarding payment of prevailing wage, 
including, without limitation, California Labor Code sections 1775, 1777 and 
1811, and as such laws may be amended or modified. WSMC agrees to comply 
with any directives or regulations issued by the California State Department of 
Industrial Relations or any other regulatory body of competent jurisdiction. 

10. USE PERMITS AND APPROVALS: 

WSMC shall acquire all necessary and applicable building and/or zoning permits 
and agency approvals and licenses necessary to conduct WSMC's Use of the 
Premises. WSMC shall have sole responsibility for the payment of fees as 
required for such permits or approvals. WSMC agrees to comply with all 
conditions of permits or licenses issued to WSMC for WSMC'S use of the 
Premises. 

11. TRADE FIXTURES: 

Subject to obtaining all necessary approvals and permits, WSMC shall have the 
right, at its sole expense to install trade fixture(s) in the Premises. For the 
purposes of this Agreement, trade fixture(s) means an article that the WSMC has 
physically attached to the Premises to aid the WSMC in the Use of the Premises 
and may include machinery, partitions, furniture, furnishings, doors, bins, racks, 
special lighting fixtures. Unless otherwise agreed upon in writing by COUNTY 
and WSMC, such trade fixtures that can be easily removed without damage to 
the Premises shall remain the property of WSMC and may be removed by 
WSMC at any time prior to the expiration or sooner termination of this 
Agreement. WSMC shall, at its sole expense, immediately repair any damage 
occasioned by reason of removal of any such trade fixture. 

12. FAILURE TO PERFORM MAINTENANCE: 

lfWSMC has not performed its maintenance obligations, COUNTY shall not be 
required to notify WSMC to perform any ofWSMC's maintenance responsibilities 
hereunder. However if COUNTY gives such notice, and WSMC fails to 
commence and, thereafter, diligently prosecute completion of the maintenance 
which is called for by such notice within (1 0) days following receipt thereof, 
COUNTY may, at its option, itself perform, or cause to perform, such work at 
WSMC's sole cost and expense. In such event, WSMC shall, upon demand, 
reimburse COUNTY for all costs and expense of any kind or character incurred 
by COUNTY in connection therewith. Such option shall be in addition to any 
exercise thereof and shall not be deemed to create or imply any obligation or 
duty whatsoever to COUNTY or to any other person. 

13. STATUS OF EMPLOYEES: 

All persons performing services for WSMC on or in the Premises shall be solely 
employees or contractors of WSMC and not employees of COUNTY, except 
those persons expressly and directly employed by COUNTY. 
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14. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: 

WSMC shall keep and maintain compliance with all laws and regulations within 
the Premises. COUNTY and WSMC shall each do all acts required to comply 
with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations and rules of any public authority 
relating to their respective maintenance and/or improvement obligations as set 
forth herein. 

15. OBLIGATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS: 

WSMC shall comply with all covenants, conditions and obligations set forth in this 
Agreement and shall refrain from willfully or wantonly destroying, defacing, 
damaging, impairing, or removing any part of the Premises or the facilities, 
equipment, or appurtenances, or permitting any person on the Premises to 
commit such acts. 

16. NUISANCE OR WASTE: 

WSMC agrees not to use or permit the use of the Premises to create a nuisance 
thereon. WSMC shall not commit or permit the commission of waste on the 
Premises. WSMC shall conduct its business in a quiet and orderly manner so as 
not to create unreasonable noise or noise unrelated to the use for which the 
Premises were leased. No loud, objectionable, unseemly or disturbing noises or 
visual effects shall be permitted. WSMC shall confine all odors to the Premises 
and in no event shall cause or permit air pollution, soil or ground water 
contamination, obnoxious or foul odor. 

17. USE AND REASONABLE FIRE AND PUBLIC LIABILITY INSURANCE: 

WSMC shall, at its sole cost, ensure that the use of the Premises complies with 
any and all building insurance requirements necessary for the maintenance of 
reasonable fire and public liability insurance, covering said building and 
appurtenances. In the event that WSMC's Use of the Premises results in a rate 
increase to the COUNTY, COUNTY shall notify WSMC of said increase. WSMC 
shall pay annually on the anniversary date of this Agreement, as Additional Rent, 
the additional premium amount that resulted from the rate increase. 

18. POSSESSORY INTEREST TAXES: 

WSMC's interest in this Agreement may be subject to taxation as a possessory 
interest in publicly qwned property as described in California Revenue and 
Taxation Code Section 107.6, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit C. For 
every year that this Agreement is in effect on January 1st WSMC will be required 
to pay possessory interest taxes on or before August 31st of that same year. 
Failure ofWSMC to pay any such taxes shall constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement. 

19. POST ACQUISITION TENANT: 

WSMC agrees that it is a "post-acquisition tenant" within the meaning of the 
California Relocation Assistance Act of 1970 ("ACT") (Government Code Section 
7260 et seq.) and the State Guidelines promulgated thereunder. WSMC agrees 
and hereby waives all eligibility and rights for relocation costs as a "displaced 
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person" as defined in the ACT upon termination of this Agreement. WSMC 
agrees and acknowledges that it has reviewed this Section 19, and the entirety of 
this Agrel;lment, with legal counsel ofWSMC's own choosing or has knowingly 
declined the opportunity to do so. 

' 
20. INSURANCE COVERAGE: 

It is agreed that WSMC and COUNTY shall each maintain at all times 
during the performance of the Agreement insurance coverage or self­
insurance in the amounts of not less than One Million Dollars ($1 ,000,000) 
to cover all of its operations. Specifically, but not limited to not less than 
One Million Dollars $1 ,000,000) General Liability, One Million Dollars 
($1 ,000,000) Automobile Liability and One Million Dollars ($1 ,000,000) 
Workers Compensation. WSMC shall procure and maintain full 
replacement cost property insurance with no coinsurance penalty 
provision. 

Both PARTIES agree to waive any rights of subrogation which they or 
their insurer may have against the other, provided such waiver of 
subrogation can be accomplished without prejudice to the insured's rights 
and without extra expense, unless any such extra expense is paid by the 
other PARTY. Failure to comply with this Section 20 shall be considered a 
material default of this Agreement. 

WSMC shall be responsible for all deductibles in all of the WSMC's 
insurance policies. The amount of deductible for insurance coverage 
required herein should be reasonable and subject to COUNTY's approval. 

WSMC shall file with COUNTY concurrently with the execution of the 
Lease Agreement a Certificate of Insurance, in companies acceptable to 
COUNTY, with a Best's Rating of no less than A-:VII showing the 
coverages identified above. 

The PARTIES indemnity and other obligations shall not be limited by the 
foregoing insurance requirements and shall survive the expiration of this 
agreement. 

21. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION: 

COUNTY agrees to indemnify and hold harmless WSMC and WSMC's 
employees or agents from and against any complaints, claims or damages 
including costs and attorney's fees arising out of acts or omissions of COUNTY, 
its employees or agents. 

WSMC agrees to indemnify and hold COUNTY, its employees or agents and 
elective and appointed officials from and against any complaints, claims or 
damages including costs and attorney's fees arising out of acts or omissions of 
WSMC, its employees or agents. 
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This indemnification shall extend to judicial, administrative or regulatory 
complaints, claims, damages, injury, and liability for injuries or other violations of 
law occurring during WSMC's usage, after completion ofWSMC's usage, as well 
as during the progress of rendering such usage. 

22. ASBESTOS & LEAD PAINT: 

Asbestos Containing Building Materials and/or lead based paint (ACBM/L) may 
be present in building materials used to construct the Premises. WSMC 
acknowledges the potential presence of ACBM/L and agrees to adhere to any 
restrictions imposed, and to assume any additional liability caused by leasing the 
Premises. If it has been determined that ACBM/L are present, WSMC 
acknowledges the requirement to inform any employees or invitees of WSMC of 
the presence of ACBM/L. In case any action or proceeding is brought against 
WSMC or COUNTY in regard to an abatement of ACBM/L or injury or damage 
from ACBM/L which is caused by WSMC's use or occupancy of the Premises, 
COUNTY reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to give WSMC a thirty (30) day 
written Notice of Termination. WSMC shall indemnify COUNTY for all damages 
and actual costs incurred by COUNTY including, but not limited to, staff time, 
expenses, attorney fees, litigation costs, or any expense sustained by COUNTY 
as a result of such action or proceeding. 

WSMC shall perform, at its sole expense, any and all inspections and testing 
necessary to determine if ACBM/L exists in the building. WSMC shall be solely 
responsible for work and costs associated with the removal and abatement of 
ACBM/L as necessary for any Improvements, modifications and/or alterations. 
WSMC shall ensure that contractors used to perform inspections, testing and 
possible abatement work are accredited and licensed in their respective fields. 
WSMC shall submit to COUNTY all copies of inspections and test results. Prior 
to proceeding with any abatement work, WSMC shall provide COUNTY an 
acceptable work plan. 

23. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS: 

Hazardous Materials shall mean any substance or material regulated by local, 
state or federal laws. This may include but not limited to: urea formaldehyde, 
petroleum products or by-products, radioactive substance, any infectious, 
reactive, corrosive, ignitable or flammable chemical or chemical compound. 
WSMC, its agents, employees, contractors or invitees can use, store, generate, 
and dispose of Hazardous Materials and Hazardous Waste that is necessary for 
their clinic operations and consistent with State and Federal Regulations. 

WSMC shall be responsible for all costs incurred in complying with any order, 
ruling or other requirement of any court or governmental body or agency having 
jurisdiction, which requires WSMC to comply with any local, State, and/or Federal 
laws, regulations, guidelines, codes or ordinances which relate to said 
Hazardous Materials storage and disposal. The costs shall include, without 
limitation, the cost of any required or necessary repair and/or cleanup or 
detoxification in the preparation of any closure or other required plan. Upon the 
expiration or sooner termination of this Agreement, WSMC shall remove from the 
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Premises at its sole cost and expense, any and all Hazardous Materials, 
including any equipment or systems containing Hazardous Materials, which were 
brought upon, stored, used, generated or released into the environment by 
WSMC, its agents, employees, contractors or invitees. 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, WSMC shall indemnify, defend and hold 
COUNTY, its directors, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from 
and against any and all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs, 
liabilities or losses (including, without limitation, diminution in the value of use of 
rentable or useable space or of any amenity of the Premises and sums paid in 
settlement of claims, attorney's fees, consultant fees and expert fees) caused by, 
arising out of, or related to (1) the breach of any representation, warranty or 
covenant of WSMC contained in this Section 23; or (2) the existence of 
Hazardous Materials on the Premises by WSMC, which COUNTY did not 
approve; or (3) the existence of Hazardous Materials, which were created, 
handled, placed, stored, used, transported or disposed of by WSMC without prior 
approval of COUNTY; or (4) WSMC'S use, creation, placement, storage, 
generation and/or transportation that is not in compliance with all Federal, State 
and County statutes and regulations; or (5) any such Hazardous Materials with 
respect to which any court or governmental body or agency having jurisdiction 
requires WSMC to undertake any repair, cleanup, detoxification or other remedial 
action as a result ofWSMC's acts or omissions. 

DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION: 

If the Premises is damaged by fire, earthquake, act of God, or the elements of 
other casualty, COUNTY shall diligently take steps to restore and repair the 
Premises to substantially the same condition they were in prior to such damage. 
Said restoration or repair shall not commence until COUNTY has successfully 
concluded insurance claim procedures. If COUNTY determines that repairs can 
be made and said repairs do not fall under any of the provisions of Section 26 
this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. Provided that such damage 
is not the result ()f the negligence or willful misconduct of WSMC or WSMC's 
agents, employees, contractors, licensees or invitees, the Monthly Rent shall be 
reduced to the extent WSMC's Use of the Premises is impaired, commencing 
with the date of damage and continuing until completion of the repairs. Monthly 
Rent reduction will be based on the ratio of the damaged square footage to the 
total square footage area of the Premises. COUNTY shall bear the costs and 
expenses of repairing and restoring the Premises, except that if such damage or 
destruction was caused by the act or omission ofWSMC or any of its employees, 
agents, licensees, subs for WSMC, or invitees, in which case WSMC shall bear 
the cost of all repairs. 

24. INSPECTION: 

COUNTY shall have the right to enter and inspect the Premises at any 
reasonable time during the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00p.m. PST, Monday through 
Friday, upon 24 hours advance notice to WSMC. During all other hours, 
including Saturday and Sunday, COUNTY shall have the right to enter and 
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inspect the Premises at a time mutually agreed upon by the COUNTY and 
WSMC. In the event of fire, breach of security or other imminent catastrophe, 
COUNTY or its agents shall have the right, without liability, to use any 
reasonable means to obtain entry to the Premises, including, if necessary, forced 
entry. Any entry to the Premises obtained by COUNTY in such emergency shall 
not be construed or deemed to be a forcible or unlawful entry into, or detainer of, 
the Premises, or an eviction of WSMC from the Premises or any portion thereof. 

If COUNTY determines that there is significant damage to the Premises that is 
the result of the negligence or willful misconduct of WSMC or WSMC's agents, 
employees, contractors, licensees or invitees, COUNTY may elect to terminate 
this Agreement. 

25. RIGHT TO TERMINATE: 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, 

(a) if there is a destruction of the building containing the Premises or if there is 
any other identified condition or related conditions of the building or Premises 
which would necessitate rebuilding, repairs or improvements that exceed twenty­
five percent (25%) of the replacement value of the building, whether or not the 
Premises are damaged or destroyed, or 

(b) if COUNTY reasonably believes that the repairs and restoration cannot be 
completed despite reasonable efforts within ninety (90) days after the occurrence 
of such damage, or 

(c) if COUNTY reasonably believes that there will be less than two (2) years 
remaining in the Term upon the substantial completion of such repairs and 
restoration, COUNTY shall have the right, at its sole option, to terminate this 
Agreement by giving written notice of termination to WSMC within sixty (60) days 
after the occurrence of such damage. 

(d) WSMC may elect to terminate this agreement at any time during the first 90 
days of occupancy by providing COUNTY with 30 days written notice of its 
intention to terminate the lease and cease occupancy of the premises. 

(e) WSMC may elect to terminate this agreement upon 30 days written notice in 
the event WSMC loses its FQHC status or its grant funding is reduced by more 
than 25% during any fiscal year. Termination under this subparagraph must 
include evidence of the FQHC status loss or grant funding reduction. 

26. SURRENDER: 

Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, WSMC agrees to remove all 
personal property and to surrender the Premises (and any permitted or approved 
additions, alterations or improvements not constituting WSMC'S personal 
property) to COUNTY in substantially the same condition, as determined by the 
COUNTY, as existed at the commencement of the Term of the Lease 
Agreement, except for reasonable wear and tear caused by the ordinary 
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operation of WSMC's Use of the Premises. Removal of any trade fixtures are 
subject to the provisions of Section 111. 

27. HOLDOVER: 

If WSMC remains in possession of the Premises following the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement, such holding over shall not be deemed to 
constitute an extension or renewal of this Agreement, but shall merely create a 
tenancy from month to month, which either PARTY hereto may terminate upon 
thirty (30) days advance written notice to the other. Such termination shall be 
subject to Section 27 Surrender. In the event of such holding over, all terms, 
promises, conditions and covenants in this Agreement shall remain in full force 
and effect. COUNTY retains the sole discretion and option to increase the 
Monthly Rent in effect at the time of expiration or termination of this Agreement to 
an amount that is one hundred and fifty percent (150%) of that Monthly Rent. 

28. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES: 

28.1 Events of Default. The occurrence of any one or more of the following shall 
constitute a default and breach of this Agreement by WSMC: 

a. lfWSMC fails to pay any Monthly Rent and/or Additional Rent 
payment or any other charges required to be paid by WSMC under 
this Agreement; or 

b. If WSMC fails to promptly and fully perform any other covenant, 
condition or term contained in this Agreement; or 

c. If WSMC abandons or vacates the Premises; or 
d. If a writ of attachment or execution is levied on this Agreement or 

on any of WSMC's property; or 
e. If WSMC files a voluntary petition for relief or if a petition against 

WSMC in a proceeding under the federal bankruptcy laws or other 
insolvency laws is filed and not withdrawn or dismissed within forty­
five (45) days thereafter, or if under the provisions of any law 
providing for reorganization or winding up of corporations, any court 
of competent jurisdiction assumes jurisdiction, custody or control of 
WSMC or any substantial part of its property and such jurisdiction, 
custody or control remains in force unrelinquished, unstayed or 
unterminated for a period of forty-five (45) days; or 

f. If in any proceeding or action in which WSMC is a party, a trustee, 
receiver, agent or custodian is appointed to take charge of the 
Premises or WSMC's property (or has the authority to do so) for the 
purpose of enforcing a lien against the Premises or WSMC's 
property; or 

g. lfWSMC is a partnership or consists of more than one (1) person 
or entity, if any partner of the partnership or other person or entity is 
involved in any of the acts or events described in Sections d 
through f above. 
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28.2 Remedies. In the event of WSMC's default or breach of any covenant, 
obligation or term of this Agreement and upon expiration of all required 
written notices identified in this Agreement or as required in State law or 
the County Code, COUNTY has the right hereunder, in addition to any 
other rights or remedies COUNTY may have under any law, to exercise 
any of the following remedies: 

a. Terminate this Agreement and WSMC's right to possession of 
the Premises and re-enter the Premises and take possession 
thereof, and WSMC shall have no further claim to the Premises 
or under this Agreement; or 

b. Continue this Agreement in effect, re-enter and occupy the 
Premises for the account of WSMC, and collect any unpaid 
Rent or other charges which have or thereafter become due and 
payable; or 

c. Re-enter the Premises under the provisions of Section b. and 
thereafter elect to terminate this Agreement and WSMC's right 
to possession of the Premises. 

If COUNTY re-enters the Premises under the provisions of Sections a 
or b. above, COUNTY shall not be deemed to have terminated this 
Agreement or the obligation of WSMC to pay any Monthly Rent or 
Additional Rent or other charges thereafter accruing, unless COUNTY 
notifies WSMC in writing of COUNTY's election to terminate this 
Agreement. In the event of any re-entry or retaking of possession by 
COUNTY, COUNTY shall have the right, but not the obligation, to 
remove all or any part ofWSMC's property in the Premises and to 
place such property in storage at a COUNTY or public warehouse at 
the expense and risk of WSMC. If COUNTY elects to relet the 
Premises for the account of WSMC, the rent received by COUNTY 
from such reletting shall be applied as follows: 1) to the payment of any 
indebtedness other than Monthly Rent due hereunder from WSMC to 
COUNTY; 2) to the payment of any costs of such reletting; 3) to the 
payment of the cost of any alterations or repairs to the Premises; 4) to 
the payment of Monthly Rent or Additional Rent due and unpaid 
hereunder; and 5) the balance, if any, shall be held by COUNTY and 
applied in payment for future Monthly Rent as it becomes due. If that 
portion of Monthly Rent received from the reletting which is applied 
against the Monthly Rent due hereunder is less than the amount of the 
Monthly Rent due, WSMC shall pay the deficiency to COUNTY 
promptly upon demand by COUNTY. Such deficiency shall be 
calculated and paid monthly. WSMC shall also pay to COUNTY as 
soon as determined, any costs and expenses incurred by COUNTY in 
connection with such reletting or in making alterations and repairs to 
the Premises, which are not covered by the rent received from the 
reletting. 
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Should COUNTY elect to terminate this Agreement under the 
provisions of Sections a or c above, COUNTY may recover as 
damages from WSMC the following: 

d. Past Rent. The worth at the time of the award of any unpaid 
Monthly Rent and Additional Rent which had been earned at the 
time of terminations; plus 

i. Rent Prior to Award. The worth at the time of the 
award of the amount by which the unpaid Rent 
which would have been earned after termination 
until the time of award exceeds the amount of 
such rental loss that WSMC proves could have 
been reasonably avoided; plus 

ii. Rent After Award. The worth at the tirne of the 
award of the amount by which the unpaid Rent for 
the balance of the Terrn after the time of award 
exceeds the amount of the rental loss that WSMC 
proves could be reasonably avoided; plus 

iii. Proximately Caused Damages. Any other arnount 
necessary to compensate COUNTY for all 
detriment proximately caused by WSMC's failure 
to perform its obligations under this Agreement or 
which in the ordinary course of things would be 
likely to result therefrom, including but not limited 
to, any costs or expenses (including attorneys' 
fees), incurred by COUNTY in (a) retaking 
possession of the Premises, (b) maintaining the 
Premises after WSMC's default, (c) preparing the 
Premises for reletting to a new WSMC, including 
any repairs or alterations, and (d) reletting the 
Premises. 

iv. The "worth at the tirne of the award" as used in 
Sections (1) and (2) above, is to be computed by 
allowing interest at the rate of ten percent (1 0%) 
per annum. 'The worth at the time of the award" 
as used in Section (3) above, is to be computed by 
discounting the amount at the discount rate of the 
Federal Reserve Bank situated nearest to the 
Premises at the time of the award plus one 
percent (1 %). 

v. Enforce any claim COUNTY may have against 
WSMC for anticipatory breach of this Agreement. 

29. COUNTY'S RIGHT TO CURE: 

COUNTY's right to cure does not waive, expressly or impliedly, its right to 
enforce any and all provisions of this Agreement. 
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30. COUNTY'S LIEN: 

In addition to any statutory lien granted by applicable law, COUNTY shall 
have a lien upon, and WSMC hereby grants to COUNTY a security 
interest in, all personal property of WSMC now or hereafter located in the 
Premises as security for the payment of all rent and the performance of all 
other monetary obligations of WSMC required by this Agreement. In order 
to perfect and enforce said lien and security interest, WSMC agrees to 
execute all required financing statements. At any time after an Event of 
Default by WSMC hereunder, WSMC may not remove and, without further 
notice to WSMC, COUNTY may enter the Premises and seize and take 
possession of any and all personal property belonging to WSMC which 
may be found in and upon the Premises. If WSMC fails to redeem the 
personal property so seized by payment of all sums due COUNTY under 
and by virtue of this Lease Agreement, COUNTY shall have the right, after 
ten (1 0) days' written notice to WSMC, to sell such personal property so 
seized at public or private sale and upon such terms and conditions as 
may appear advantageous to COUNTY. COUNTY may be the purchaser 
at any such sale. After the payment of all proper charges incident to such 
sale, the proceeds thereof shall be applied to the payment of any and all 
sums due to COUNTY pursuant to this Agreement. In the event there shall 
be any surplus remaining after the payment of any and all sums due to 
COUNTY pursuant to this Agreement, such surplus shall be paid over to 
WSMC. 

31. COUNTY'S RIGHTS ARE CUMULATIVE: 

All rights and remedies of COUNTY as set forth in this Agreement are in 
addition to all other rights and remedies available to COUNTY at law or in 
equity. All rights and remedies available to COUNTY hereunder or at law 
or in equity are expressly declared to be cumulative. The exercise by 
COUNTY of any such right or remedy shall not prevent the concurrent or 
subsequent exercise of any other right or remedy. 

32. NO WAIVER BY COUNTY: 

A delay by COUNTY in the enforcement or exercise of any right or remedy shall 
not constitute a waiver of any default by WSMC hereunder or of any of 
COUNTY's rights or remedies in connection therewith. If COUNTY institutes 
proceedings against WSMC and a compromise or settlement thereof is made, 
the same shall not constitute a waiver of the same or any other covenant, 
condition or obligation set forth herein or of any of COUNTY's rights hereunder 

Neither the payment by WSMC of a lesser amount than the rent due hereunder 
nor any endorsement or statement on any check or letter accompanying a check 
for payment of rent shall be deemed an accord and satisfaction or a waiver of 
any of COUNTY's remedies set forth in this Agreement and as authorized by 
State law. 
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Acceptance by COUNTY of partial Monthly Rent or Additional Rent payments 
does not waive COUNTY's right to possession of the Premises and rights to seek 
recovery of all outstanding, unpaid Monthly Rent and/or Additional Rent. On the 
day prior to the date of termination or expiration of this Agreement or any 
approved extension or renewal thereof, COUNTY shall schedule with WSMC a 
walk-through inspection of the Premises (Walk-Through Date). If the Walk­
Through Date falls on a weekend day, the Walk-Through Date shall occur on that 
date or another date as designated by the COUNTY. If COUNTY and WSMC 
cannot agree on a time on the Walk-Through Date, it shall occur at 12:00 noon. 
If, upon inspection of the Premises, COUNTY determines that the Premises is 
not in satisfactory condition, COUNTY shall submit to WSMC, in writing, a list of 
corrections to be made to the Premises and the time frame in which WSMC shall, 
at its sole expense, perform the corrections to the Premises. WSMC shall be 
billed for any pro-ration of the Monthly Rent based on a thirty (30) day month until 
all corrections are completed and COUNTY conducts its re-inspection and issues 
its written acceptance of the Premises. If said corrections are not performed 
within the established time frame, COUNTY may perform the corrections to the 
Premises an.d deduct from WSMC'S Security Deposit any costs, including, but 
not limited to, labor, parts, and administrative charges, associated with the 
corrections. If the costs exceed the amount of the Security Deposit, COUNTY will 
bill WSMC for the balance, which balance is due and payable within ten (10) 
days of the date of the invoice. If, upon inspection of the Premises, COUNTY 
determines that the Premises is in satisfactory condition and no corrections are 
required, COUNTY shall refund the Security Deposit to WSMC, subject to the 
provisions of Section 7. Security Deposit. 

33. NOTICES: 

"Notice" means any notice, demand, request or other communication or 
document to be provided under this Agreement to a PARTY to this Agreement. 
The Notice shall be in writing and shall be given to the PARTY at its address, fax, 
and/or email address as the PARTY may later specify for that purpose by Notice 
to the other PARTY. Each fax Notice shall, for all purposes, be deemed given 
and received when the fax is transmitted to the PARTY's fax number specified 
below and confirmation of complete receipt is received by the transmitting 
PARTY. If any Notice is sent by email, Notice shall not be deemed given and 
received unless the receiving PARTY acknowledges receipt of emaiL 

COUNTY: 

Public Works and Facilities • Property Management 

Mailing Address: 11476 CAve • Auburn, CA 95603 

Physical Address: 2855 Second Street • Auburn, CA 95603 

(530) 886-4900 office • (530) 889-6857 fax • www.placer.ca.gov 
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WSMC: 

Western Sierra Medical Clinic 

844 Old Tunnel Road 

Grass Valley, CA 95945 

(530) 273-4984 office • (530) 273-4573 fax • www.wsmcmed.org 

34. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING: 

WSMC shall not assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, hypothecate or encumber 
this Agreement or any interest therein and shall not sublet the Premises or any 
part thereof, without the prior written consent of COUNTY, which may be 
withheld for any reason. Any attempt to do so without such prior consent is 
considered void and will constitute a breach of this Agreement. 

Consent to one assignment, subletting or other transfer shall not be deemed to 
constitute consent or a waiver of the requirement to first obtain COUNTY'S 1 

written consent to any subsequent assignment, subletting or other transfer and 
any other requirement or obligation by WSMC set forth in this Section 34. 

Unless waived by COUNTY in writing, consent by COUNTY to any assignment or 
subletting by WSMC shall not relieve WSMC of the obligations to be performed 
by WSMC under this Agreement. 

The acceptance of Monthly Rent or Additional Rent by COUNTY from any other 
person for the Premises shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any requirements 
of this Section 34 and/or the requirements and obligations by WSMC under this 
Agreement. 

35. MISCELLANEOUS: 

Any waiver of any covenant, obligation, amendment, or requirement under this 
Agreement must be in writing and signed by both PARTIES. Waiver by either 
PARTY of a breach of any covenant or a waiver of any obligation of this 
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or obligation 
of this Agreement. · 

36. AMENDMENTS: 

No revision or amendment to this Agreement shall be valid unless made in 
writing and signed by duly authorized representatives of both PARTIES. 

37. BENEFIT: 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors 
and assigns (to the extent assignment is permitted) of each of the PARTIES 
hereto. 

38. LEGAL JURISDICTION: 

This Agreement is subject to the laws and jurisdiction of the State of California. In 
the event that any court action should be brought in conjunction with this 
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Agreement, it shall be subject to interpretation under the laws of the State of 
California, and any legal proceedings shall be brought under the jurisdiction of 
the Superior Court of the County of Placer, State of California. COUNTY and 
WSMC waive any federal court removal and/or original jurisdiction rights it may 
have. 

39. CAPTIONS: 

The captions of the Sections and paragraphs of this Agreement are for 
convenience only and shall not be deemed to be relevant in resolving any 
question of interpretation or construction of any Section of this Agreement. All 
references to paragraph and Section numbers refer to paragraphs and Sections 
in this Agreement. 

40. DEFINED TERMS: 

COUNTY and WSMC agree that all provisions in this Agreement are to be 
construed as terms, covenants, and conditions as though the words imparting 
such terms, conditions and covenants were used in each separate Section or 
paragraph hereof. 

41. FORCE MAJEURE: 

Neither COUNTY nor WSMC shall be required to perform any term, condition or 
covenant in this Agreement so long as such performance is delayed or prevented 
by force majeure, which shall mean acts of God, strikes, lockouts, material or 
labor restriction by any governmental authority, civil, riot, floods, and any other 
cause not reasonably within the control of COUNTY or WSMC (excluding 
financial inability) and which by the means by the exercise of due diligence 
COUNTY or WSMC is unable, wholly or in part, to prevent or overcome. Once 
said performance is no longer delayed or prevented by force majeure, COUNTY 
and WSMC shall be required to perform all covenants and condition of this Lease 
Agreement. 

42. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE: 

Time is of the essence with respect to the obligations to be performed under this 
Agreement. 

43. EXHIBITS: 

The Exhibits listed in both the Basic Lease Information and in this Agreement are 
hereby incorporated herein as if set forth in full. 

44. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: 

This Agreement and any attachments or Exhibits hereto constitute the sole, final 
complete, exclusive and integrated expression and statement of the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement among the PARTIES hereto concerning the subject 
matter addressed herein, and supersedes all prior negotiations, representation or 
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agreements, oral or written, that may be related to the subject matter of the 
Agreement. 

45. MATERIAL AND REASONABLE: 

The invalidity of any term or provision of this Agreement as determined by a court 
of competent jurisdiction shall in no way effect the validity of any other provision 
hereof. Each remaining term and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and 
enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

46. CONSTRUCTION AND INTERPRETATION: 

It is agreed and acknowledged by the PARTIES that the provisions of this 
Agreement have been arrived at through negotiation, and that each of the 
PARTIES has had a full and fair opportunity to review the provisions of this 
Agreement and to have such provisions reviewed by legal counsel. Therefore, 
the normal rule of construction that any ambiguities are to be resolved against 
the drafting PARTY shall not apply in construing or interpreting this Agreement. 

47. BREACH OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, TERMS: 

Failure ofWSMC to timely and fully comply with the above obligations or any 
other covenant, condition or term set forth in the Agreement shall constitute a 
material breach of this Agreement. In such event, COUNTY at is sole discretion, 
may issue a three (3) day Notice to Perform Covenant of Agreement of Quit. 

48. COUNTERPARTS: 

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, and all of which when affixed together shall constitute but 
one and the same instrument. 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES have duly executed this Agreement, as to 
the date of execution by the COUNTY. 

COUNTY OF PLACER 

By:~~~~~~~-------­
Ken Grehm, Director 

Public Works and Facilities 

WESTERN SIERRA MEDICAL CLINIC, INC.: 

By: __ ~~~~--~~------­
Scott McFarland, CEO 

By:~=-~~~--~~------­
Tom Morrissey, CFO 

Date: ------------------

Date: -------------------

Date: __________________ _ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: COUNTY COUNSEL 

By: ____________________ __ Date: __________________ _ 

Deputy County Counsel 

EXHIBIT A- PREMISES 

EXHIBIT B- COPY OF REVENUE AND TAXATION CODE SECTION 107 

EXHIBIT C - LIST OF PERSONAL PROPERTY INCLUDED IN THE LEASE 
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EXHIBIT 8 

REVENUE AND TAXATION CODE SECTION 107 

CALIFORNIA REVENUE AND TAXATION CODE 

(a) The state or any local public entity of government, when entering into a 
written Agreement with a private party whereby a possessory interest subject to 
property taxation may be created, shall include, or cause to be included, in that contract, 
a statement that the property interest may be subject to property taxation if created, and 
that the party in whom the possessory interest is vested may be subject to the payment 
of property taxes levied on the interest. 

(b) Failure to comply with the requirements of this Section shall not be 
construed to invalidate the contract. The private party may recover damages from the 
contracting state or local public entity, where the private party can show that without the 
notice, he or she had no actual knowledge of the existence of a possessory interest tax. 

The private party is reputably presumed to have no actual knowledge of the existence 
of a possessory interest tax. 

In order to show damages, the private party need not show that he or she would not 
have entered the contract but for the failure of notice. 

(c) For purposes of this Section: 

(1) "Possessory interest" means any interest described in Section 107. 

(2) "Local public entity" shall have the same meaning as that set forth 
in Section 900.4 of the Government Code and shall include school 
districts and community college districts. 

(3) "State" means the state and any state agency as defined in Section 
11000 of the Government Code and Section 89000 of the 
Education Code. 

(3) "Damages" mean the amount of the possessory interest tax for the 
term of the contract. 

Note: This excerpt is provided for reference only and is subject to legislative 
amendments. It shall be WSMC's sole responsibility to review any updates to this code, 
which is available at http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/calaw.htm 
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Exhibit C 

Need to add the list of personal property to be included in the lease ... 
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Attachment D 

Administering Agency: Placer County Health & Human Services 

Contract No. 

Contract Description: Transition of Placer County Medical and Dental Clinic Services 

SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and operative as of the 121
h day of July, 2016, between the 

County of Placer, a political subdivision of the State of California, hereinafter referred to 
as ("COUNTY"), and Western Sierra Medical Clinic, hereinafter referred to as 
("WSMC"). 

WHEREAS, COUNTY operates two health clinics, a medical clinic in Auburn (the 
"Auburn Clinic") and a medical and dental clinic in Kings Beach (the "Tahoe Clinic"), 
which are the subject of this Agreement, and 

WHEREAS, COUNTY issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) #10514 to select a 
contractor to take over provision of the services currently provided by COUNTY at 
COUNTY'S Auburn Clinic and Tahoe Clinic and approved the award of a request for 
proposal through the Placer County Board of Supervisors to WSMC on July 12, 2016 in 
response to the WSMC's submitted proposal, and 

WHEREAS, COUNTY through the Placer County Board of Supervisors on July 12, 2016 
approved ceasing operations of its Auburn and Tahoe Clinics, and 

WHEREAS, WSMC is a "Community Clinic" licensed and operated pursuant to 
California Health and Safety Code Division 2, Chapter 1, Section 1200, et. seq., and a 
federally qualified health center ("FQHC") that operates clinical sites in Sierra, Yuba and 
Nevada Counties and receives federal grant funds awarded by the United States 
Department of Health and Human Services' Health Resources and Services 
Administration ("HRSA") pursuant to Section 330 of the Public Health Service Act 
("Section 330"), 42 U.S.C. §254b, to provide a full spectrum of primary and preventative 
health care services (including essential ancillary and enabling services) to medically 
underserved populations, regardless of the individual's or family's ability to pay. WSMC 
has two clinics, one in Grass Valley and one in Downieville, and operates a mobile clinic 
at various sites, and 

WHEREAS, WSMC is experienced in operating medical, dental and behavioral health 
clinics and since 2015 has been in process pursuant to its strategic plan of opening a 
medical clinic in Auburn to provide services and care to its existing patients and to 
accept new patients; and has agreed, pursuant to a response to the RFP, to be 
available to assist County in the transition of County's patients upon closure of County's 
clinics as outlined below, and 

WHEREAS, it is understood and agreed by and between the parties of this Agreement 
that they wish to enter into this Agreement in order to provide a full and complete 
statement of their agreement with respect to WSMC working with COUNTY on the 
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transition of patients following COUNTY's closure of its clinics during the term of this 
Agreement, 

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements of this 
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the parties as follows: 

1. SCOPE OF WORK: WSMC agrees to provide services as described in Exhibit A 
to this contract. The parties agree that this Agreement in no way shall establish a 
venture with or parent organization control over WSMC, and that WSMC shall have all 
control over its facilities and services, including opening other facilities, expanding and 
adjusting services offered to patients, and accepting or denying patients in any of its 
facilities. 

2. CONSIDERATION: This Agreement is supported by the parties' promises as set 
forth in this Agreement, which the parties agree is sufficient and valuable consideration. 

3. AMENDMENTS: This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 
parties. Any amendments or changes to this Agreement shall be agreed to in writing, 
specifying the change(s) and the effective date(s) and shall be executed by duly 
authorized representatives of both parties. However, in no event shall such 
amendments create additional liability to COUNTY or provide compensation to WSMC 
except as explicitly set forth in this or amended Agreement. 

4. FACILITIES, EQUIPMENT AND OTHER MATERIALS- RELATED 
AGREEMENTS: This Agreement is dependent on COUNTY agreeing to lease to 

WSMC, through a separate lease agreement, sufficient medical and dental treatment 
space (compliant with all legal requirements, including the American with Disabilities 
Act) for WSMC to accept an assignment of patients being seen at the Tahoe Clinic. This 
Agreement is further dependent on County agreeing to lease or sell to WSMC such 
existing equipment and furniture in the Tahoe Clinic as requested by WSMC pursuant to 
a separate agreement between WSMC and COUNTY. 

5. EXHIBITS. All exhibits referred to herein will be attached hereto and by this 
reference incorporated herein and collectively, along with this base document, form the 
basis for this Agreement. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency in the definition or 
interpretation of any word, responsibility, schedule, or the contents or description of any 
task, deliverable, goods, service, other work, or payment, or otherwise between this 
Agreement and the Exhibits, or between Exhibits, such conflict or inconsistency shall be 
resolved by giving precedence first to this Agreement, then to the Exhibits according to 
the following priority: Ex. A, Ex. C and Ex. B. 

6. CONTRACT TERM: This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect from 
July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2018. Contract provisions that contain record obligations 
which occur after contract termination survive as enforceable continuing obligations. 

7. TERMINATION: 
The parties will have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time without cause by 
giving ninety (90) days' notice, in writing, of such termination to the other party. Such 
notice shall be personally served or given by United States Mail. 
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8. LICENSES, PERMITS, ETC.: WSMC represents and warrants to COUNTY that 
it has all licenses, permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatsoever nature, which 
are legally required for WSMC to practice its profession. 

9. MUTUAL HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT: WSMC 
hereby agrees to protect, indemnify, and hold COUNTY free and harmless from any and 
all losses, claims, liens, demands, expenses, and causes of action of every kind and 
character incurred by COUNTY arising in favor of any third party, in connection with or 
arising directly or indirectly out of WSMC's performance or activities under this 
Agreement. WSMC also agrees to bear all other costs and expenses related thereto, 
even if the claim or claims alleged are groundless, false, or fraudulent. 

COUNTY hereby agrees to protect, indemnify, and hold WSMC free and harmless from 
any and all losses, claims, liens, demands, expenses, and causes of action of every 
kind and character incurred by WSMC arising in favor of any third party, in connection 
with or arising directly or indirectly out of COUNTY'S performance or activities under 
this Agreement. COUNTY also agrees to bear all other costs and expenses related 
thereto, even if the claim or claims alleged are groundless, false, or fraudulent. 

This provision is not intended to create any cause of action in favor of any third party 
against WSMC or the COUNTY or to enlarge in any way either party's liability but is 
intended solely to provide for indemnification to each other from liability for damages or 
injuries to third persons or property arising from the parties' performance pursuant to 
this contract or agreement. 

As used above, the term COUNTY means Placer County or its officers, agents, 
employees, and volunteers. 

10. ASSIGNMENT PROHIBITED. WSMC may assign its rights and obligations 
under this Agreement only upon the prior written approval of COUNTY, said approval to 
be in the reasonable discretion of COUNTY. 

11. RECORDS. COUNTY shall transfer to WSMC all paper and electronic health 
information pertaining to each patient who is reassigned from COUNTY to WSMC. 

12. CONFIDENTIALITY WSMC and COUNTY agree to maintain confidentiality of 
information and records as required by applicable Federal, State and local laws, 
regulations and rules, and each further agrees to hold the other harmless from any 
breach of confidentiality 

13. WAIVER. One or more waivers by one party of any major or minor breach or 
default of any provision, term, condition, or covenant of this Agreement shall not operate 
as a waiver of any subsequent breach or default by the other party. 

14. ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of 
COUNTY and WSMC with respect to the subject matter hereof, and no other 
agreement, statement, or promise made by any party, or to any employee, officer or 
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agent of any party, which is not contained in this Agreement, shall be binding or valid. 
This clause is not intended to exclude the RFP and RFP response, relevant excerpts of 
which are expressly included as Exhibit A to this Agreement and other agreements 
anticipated in paragraph 4 of this Agreement. 

15. ALTERATION. No waiver, alteration, modification, or termination of this 
Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by all parties, except as 
expressly provided in the Termination paragraph above. 

16. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE. The parties enter into this Agreement in the 
County of Placer, California and agree to comply with all applicable laws and 
regulations therein. The laws of the State of California shall govern its interpretation 
and effect. For litigation purposes, the parties agree that the proper venue for any 
dispute related to the Agreement shall be the Placer County Superior Court or the 
United States District Court, Eastern District of California, and WSMC hereby waives 
the provisions in California Code of Civil Procedure §394. 

17. HIPAA COMPLIANCE: Both Parties agree, to the extent required by the Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), including but not limited to 
Title 42, United States Code, Section 1320d et seq. and its implementing regulations 
(including but not limited to Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Parts 142, 
160, 162, and 164), to corn ply with applicable requirements of law and subsequent 
amendments relating to protected health information. 

More specifically, neither Party shall use or disclose confidential information other than 
as permitted or required by this Agreement and will notify the other Party of any 
discovered instances of breaches of confidentiality. 

WSMC ensures that any of its subcontractors' and agents receiving health information 
related to this Agreement agree to the sarne restrictions and conditions that apply to 
WSMC with respect to such information. 

18. NOTIFICATION. Any notice or demand desired or required to be given 
hereunder shall be in writing and deemed given when personally delivered or deposited 
in the mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to the parties as follows: 

COUNTY OF PLACER: 
JeffreyS. Brown, Director 
Placer County Health &Human Services 
3091 County Center Drive, Ste 290 
Auburn, CA 95603 
Phone: 530.745.3141 

Public Works and Facilities 
Property Management 
11476 CAve. 
Auburn, CA 95603 
(530) 886-4900 

Western Sierra Medical Clinic 

WSMC: 
Western Sierra Medical Clinic 
Attn: Scott McFarland, CEO 
844 Old Tunnel Road 
Grass Valley, CA 95945 
Phone: 530-273-4984 
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Any notice so delivered personally shall be deemed to be received on the date of 
delivery, and any notice mailed shall be deemed to be received five (5) days after the 
date on which it was mailed. 

19. JOINT DRAFTING. This Agreement has been prepared by both of the parties 
and their respective attorneys and as such this Agreement shall not be construed 
against any of the parties but shall be construed as if prepared collectively by the 
parties. The parties expressly waive the provisions of California Civil Code Section 
1654. 

20 SEVERABILITY. If any provision in this Agreement is held by the arbitrators or a 
court of competent jurisdiction to be unreasonable, invalid, void, or unenforceable, then 
this Agreement will be deemed amended to provide for the modification of the 
unreasonable, invalid, void, or unenforceable provision to the extent that the court or 
arbitrator finds reasonable, and the remaining provisions of this Agreement will continue 
in full force without being impaired or invalidated in any way. 

21. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. No third Parties are intended by the 
parties hereto to be third party beneficiaries under this Agreement, and no action to 
enforce the terms of this Agreement may be brought against either party by any person 
who is not a party hereto. 

22. CAPTIONS. The captions contained herein are for reference purposes only and 
shall not affect the meaning of this Agreement. 

II Signatures on following page 

Western Sierra Medical Clinic Page 5 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused their duly authorized representatives 
to execute this Agreement as of the day first above stated: 

Western Sierra Medical Clinic ("WSMC")* 

Signature 

Print Name 

0 Chair of the Board, 0 President, or 
0 Vice President 

Date: 

Signature 

Print Name 

0 Secretary, 0 Asst. Secretary, 
0 Chief Financial Officer, or 0 Asst. 
Treasurer 

Date: 

EXHIBITS: 

Exhibit A- Scope of Services 
Exhibit B - RFP 
Exhibit C- WSMC Response to RFP 

COUNTY OF PLACER ("COUNTY") 

Chair, Placer County Board of Supervisors 

Date: 

Jeffrey S. Brown, Director, 
Department of Health & Human Services 

Date: 

Maureen Bauman, Client Services Director, 
Adult System of Care 

Date: 

Approved as to Form 
Office of Placer County Counsel 

Date: 

*Agreement must have two signatures, one in each of the two categories of corporate offices 
indicated above. Check the box indicating the corporate office of the signing party. The same 
person may sign the contract twice if that person holds an office in each of the two categories. 
(California Corporations Code§ 313) One signature will suffice, if the corporation's board of 
directors has passed a resolution that gives one person authority to sign. A copy of the most 
recent resolution must be sent with the signed contract, even if it is the same as the previous 
year. 

Western Sierra Medical Clinic Page 6 



120

Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 

WSMC's response to RFP No 10514 Section B: Program Approach is referenced here as 
the basis of the scope of work and includes: 

WSMC agrees to assist with infrastructure development and expansion of clinic services in 
response to the COUNTY'S closure of its Auburn and Tahoe clinics. In that regard, WSMC 
in its facility in Auburn, in addition to serving its current patients, has agreed to provide the 
services herein and has agreed to provide medical services to patients in Kings Beach who 
will be displaced as a result of COUNTY'S closure of its Tahoe clinic. Specifically, 
consistent with its and strategic plan in progress in Auburn and in collaboration with 
COUNTY its policies and strategic plan with respect to Kings Beach, WSMC agrees to 
provide the range of services set forth below: 

A. Provide a full range of comprehensive primary care services that will include primary, 
behavioral health and preventative care specialty care as per HRSA requirements 
and additional health services as appropriate and necessary, either directly or 
through established written arrangements and referrals. 

B. Provide a full range of dental services in the Tahoe Clinic. 
C. Address chronic health conditions, including diabetes, asthma, and hypertension 

common among patients. 
D. Provide care management services for patients requiring short-term supportive 

services for chronic conditions or other needs. 
E. Ensure that staff are appropriately licensed, credentialed, and privileged. 
F. Complete a license application for the new site as a community health center within 

30 days of obtaining a lease. 
G. Allow the current Placer County Medical Clinics staff to apply and be interviewed and 

considered for positions that may be available as a result of this transition. 
H. Within 45 days, coordinate with Federal Project Officer and submit appropriate 

documentation to HRSA including Change of Scope documentation, and undertake 
best efforts to help facilitate HRSA's approval of the Auburn and Tahoe Clinic 
transfers. 

The transition of patients from the Placer County Auburn and Tahoe Clinics to WSMC at the 
County's Tahoe Clinic (pursuant to a lease) and to the newly established Auburn WSMC site 
will be done in a way to prevent disruption of care and ensure continuity of care the 
transitioned patients. WSMC agrees to accept as many of COUNTY'S patients currently 
served in COUNTY'S Auburn Clinic and Tahoe Clinic and who are either assigned to WSMC 
by each patient's insurer or, pursuant to WSMC's policies, who are uninsured and not in 
MediCal managed care and opt to have WSMC provide their medical services. Thereafter, 
WSMC shall be responsible for providing care for those patients. 
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WSMC will establish 2 satellite clinics in two locations: 8665 Salmon Ave, Kings Beach, CA 
(upon agreement by the parties respecting the lease for the COUNTY's Tahoe facility to 
WSMC) and 12183 Locksley Lane, Auburn, CA between September 1, 2016 and November 
1, 2016. WSMC agrees to be available to accept new patients displaced as a result of 
COUNTY's clinic closures by December 31, 2016. In addition, WSMC will expand the 
Locks ley Lane office or identify a second office no later than December 31, 2016 so that its 
patients, patients transitioned as a result of COUNTY's closure, and new patients needing 
appointments can be seen timely at either of the Auburn locations. 

WSMC will apply for a license to bill Medicare at the same time they establish the satellite 
Auburn Clinic and Tahoe Clinic. WSMC will provide services to Medicare, Medi-Cal and 
uninsured patients when they begin services at any of the satellite sites. 

COUNTY agrees to notify health plans, private insurance, and individual patients of 
transition to WSMC. Patients can choose an alternative provider of their choice. 

Should WSMC and County enter into a lease with respect to 8665 Salmon Ave, Kings 
Beach, CA, and should WSMC desire any inspections and related improvements or repairs 
to the Tahoe Clinic facility prior to its tenancy any such inspections and requests for 
improvements or repairs will be undertaken no later than two weeks after the execution of 
this agreement. Any such inspections shall be made at WSMC's expense. COUNTY will 
complete and fund agreed upon repairs and improvements during COUNTY'S tenancy of 
the Tahoe Clinic facility. 

Staffing: Upon appropriate application, WSMC will consider all applicants of employment, 
including any COUNTY clinical staff who have been displaced due to COUNTY clinic 
closures. All employment related decisions will be consistent with WSMC regular policies 
and procedures and its business necessity. Careful consideration will be given to all 
applicants. WSMC is an equal opportunity employer. 

Services: WSMC will provide same-day or next-day medical care in WSMC's Auburn facility 
for up to twenty (20) patients per year determined to need urgent care by Placer County's 
Health Officer or his/her designee. 

WSMC will be registered as a "Vaccines for Children" (VFC) provider, which shall allow 
WSMC to receive vaccine at no cost and to charge an administration fee. WSMC will 
provide a minimum of sixteen hours of "immunization clinics" per month in WSMC's 
Auburn facility. WSMC's clinics will prioritize immunizations for children who are eligible for 
the VFC program, including children who are not currently WSMC's patients. 

WSMC will continue the Family Nurse Practitioner program established by the COUNTY 
with the University of San Francisco program and utilize the volunteer preceptor. at WSMC's 
Auburn facility to contract with the University of San Francisco for the onsite training of nurse 
practitioners. 

2 
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Under its current grant, WSMC will provide Medication Assisted Treatment as part of their 
services at the Auburn Clinic and Tahoe Clinic. WSMC will also provide medical clearance 
and medication based on protocol to persons who have been accepted into the COUNTY 

substance abuse treatment services and require this clearance for residential or 
detoxification services. 

WSMC will provide medical services to the homeless population at the Right Hand Auburn 
Shelter either on site at the shelter or at the Locksley Lane site. 

Coordination with COUNTY and Board Representation: To effect continuity of care for 

patients and for purposes of the PARTIES' commitment to work together to address the 
health needs of Placer County residents going forward, WSMC will provide COUNTY HHS a 
monthly report with current data on their services for the previous month including their wait 
time for an appointment. 

WSMC will participate in monthly meetings with relevant Health and Human Services staff to 
review transition challenges and develop solutions. These meetings will be set at a regular 
time that is agreeable to all parties. It is expected that once the transition of patients has 
occurred that a schedule of quarterly meetings will be established as part of ongoing 
coordination between COUNTY Health and Human Services and WSMC. 

WSMC has a Placer County resident on their Board of Directors. WSMC will accept referrals 
from COUNTY of persons to be considered for another position on WSMC's Board of 
Directors .. 

3 
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PLACER COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

on behalf of the 

Department of Health & Human Services 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

for 

Operation of Medical Clinics 
Auburn and Kings Beach, CA 

RFP No. 10514 

Release Date: November 23, 2015 

Submittal Deadline: December 23, 2015 
not later than 5:00PM (Pacific) 



124

SECTION 

Placer County RFP No. 10514 

Operation of Medical Clinics 
Auburn and Kings Beach, CA 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1.0 INTRODUCTION .......................................................................................... 1 

2.0 TENTATIVE RFP SCHEDULE .................................................................. 2 

3.0 PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE ............................................................. 2 

4.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES ................................................................................. 2 

5.0 ASSURANCE OF DESIGNATED MANAGEMENT TEAM ................... 6 

6.0 GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS ....................................................... 6' 

7.0 PROPOSAL FORMAT REQUIREMENTS ............................................... 7 

8.0 SUBMITTAL INSTRUCTIONS ................................................................ 10 

9.0 EVALUATION CRITERIA ....................................................................... 11 

10.0 SELECTION PROCEDURE ...................................................................... 12 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Required Statements 
B. Draft Contract 



125

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

Placer County is inviting proposals from FQHCs, FQHC Look-Alikes, Rural Health Clinics, and 
other community health centers (including hospital-affiliated and those contracted with the Indian 
Health Services) to establish comprehensive primary care service clinics to serve low-income Placer 
County residents in Auburn and/or Kings Beach, and to transition existing county clinic patients to 
new providers, which could include these new clinics. The transition phase could include some 
management control by the successful Provider of the existing county clinics until the new clinics 
are established and become operational. 

The purpose of this Request for Proposals (RFP) is to select an agency with which to partner, 
culminating in complete transition of the Placer Medical Clinics in the Auburn and Kings Beach 
(Tahoe) areas to the successful provider. Respondents who are only interested in one of the sites 
will be considered, however preference will be given to providers who offer to operate both sites. 

This RFP includes a description of the scope of work, proposal requirements, and instructions for 
submitting proposals. As used herein, the terms proposer, provider, agency, or FQHC may be used 
interchangeably and are intended to describe groups or teams who desire to provide these services. 
Proposing agencies may be considered for one or both locations. Agencies must clearly state the 
location(s) for which it would like to be considered. 

Direct all inquiries regarding this RFP in writing to: 

April Pay, CPPO, CPPB 
Placer County Procurement 
2964 Richardson Drive 
Auburn, CA 95603 
Phone: (530) 889-4253 
Email: apay@placer.ca.gov 

Do not contact County departments or other County staff directly. Information provided by other 
than the above contact may be invalid and proposals which are submitted in accordance with such 
information may be declared non-responsive. 

In the event that it becomes necessary to revise any part of this RFP, written addenda will be issued. 
Any amendment to this RFP is valid only if in writing and issued by the Placer County Procurement 
Services Division. 

All addenda for this RFP will be distributed via Public 
Purchase: http://www.placer.ca.gov/admin/procurement/openbids.aspx 

It is the proposer's sole responsibility to monitor the Public Pnrchase website for possible 
addenda to this RFP. Failure of proposer to retrieve addenda from this site shall not relieve 
him/her of the requirements contained therein. Additionally, failure of proposer to return signed 
addenda, when required, may be cause for rejection of his/her proposal. 

Placer County RFP No. 10514 
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2.0 TENTATIVE RFP SCHEDULE 

The following represents the tentative schedule for this RFP. Any change in the scheduled dates for 
the Pre-Proposal Conference, Deadline for Final Questions, Proposal Submission Deadline, or 
Interviews will be advertised in the form of an addendum to this RFP. The schedule for other 
milestone dates may be adjusted without notice. 

Pre-Proposal Conference..................................... December 8, 2015 
Deadline for Final Questions ................................. December 14,2015 
Proposal Submission Deadline .............................. December 23,2015 
Evaluation of Written Proposals ............................. Dec. 23,2015- Jan. 16,2016 
Interviews- Firms must be available on this date ........ January 28, 2016 
ContractNegotiations ......................................... February 1-12,2016 
Contract approval by Board ofSupervisors ............... February-March 2016 
Notice to Proceed .............................................. March 2016 

3.0 PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE 

A proposer's conference has been scheduled for December 8, 2015 at 11:30 am at the following 
location: 

Placer County Procurement Services 
2964 Richardson Drive 
Auburn, CA 95603 

Interested firms wilJ have an opportunity to submit questions regarding the requirements outlined in 
this RFP. While attendance is not mandatory, interested proposers are highly encouraged to attend. 
In order to make the meeting more effective for all participants, attendees should read this document 
thorough! y prior to the meeting. 

Substantial clarifications or changes required as a result of the meeting will be issued in the form of 
a written addendum to the RFP. Questions or comments which are considered to be inconsequential 
to the scope of services or proposal requirements may not be documented. A list of attendees will be 
distributed as soon as practical following the meeting. 

4.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES 

4.1 The current Placer County Medical Clinics are located at 11583 CAve, Auburn, CA 95603 
and 8865 Salmon Ave, Kings Beach, CA, 96143 (north shore of Lake Tahoe). These clinics, 
which provide comprehensive primary care services to low-income residents in Placer 
County, have more than 4,500 patients and record approximately 15,000 patient visits each 
year. These clinics draw patients from all parts of Placer County. At this time the Auburn 
site is restricted to only serving Placer residents, however the Tahoe site currently serves 
Medi-Cal patients who reside within and outside of Placer County. In past years, both clinics 
served a wider region, including non-Placer residents. New clinic sites would have the 
potential to expand to serve non-Placer residents. 

Placer County RFP No. 10514 
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4.2 The current county clinics, certified as Rural Health Clinics, pride themselves on providing 
high quality care to persons with complex medical needs. The "Tahoe" Medical Clinic in 
Kings Beach includes dental services as part of the continuum of care. While both the 
Auburn and Tahoe clinics are separately certified, they are operated jointly with a single 
administration and Medical Director overseeing both locations. Placer County Health and 
Human Services (HHS) is seeking an organization for this transition that subscribes to a 
vision of clinical excellence, community health improvement, and partnerships with patients, 
employees and physicians. 

4.3 Placer County HHS is committed to responding to the changing needs of the communities it 
serves, as well as the changing face of health care delivery and financing. There is a need to 
expand primary care capacity in both Auburn and Kings Beach to serve the more than 55,000 
individuals covered by Medi-Cal throughout the County. 

4.4 Based on the June 2015, 12-month operational assessment, the payment method for each 
clinic is: 

Payment Method Auburn Kings Beach 
Medi-Cal Managed Care 50% 40% 
Medicare 24% 12% 
Fee for Service Medi-Cal 10% X 
Self-Pay 9% 25% 
Family PACT X 12% 

4.5 Based on the June 2015, 12-month operational assessment, the age of the patient 
population is 

Age Group Auburn Kings Beach 
Age 26-60 62% 54% 
Age 60+ 20% 10% 
Transition Youth I 6-26 10% 10% 
Children I 5 or younger 8% 15% 

4.6 The Auburn and Tahoe Medical Clinic facilities have the following treatment space: 

Treatment Space Auburn Kings Beach 
Medical Exam Rooms 14 4 
Dental Chairs 0 2 

Placer County RFP No. 10514 
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4.7 Current staffing at each facility is shown below, listed as Full Time Equivalent (FTE) 
positions: 

Staff Auburn Kings Beach 
Providers -Physician 1.5 ---

Psychiatrist 1.0 ---
Mid Level 2.0 0.8 
Dentist --- 1.0 
Dental Assistant --- 1.0 

Other- Medical Asst 2.0 ---
Licensed Voc. Nurse 1.0 ---
Registered Nurse 3.0 1.0 
Supervising Nurse 1.0 ---
Admin. Staff 11.0 2.0 
Supervisory Staff 2.5 ---

4.8 The primary language spoken by most patients at both clinics is English, followed by 
Spanish. Languages which cannot be interpreted by staff can be addressed by contract 
interpreters, often by phone. Contract interpreters are generally utilized for sign language 
translation/communication. 

4.9 The Auburn Medical Clinic facility's "footprint" is 9,320 square feet, is county-owned, and 
would require major improvements to meet OSHPD-3 standards. This facility is augmented 
by another 8,450 square feet annex next door (connected by a hallway under the same roof) 
that contains offices for clinic referral staff, a large conference/training space, additional 
employee restrooms, and a second kitchen/ break room. It is very likely that it would be cost 
prohibitive to bring these buildings up to OSHPD-3 standards. 

4.10 The Tahoe Medical Clinic is a 3,005 square feet county owned space that has the potential to 
meet OSHPD-3 standards. The Rural Health designation does not include the upstairs of this 
building that is used for staff and administrative offices. This clinic space needs further 
evaluation to determine if it would be an acceptable long-term site or whether it would be 
advantageous to secure alternative space in the Kings Beach or other nearby area. 

4.11 The Placer County Medical Clinics seek to provide affordable, quality health care for the 
poor and medically disenfranchised. The successful Provider will be prepared to embrace 
these tenets and demonstrate its commitment to serving low-income residents of Placer 
County, ensuring that they continue to receive accessible and affordable health care services. 
The successful Provider will work collaboratively with Placer County HHS as a partner to 
address specialty access to behavioral health services, substance use disorder treatment 
services, and public health preventative care. 

4.12 Placer County is seeking a Provider to engage in a transitional planning process that will 
result in the transfer of one or both of the Placer Medical Clinics to new Provider sites in 
Auburn and/or Kings Beach. 

Placer County RFP No. I 0514 
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4.13 To prevent disruption of care and to ensure continuity of care, the provider will ultimately 
assume current Placer Medical Clinic patients and will work closely with Placer County HHS 
to accomplish a seamless and appropriate transition for these patients. Placer Medical Clinics 
will obtain patient authorization and transfer current patient records to the Provider. 

4.14 The successful Provider may request start-up funding from the County to support the 
transition of services from the County to the Provider, subject to negotiation by the County. 
This could include a transfer of the equipment and furnishings currently utilized at the Placer 
County Medical Clinics. It is anticipated that once the partnership is established, full 
operational transition will occur by October 2016 or sooner. 

4.15 The successful Provider shall provide the following services: 
a. Provide a full range of comprehensive primary care services that will include primary, 

behavioral health, and preventive care, specialty care as per HRSA requirements and 
additional health services as appropriate and necessary, either directly or through 
established written arrangements and referrals. 

b. Address chronic health conditions, including diabetes, asthma, and hypertension common 
among patients. 

c. Provide care management services for patients requiring short-term supportive services 
for chronic conditions or other needs. 

d. Ensure that staff are appropriately licensed, credentialed, and privileged. 
e. Complete a license application for the new site as a community health center within 30 

days of obtaining a lease. 
f. Allow the current Placer Medical Clinic(s) staff to apply and be interviewed and 

considered for positions that may be available as a result of this transition. 
g. Discuss transfer of the Placer Medical Clinic(s) with the Provider's federal project officer 

within 14 days of selection by Placer HHS, obtaining a favorable response to the 
acquisition, and submit a Change in Scope to HRSA within 45 days of having 
successfully negotiated occupancy of a new site, with reasonable expectations that the 
request will be approved based on the organization's ability to demonstrate and document 
the needs of the target population, its having established a service area acceptable to 
HRSA, and its having no outstanding or unmet terms or conditions against its federal 
(e.g. section 330) grant. 

h. Actively participate on a joint transition committee with Placer HHS that shall regularly 
meet to facilitate timely and successful operational transition. 

i. Develop metrics for patient services mutually agreed to and report results in the form of a 
dashboard to Placer HHS after the takeover until there is a transition to the newly 
established sites. 

4.16 The scope of this program includes full operational responsibility for new Auburn and/or 
Kings Beach clinics which will be comparable to the operational autonomy for other sites 
managed by the provider. 

4.17 The Provider shall extend its current quality improvement/quality assurance (QVQA) policies 
and practices to the new site, and that the QVQA program will include a clinical director 
whose focus of responsibility is to support the QVQA program and the provision of high­
quality patient care, and periodic assessment of the appropriateness of the utilization of 
services and the quality of services provided to individuals served by the provider. 
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Assessments shall be: (a) conducted by physicians or by other licensed health professionals 
under the supervision of physicians; (b) based on the systematic collection and evaluation of 
patient records; and (c) identify and document the necessity for change in the provision of 
services by the health center and result in the institution of such change, where indicated. 

4.18 During the transition to full operational responsibility, the Provider will provide a full time 
management consultant to assist with the operations of the current programs by providing 
direction on increased efficiencies and productivity as well as a review of quality assurance 
strategies. Placer County HHS will work with the Provider's consultant in implementing 
changes as a part of this transitional process. 

4.19 The Provider will endeavor to establish and maintain collaborative relationships with other 
health care providers in the service area that offer complementary care for health center 
patients, including other health centers in the service area. Similarly the Provider shall 
develop complementary referral relationships with other health and human services agencies. 

5.0 ASSURANCE OF DESIGNATED MANAGEMENT TEAM 

Proposer shall assure that the designated management team, including sub-contractors (if any), is 
used for the program identified in the proposal. Departure or reassignment of, or substitution for, 
any member of the designated management team or sub-contractor(s) shall not be made without the 
prior written approval of the County. 

6.0 GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS 

6.1 Standard Contract. Upon completion of the evaluation and recommendation for award, the 
selected firm will be required to execute a formal Agreement, a draft of which is included as 
Attachment B. 

6.2 Independent Contractor. At all times the Consultant shall represent himself/herself to be 
an independent contractor offering such services to the general public and shall not represent 
himselflherself, or his/her employees, to be an employee of the County of Placer. Therefore, 
the Consultant shall assume all legal and financial responsibility for taxes, FICA, employee 
fringe benefits, workers compensation, employee insurance, minimum wage requirements, 
overtime, etc., and agrees to indemnify, save, and hold the County of Placer, its officers, 
agents, and employees, harmless from and against, any and all loss, cost (including attorney 
fees), and damage of any kind related to such matters. 

6.3 Publicity Clause: Awarded firm(s) shall obtain prior written approval from the County for 
use of information relating to the County or any resulting Agreement in advertisements, 
brochures, promotional materials or media, press releases or other informational avenues. 

6.4 Non-Appropriation. The County may terminate any resulting contract at the end of any 
fiscal year, June 30th, without further liability other than payment of debt incurred during such 
fiscal year, should funds not be appropriated by its governing body to continue services for 
which the contract was intended. 
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6.5 Conflict oflnterest. The Consultant shall warrant that no official or employee of the County 
has an interest, has been employed or retained to solicit or aid in the procuring of the resulting 
contract, nor that any such person will be employed in the performance of such contract 
without immediate divulgence of such fact to the County. 

6.6 Non-Collusion. Firms submitting proposals shall warrant that their offer is made without 
any previous understanding, agreement or connection with any person, firm or corporation 
submitting a separate proposal for the same project and is in all respects fair, without outside 
control, collusion, fraud or otherwise illegal action. This condition shall not apply to 
proposals which are submitted by firms who have partnered with others to submit a 
cooperative proposal that clearly identifies a primary contractor and the associated sub­
contractors. 

6.7 Indemnification & Insurance Requirements. The County's standard indemnification and 
insurance requirements are provided in the draft contract, Attachment B. All costs of 
complying with the insurance requirements-shall be included in your pricing. The selected 
firm shall provide complete and valid insurance certificates within ten (I 0) days of the 
County's written request. Failure to provide the documents within the time stated may result 
in the rejection of the firm's proposal. 

6.8 Protests and Appeals. In accordance with Section 10.0 of the Placer County Purchasing 
Policy Manual, any actual or prospective proposer, offeror, or contractor who is aggrieved in 
connection with the solicitation or award of a contract may appeal to the Director of 
Administrative Services. The protest shall be submitted in writing to the Director of 
Administrative Services within seven (7) calendar days after such aggrieved person or 
company knows, or should have known, of the facts giving rise thereto. 

7.0 PROPOSAL FORMAT REQUIREMENTS 

Each response to this RFP shall include the information described in this section. Provide the 
information in the specified order. Failure to include all of the elements specified may be cause for 
rejection. Additional information may be provided, but should be succinct and relevant to the goals 
of this RFP. Excessive information will not be considered favorably. 

All copies of the proposal should be bound or contained in loose leaf binders. Document pages shall 
be 8-1/2 inches by II inches in size or folded to such a size. Use section dividers, tabbed in 
accordance with this Section as specified below. 

7 .I Cover Letter with the following information: 

• Title of this RFP 

• Name and mailing address of firm (include physical location if mailing address is a PO 
Box) 

• Indicate the clinic site(s) for which you would like to be considered: Auburn, Kings 
Beach, or Both. 

• Contact person, Email address, telephone number, and fax number. 

Placer County RFP No. 10514 
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The County will use email to notify your firm of critical developments such as interview 
schedules, notification of selection/non-selection, etc. Therefore, it is essential that you 
identify one or more contact persons who has frequent access to email. The County will not 
be responsible for delivery failure of email due to firewalls, spam filters, or individuals' 
failure to retrieve email messages. The County will not attempt to re-deliver any messages 
which fail due to no fault of the County. 

7.2 Signature Requirements: The Cover Letter must be signed by an officer empowered by the 
Consultant to sign such material and thereby commit the Consultant to the obligations contained 
in the RFP response. Further, the signing and submission of a response shall indicate the 
intention of the proposer to adhere to the provisions described in this RFP and a commitment 
to enter a binding contract. 

• Proposals submitted on behalf of a Partnership shall be signed in the firm name by a 
partner or the Attorney-In-Fact. If signed by the Attorney-In-Fact, there shall be attached 
to the proposal a Power-Of-Attorney evidencing authority to sign proposals, dated the 
same date as the proposal and executed by all partners of the firm. 

• Proposals which are submitted on behalf of a Corporation shall have the correct corporate 
name thereon and the actual signature of the authorized officer of the corporation written 
(not typed) below the corporate name. The title of the office held by the person signing 
for the corporation shall appear below the signature of the officer. 

• Proposals which are submitted by an Individual doing business under a firm name 
("dba") shall be signed in the name of the individual doing business under the proper firm 
name and style. 

7.3 TAB A: Qualifications and Experience: 

A. Provide a brief history and overview of your agency, emphasizing your experience as a 
community health center. 

B. Please include: (a) how long you have been an FQHC, FQHC Lookalike, Rural Health 
Center or other community health center (including hospital-affiliated and those 
contracted with the Indian Health Services); (b) how many sites you currently operate; (c) 
total FTEs and FTEs by provider type (i.e., physician, mid-levels providers, dentists, and 
mental health clinicians); (d) size of Board of Directors; (e) total number of patients and 
patient visits; and (f) other defining aspects of your organization. 

C. If you are currently in the process of satisfying HRSA -required terms or conditions on 
your grant, please explain and give a timeline for completion in the proposal narrative. 

D. Describe the experience of your management team. 
E. Describe your experience collaborating or working cooperatively with other health 

organizations, area hospitals, and social service agencies. 
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7.4 TAB B: Program Approach: 

A. Describe how you will approach the management of the clinic, how you will assume 
responsibility for patients, and experience you may have in opening new sites. 

B. Describe your current practice management/ERR system, and where you are in its 
implementation/utilization. Also describe where the agency stands with regard to Patient 
Centered Medical Home and Meaningful Use recognition. 

C. If you are proposing a transfer not involving a Change in Scope to HRSA then clearly 
explain the timeliness of the transfer. 

D. If the organization is currently in the process of satisfying HRSA-required terms or 
conditions on its grant, please explain and give a timeline for completion. 

7.5 TAB C: Requested Resources 

Describe the support your organization would request from the County, if any, to establish 
new facilities and/or facilitate the transfer of services. Provide detailed descriptions and 
quantities of resources you request. Requests for financial support must be categorized 
(equipment, furnishings, staffing, etc). Provide a schedule for delivery of the requested 
resources. The County reserves the right to negotiate any such requests with the selected 
Provider. 

7.6 TAB D: Financial Statements and Supporting Documents: 

A. Describe your current standing with regard to your federal grant. Describe any 
outstanding or unresolved terms or conditions. 

B. Describe your organization's current financial stability. 
C. Provide your organization's Federal Notice of Award for the current project period 
D. Provide a list of current Board of Directors, with affiliations. 

Providers who are invited to interview will be required to provide the following documents 
for the County's review. It is not necessary to include these in your initial proposal. 

E. Past four years' independent audits, including management letters, if received. If there 
are audit exceptions, please address them. 

F. Cash flow statement for the past 12 months 
G. Current operating budget and balance sheet 
H. Agency annual report, if available 

7.7 TAB E: Required Statements: 
This section must include the statements identified below. For your convenience, you may 
complete and return Attachment A. 

A. A statement that the submitting firm will perform the services and adhere to the 
requirements described in this RFP, including any addenda (reference the addenda by 
date and/or number). 

Placer County RFP No. 10514 
Operation of Medical Clinics- Auburn and Kings Beach, CA Page 9 of 12 



134

B. Subsequent to award of this RFP, all or part of any submittal may be released to any 
person or firm who may request it, as prescribed by the State of California Public 
Records Act. Proposers shall include a statement that describes the specific portion(s) of 
their submittal that are considered proprietary and should not be releasable as public 
information. Proposers should be aware that all such requests may be subject to legal 
review and challenge. 

C. Include a statement of assurance that you will not substitute members of your designated 
team without approval by Placer County staff (per Section 6.0) 

D. Include a statement which declares there is no Conflict of Interest (per Section 7.5) 
E. Provide a statement attesting there has been no Collusion (see Section 7.6) 
F. Indicate your ability and agreement to fulfill the indemnification and insurance 

requirements contained in the draft contract (Section 7. 7). (Please note that actual 
Certificates of Insurance are not required as part of your submittal.) 

G. Provide a statement certifying that your firm is not currently subject to debarment under 
Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 29 

7.8 TAB R: Exceptions- Describe any and all proposed exceptions, alterations or amendments to 
the Scope of Work or other requirements of this RFP, including the Draft Contract 
(Attachment B). The nature and scope of your proposed exceptions may affect the 
evaluation of your submittal and the County's determination of whether it is possible to 
successfully negotiate a contract with your frnn/individual. 

8.0 SUBMITTAL INSTRUCTIONS 
8.1 Your submittal package shall include the following: 

• One (1) original and five (5) printed copies of your proposal 
• One (1) electronic copy of your proposal in PDF format on CD, flash drive or other 

electronic media 

8.2 Proposals shall be submitted not later than the time and date indicated on the cover page of this 
RFP. 

8.3 All submittals shall be submitted in a sealed envelope or container and clearly marked with the 
RFP number and title on the outside of the parcel. 

8.4 Proposals must be submitted ONLY to: 

Placer County Dept. of Administrative Services 
Procurement Services Division 
2964 Richardson Drive 
Auburn, CA 95603-2640 

8.5 Faxed and/or ernailed proposals shall not be accepted. 

8.6 The County of Placer shall not be responsible for proposals delivered to a person or location 
other than that specified herein. 

8. 7 Late submittals shall not be accepted or considered. 
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8.8 All submittals, whether selected or rejected, shall become the property of Placer County and 
will not be returned. 

8.9 The County reserves the right to waive minor defects and/or irregularities in proposals, and 
shall be the sole judge of the materiality of any such defect or irregularity. 

8.10 All costs associated with proposal preparation shall be borne by the offeror. 

8.11 All proposals shall remain firm for one hundred twenty (120) days following the closing date 
for the receipt of proposals. 

9.0 EVALUATION CRITERIA 

9.1 Evaluation of Written Proposals- Upon review of the written proposals, the County will 
use the following evaluation criteria and rating points to determine the most highly qualified 
firm(s). 

Evaluation Criteria- Written Proposals 
A. Overall Suitability: The proposal demonstrates the agency's 

capacity to operate the health center(s) and to sustain and 
grow health center utilization. 
(per Sections 7.3 A, B, C and 7.4) 

B. Organizational Experience: The proposer demonstrates that 
it is experienced in serving comparable populations in 
delivering primary care and specialty services and 
developing local referral networks. 
(per Sections 7.3 A, B, C) 

C. Technical Expertise and Experience of Staff: The proposer's 
management team has the technical skills, experience, and 
expertise to oversee the site(s) and to assist in the necessary 
transitions. (per Section 7.3 D) 

D. Capacity for Growth: The proposer has sufficient experience 
to operate a new clinic site and the financial management 
experience necessary to ensure maximization of revenues 
while controlling costs. 
(per Sections 7.4 and 7.6 A, B, C, D) 

E. Commitment to partnership: The proposer has demonstrated 
successful, mutually beneficial partnerships with hospitals, 
hospital systems, local providers or other external entities. 
(per Section 7.3 E) 

F. Requested Resources (per Section 7 .5) 

G. Additional points for proposals which offer to manage both 
Auburn and Kings Beach sites 

Total Possible Points: 

Placer County RFP No. 10514 
Operation of Medical Clinics- Auburn and Kings Beach, CA 
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9.2 Interviews- The following evaluation criteria and rating points will be used during the 
interview phase (optional) to select the most highly qualified firm(s). 

Evaluation Criteria - Interviews 

A. Experience and qualifications of organization 

B. Experience in new program development 

C. Proposed Service Plan 

D. Response to the Interview 

Total Possible Points: 

Maximum 
Points Possible 

20 

30 

40 

20 

110 

9.3 Local Vendor Preference- Placer County's Local Vendor Preference policy shall not be 
considered in the evaluation of responses to this RFP. 

10.0 SELECTION PROCEDURE 

10.1 Written submittals will be reviewed for responsiveness, and responsive submittals will further 
be screened by a selection committee in accordance with the above criteria. The firm(s) 
submitting the highest rated proposal may be invited for interviews. 

10.2 Interviews will be held solely at the County's option. Ifthe County elects to conduct 
interviews, the above criteria will be used to score and rank firms' responses to interview 
questions or instructions, in addition to other relevant information provided or requested. 

10.3 The County reserves the right to make an award without further discussion of the submittal 
with the offeror. Therefore, the .proposal should be submitted initially on the most favorable 
terms that the firm or individual might propose. 

10.4 The County reserves the right to award a contract to the firm(s) that presents the best 
qualifications and whose proposal best accomplishes the desired results. 

I 0.5 The County reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to waive minor irregularities 
in said proposals, or to negotiate with the successful firm(s). In the case of differences 
between written words and figures in a proposal, the amount stated in written words shall 
govern. In the case of a difference in unit price versus the extended figure, the unit price 
shall govern. 

I 0.6 The County will notify all proposers whether or not they are selected for the subject work. 
Email is the County's preferred method of communication for all stages of the RFP process. 
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REQUIRED STATEMENTS 

Attachment A 
RFP No. 10514 
Page I of2 

This form is provided as a convenience for proposers to respond to the "Required Statements" 
section of this RFP. You may complete and return this form or include your own statements of 
assurance which meet the requirements. 

By signature on the cover letter of this submittal and by including this document, //we attest and agree 
to the following: 

A. Scope of Work and Addenda 

1/We will perform the services and adhere to the requirements described in this RFP, Including the 
following addenda issued by the County (list the addenda by date and/or number): 

B. Public Records Act 

I !We acknowledge that subsequent to award of this RFP, all of part of this submittal may be 
released to any person or firm who may request it, as prescribed by the State of California Public 
Records Act (Govt. Code 6250, ~t seq), and that: 

None of this submittal is considered proprietary 

OR 

The portions/pages of this submittal identified below are proprietary and/or 
confidential for the reasons stated (cite the specific exemptions allowed by the 
California Public Records Act/Government Code): 

1/We acknowledge that the above statements may be subject to legal review and challenge. 

C. Non-Substitution of Designated Staff 

1/We assure that the designated project team, including sub-consultants (if any), is used for this 
project and that departure or reassignment of, or substitution for, any member of the designated 
project team or sub-consultant(s) shall not be made without the prior written approval of the County. 

D. Non-Conflict of Interest 

1/We warrant that no official or employee of the County has an interest, has been employed or 
retained to solicit or aid in the procuring of the resulting contract, nor that any such person will be 
employed in the performance of such contract without immediate divulgence of such fact to the 
County. 

1 
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E. Non-Collusion 

Attachment A 
RFP No. 10514 
Page 2 of2 

1/We warrant that this offer is made without any previous understanding, agreement or connection 
with any person, firm or corporation submitting a separate proposal for the same project and is in all 
respects fair, without outside control, collusion, fraud or otherwise illegal action. 

F. Insurance Requirements 

1/We agree to the indemnification and insurance requirements provided in the draft contract 
attached to the original RFP and that the cost of complying with the insurance requirements is 
included in our pricing. 1/We agree to provide complete and valid insurance certificates within ten 
(1 0) days of the County's written request and acknowledge that failure to provide the documents 
within the time stated may result in the rejection of this proposal. 

G. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION 
TITLE 49, CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, PART 29 

The proposer, under penalty of perjury, certifies that, except as noted below, he/she or any other 
person associated therewith in the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, manager: 
• is not currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary exclusion, or determination of 

ineligibility by any Federal agency; 
has not been suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded or determined ineligible by any Federal 
agency within the past 3 years; 
does not have a proposed debarment pending; and 
has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against it by a court of 
competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct within the past 
3 years. 

If there are any exceptions to this certification, insert the exceptions in the following space. 

Exceptions will not necessarily result in denial of award, but will be considered in 
determining bidder responsibility. For any exception noted above, indicate below to whom 
it applies, initiating agency, and dates of action. 

Note: Providing false information may result in criminal prosecution or administrative 
sanctions. The above certification is part of the Proposal. Signing this Proposal on the 
signature portion thereof shall also constitute signature of this document. 
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Administering Agency: 

Contract No. 

Contract Description: 

Placer County Health & Human Services 

Attachment B 
RFP No. 10513 

Operation of Medical Clinics -Auburn and Kings Beach, CA 

DRAFT 
CONTRACTOR SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made at Auburn, California, as of ------:::-:::· 20_, by and 
between the County of Placer, ("County"), and ("Contractor"), who 
agree as follows: 

1. Services. County desires to retain Contractor to provide certain services for the operation 
of one or both of the Placer Medical Clinics subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement. , Contractor shall provide the services described in Exhibit A and RFP No. 10513, 
and Contractor's response to said document. Contractor shall provide said services at the time, 
place, and in the manner specified in Exhibit A. 

2. Payment. County shall pay Contractor for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement at 
the time and in the amount set forth in Exhibit B. The payment specified in Exhibit B shall be 
the only payment made to Contractor for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. 
Contractor shall submit all billings for said services to County in the manner specified in Exhibit 
B; or, if no manner be specified in Exhibit B, then according to the usual and customary 
procedures which Contractor uses for billing clients similar to County. The amount of the 
contract shall not exceed Dollars ($ ). 

3. Facilities. Equipment and Other Materials. and Obligations of County. County will make 
available necessary space to carry out the functions agreed to in exhibit A. The space should 
include furniture, fixtures and equipment as deemed necessary after consultation with the 
Contractor. Contractor shall, at its sole cost and expense, furnish all facilities, equipment, and 
other materials which may be required for furnishing services pursuant to this Agreement. 

4. Exhibits. All exhibits referred to herein will be attached hereto and by this reference 
incorporated herein. 

5. Time for Performance. Time is of the essence. Failure of Contractor to perform any 
services within the time limits set forth in Exhibit A shall constitute material breach of this 
contract. 

6. Independent Contractor. At all times during the term of this Agreement, Contractor shall be an 
independent Contractor and shall not be an employee of the County. County shall have the 
right to control Contractor only insofar as the results of Contractor's services rendered pursuant 
to this Agreement. County shall not have the right to control the means by which Contractor 
accomplishes services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. 

1 
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Attachment B 
RFP No. 10513 

7. Licenses, Permits. Etc. Contractor represents and warrants to County that it has all licenses, 
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatsoever nature, which are legally required for 
Contractor to practice its profession. Contractor represents and warrants to County that 
Contractor shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect or obtain at all times during the 
term of this Agreement, any licenses, permits, and approvals which are legally required for 
Contractor to practice its profession at the time the services are performed. 

8. Time. Contractor shall devote such time to the performance of services pursuant to this 
Agreement as may be reasonably necessary for the satisfactory performance of Contractor's 
obligations pursuant to this Agreement. Neither party shall be considered in default of this 
Agreement to the extent performance is prevented or delayed by any cause, present or future, 
which is beyond the reasonable control of the party. 

9. Insurance. Contractor shall file with County a Certificate of Insurance, with companies 
acceptable to County, with a Best's Rating of no less than A-: VII showing the following 
coverage: 

A. WORKER'S COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY INSURANCE: 

Worker's Compensation Insurance shall be provided as required by any applicable Jaw or 
regulation. Employer's liability insurance shall be provided in amounts not less than one million 
dollars ($1 ,000,000) each accident for bodily injury by accident, one million dollars ($1 ,000,000) 
policy limit for bodily injury by disease, and one million dollars ($1,000,000) each employee for 
bodily injury by disease. 

If there is an exposure of injury to Contractor's employees under the U.S. Longshoremen's and 
Harbor Worker's Compensation Act, the Jones Act, or under laws, regulations, or statutes 
applicable to maritime employees, coverage shall be included for such injuries or claims. 

Each Worker's Compensation policy shall be endorsed with the following specific language: 

Cancellation Notice - "This policy shall not be changed without first giving thirty (30) days 
prior written notice and ten (1 0) days prior written notice of cancellation for non-payment 
of premium to the County of Placer." 

Waiver of Subrogation -The workers' compensation policy shall be endorsed to state that 
the workers' compensation carrier waives its right of subrogation against the County, its 
officers, directors, officials, employees, agents or volunteers, which might arise by reason 
of payment under such policy in connection with performance under this agreement by 
the CONTRACTOR. 

Contractor shall require all sub-Contractors to maintain adequate Workers' Compensation 
insurance. Certificates of Workers' Compensation shall be filed forthwith with the County upon 
demand. 

B. GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE: 

1. Comprehensive General Liability or Commercial General Liability insurance covering 
all operations by or on behalf of Contractor, providing insurance for bodily injury 
liability and property damage liability for the limits of liability indicated below and 
including coverage for: 

2 



141

Attachment B 
RFP No. 10513 

(a) Contractual liability insuring the obligations assumed by Contractor in this 
Agreement. 

2. One of the following forms is required: 

(a) Comprehensive General Liability; 
(b) Commercial General Liability (Occurrence); or 
(c) Commercial General Liability (Claims Made). 

3. If Contractor carries a Comprehensive General Liability policy, the limits of liability 
shall not be less than a Combined Single Limit for bodily injury, property damage, 
and Personal Injury Liability of: 

~one million dollars ($1 ,000,000) each occurrence 
~Two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate 

4. If Contractor carries a Commercial General Liability (Occurrence) policy: 

(a) The limits of liability shall not be less than: 

~one million dollars ($1 ,000,000) each occurrence (combined single limit 
for bodily injury and property damage) 
~one million dollars ($1 ,000,000) for Products-Completed Operations 
~Two million dollars ($2,000,000) General Aggregate 

(b) If the policy does not have an endorsement providing that the General 
Aggregate Limit applies separately, or if defense costs are included in the 
aggregate limits, then the required aggregate limits shall be two million 
dollars ($2,000,000). 

5. Special Claims Made Policy Form Provisions: 

Contractor shall not provide a Commercial General Liability (Claims Made) policy 
without the express prior written consent of County, which consent, if given, shall 
be subject to the following conditions: 

(a) The limits of liability shall not be less than: 

~One million dollars ($1 ,000,000) each occurrence (combined single limit 
for bodily injury and property damage) 
~one million dollars ($1 ,000,000) aggregate for Products Completed 
Operations 
~Two million dollars ($2,000,000) General Aggregate 

(b) The insurance coverage provided by CONTRACTOR shall contain 
language providing coverage up to one (1) year following the completion of 
the contract in order to provide insurance coverage for the hold harmless 
provisions herein if the policy is a claims-made policy. 
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Attachment B 
RFP No. 10513 

Conformity of Coverages - If more than one policy is used to meet the required coverages, such 
as a separate umbrella policy, such policies shall be consistent with all other applicable policies 
used to meet these minimum requirements. For example, all policies shall be Occurrence 
Liability policies or all shall be Claims Made Liability policies, if approved by the County as noted 
above. In no cases shall the types of polices be different. 

C. ENDORSEMENTS: 

Each Comprehensive or Commercial General Liability policy shall be endorsed with the following 
specific language: 

1. "The County of Placer, its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers are to be 
covered as an additional insured for all liability arising out of the operations by or on 
behalf of the named insured in the performance of this Agreement." 

2. "The insurance provided by the Contractor, including any excess liability or umbrella 
form coverage, is primary coverage to the County of Placer with respect to any 
insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by the County of Placer and no 
insurance held or owned by the County of Placer shall be called upon to contribute to 
a loss." 

3. "This policy shall not be changed without first giving thirty (30) days prior written 
notice and ten (10) days prior written notice of cancellation for non-payment of 
premium to the County of Placer." 

D. AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE: 

Automobile Liability insurance covering bodily injury and property damage in an amount no less 
than one million dollars ($1 ,000,000) combined single limit for each occurrence. 

Covered vehicles shall include owned, non-owned, and hired automobiles/trucks. 

E. PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE (ERRORS & OMISSIONS): 

Professional Liability Insurance for Errors and Omissions coverage in the amount of not less than 
one million dollars ($1 ,000,000) combined single limit for each occurrence and two million dollars 
($2,000,000) aggregate. 

If Contractor sub-contracts in support of Contractor's work provided for in the agreement, 
Professional Liability Insurance for Errors shall be provided by the sub contractor in an amount 
not less than one million dollars ($1 ,000,000) in aggregate. 

The insurance coverage provided by the Contractor shall contain language providing coverage 
up to one (1) year following completion of the contract in order to provide insurance coverage for 
the hold harmless provisions herein if the policy is a claims made policy. 

F. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS: 

Premium Payments- The insurance companies shall have no recourse against the COUNTY 
and funding agencies, its officers and employees or any of them for payment of any premiums or 
assessments under any policy issued by a mutual insurance company. 
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Policy Deductibles- The Contractor shall be responsible for all deductibles in all of the 
Contractor's insurance policies. The maximum amount of allowable deductible for insurance 
coverage required herein shall be $25,000. 

CONTRACTOR's Obligations - Contractor's indemnity and other obligations shall not be limited 
by the foregoing insurance requirements and shall survive the expiration of this agreement. 

Verification of Coverage- Contractor shall furnish the County with original certificates and 
amendatory endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage 
required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by 
the County before work commences. However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to 
the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's obligation to provide them. The County 
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including 
endorsements required by these specifications, at any time. 

Material Breach- Failure of the Contractor to maintain the insurance required by this agreement, 
or to comply with any of the requirements of this section, shall constitute a material breach of the 
entire agreement. 

10. Hold Harmless And Indemnification. The Contractor hereby agrees to protect, defend, 
indemnify, and hold Placer County free and harmless from any and all losses, claims, liens, 
demands and causes of action of every kind and character including, but not limited to, the 
amounts of judgments, penalties, interest, court costs, legal fees, and all other expenses 
incurred by Placer County arising in favor of any party, including claims, liens, debts, personal 
injuries, death, or damages to property (including employees or property of Placer County) and 
without limitation by enumeration, all other claims or demands of every character occurring or in 
any way incident to, in connection with or arising directly or indirectly out of this contract or 
agreement to the extent that the above arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, 
recklessness, or willful misconduct (all whether by act, error and/or omission) of the Contractor. 
Contractor's obligation shall include the duty to defend Placer County as set forth in California 
Civil Code Sections 2778 and 2782.8. This provision is not intended to create any cause of 
action in favor of any third party against Contractor or Placer County or to enlarge in any way 
the Contractor's liability but is intended solely to provide for indemnification of Placer County 
from liability for damages or injuries to third persons or property arising from Contractor's 
performance pursuant to this contract or agreement. 

As used above, the term Placer County means Placer County or its officers, agents, employees, 
and volunteers. 

11. Contractor Not Agent. Except as County may specify in writing Contractor shall have no 
authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of County in any capacity whatsoever as an agent. 
Contractor shall have no authority, express or implied pursuant to this Agreement to Bind 
County to any obligation whatsoever. 

12. Assignment Prohibited. Contractor may assign its rights and obligations under this 
Agreement only upon the prior written approval of County, said approval to be in the sole 
discretion of County. 
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13. Personnel. 

Attachment B 
RFP No. 10513 

A. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to perform services pursuant to this 
Agreement. In the event that County, in its sole discretion, at any time during the term of this 
Agreement, desires the removal of any person or persons assigned by Contractor to perform 
services pursuant to this Agreement, including those members of the Project Team as 
explained below, Contractor shall remove any such person immediately upon receiving notice 
from County of the desire of County for removal of such person or persons. 

B. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if specific persons are designated as the "Project Team" in 
Exhibit A, Contractor agrees to perform the work under this agreement with those individuals 
identified. Reassignment or substitution of individuals or sub-Contractors named in the Project 
Team by Contractor without the prior written consent of County shall be grounds for 
cancellation of the agreement by County, and payment shall be made pursuant to Section 15 
(Termination) of this Agreement only for that work performed by Project Team members. 

This paragraph does not apply to the removal of County employees, whose employment status 
is determined solely by the County and not the Contractor. 

14. Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform all services required pursuant to this 
Agreement in the manner and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner 
of the profession in which Contractor is engaged in the geographical area in which Contractor 
practices its profession. All products of whatsoever nature which Contractor delivers to County 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be prepared in a substantial first class and workmanlike 
manner and conform to the standards or quality normally observed by a person practicing in 
Contractor's profession. 

15. Termination. 

A. County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time by giving notice in 
writing of such termination to Contractor. In the event County shall give notice of 
termination, Contractor shall immediately cease rendering service upon receipt of such 
written notice, pursuant to this Agreement. In the event County shall terminate this 
Agreement: 

1) Contractor shall deliver copies of all writings prepared by it pursuant to this 
Agreement. The term "writings" shall be construed to mean and include: 
handwriting, typewriting, printing, Photostatting, photographing, and every other 
means of recording upon any tangible thing any form of communication or 
representation, including letters, words, pictures, sounds, or symbols, or 
combinations thereof. 

2) County shall have full ownership and control of all such writings delivered by 
Contractor pursuant to this Agreement. 

3) County shall pay Contractor the reasonable value of services rendered by 
Contractor to the date of termination pursuant to this Agreement not to exceed 
the amount documented by Contractor and approved by County as work 
accomplished to date; provided, however, that in no event shall any payment 
hereunder exceed the amount of the agreement specified in Exhibit B, and 
further provided, however, County shall not in any manner be liable for lost profits 
which might have been made by Contractor had Contractor completed the 
services required by this Agreement. In this regard, Contractor shall furnish to 
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County such financial information as in the judgment of the County is necessary 
to determine the reasonable value of the services rendered by Contractor. The 
foregoing is cumulative and does not affect any right or remedy, which County 
may have in law or equity. 

B. Contractor may terminate its services under this Agreement upon thirty- (30) working 
days' advance written notice to the County. 

16. Non-Discrimination. Contractor shall not discriminate in its employment practices because of 
race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, 
marital status, or sex in contravention of the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, 
Government Code section 12900 et seq. 

17. Records. Contractor shall maintain, at all times, complete detailed records with regard to work 
performed under this agreement in a form acceptable to County, and County shall have the right 
to inspect such records at any reasonable time. Notwithstanding any other terms of this 
agreement, no payments shall be made to Contractor until County is satisfied that work of such 
value has been rendered pursuant to this agreement. However, County shall not unreasonably 
withhold payment and, if a dispute exists, the withheld payment shall be proportional only to the 
item in dispute. 

18. Confidentiality. CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain confidentiality of information and records 
as required by applicable Federal, State and local laws, regulations and rules, and further 
agrees to hold COUNTY harmless from any breach of confidentiality, as set forth in the hold 
harmless provisions contained herein. 

19. Ownership of Information. All professional and technical information developed under this 
Agreement and all work sheets, reports, and related data shall become the property of County, 
and Contractor agrees to deliver reproducible copies of such documents to County on 
completion of the services hereunder. 

19. Waiver. One or more waivers by one party of any major or minor breach or default of any 
provision, term, condition, or covenant of this Agreement shall not operate as a waiver of any 
subsequent breach or default by the other party. 

20. Conflict of Interest. Contractor certifies that no official or employee of the County, nor any 
business entity in which an official of the County has an interest, has been employed or retained 
to solicit or aid in the procuring of this agreement. In addition, Contractor agrees that no such 
person will be employed in the performance of this agreement without immediately notifying the 
County. 

21. Entirety of Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of County and 
Contractor with respect to the subject matter hereof, and no other agreement, statement, or 
promise made by any party, or to any employee, officer or agent of any party, which is not 
contained in this Agreement, shall be binding or valid. 

22. Alteration. No waiver, alteration, modification, or termination of this Agreement shall be valid 
unless made if1 writing and signed by all parties, except as expressly provided in Section 15, 
Termination. 

7 
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Attachment B 
RFP No. 10513 

23. Governing Law and Venue. The parties enter into this Agreement in the County of Placer, 
California and agree to comply with all applicable laws and regulations therein. The laws of the 
State of California shall govern its interpretation and effect. For litigation purposes, the parties 
agree that the proper venue for any dispute related to the Agreement shall be the Placer County 
Superior Court or the United States District Court, Eastern District of California, and 
CONTRACTOR hereby waives the provisions in California Code of Civil Procedure §394. 

24. Contract Term: This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect from (date) through 
(date) . Contract provisions that contain report deadlines or record obligations which occur 
after contract termination survive as enforceable continuing obligations. 

25. HIPAA Compliance: CONTRACTOR agrees, to the extent required by the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), including but not limited to Title 42, United 
States Code, Section 1320d et seq. and its implementing regulations (including but not limited to 
Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Parts 142, 160, 162, and 164), to comply with 
applicable requirements of law and subsequent amendments relating to protected health 
information, as well as any task or activity CONTRACTOR performs on behalf of COUNTY, to 
the extent COUNTY would be required to comply with such requirements. 

More specifically, CONTRACTOR shall not use or disclose confidential information other than 
as permitted or required by this Agreement and will notify COUNTY of any discovered instances 
of breaches of confidentiality. 

Without limiting the rights and remedies of COUNTY elsewhere as set forth in this Agreement, 
COUNTY may terminate this Agreement without penalty or recourse if determined that 
CONTRACTOR violated a material term of the provisions of this section. 

CONTRACTOR ensures that any subcontractors' agents receiving health information related to 
this Agreement agree to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to CONTRACTOR with 
respect to such information. 

26. Notification. Any notice or demand desired or required to be given hereunder shall be in 
writing and deemed given when personally delivered or deposited in the mail, postage prepaid, 
and addressed to the parties as follows: 

COUNTY OF PLACER: CONTRACTOR: 

Placer County Health and Human Services 
Attn: Attn: 

Phone: Phone: 

Any notice so delivered personally shall be deemed to be received on the date of delivery, and 
any notice mailed shall be deemed to be received five (5) days after the date on which it was 
mailed. 

II 

8 
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Executed as of the day first above stated: 

COUNTY OF PLACER 

By: 

Printed Name!Title: 

Approved As to Form- County Counsel: 

By: 

CONTRACTOR: 

By: 

Name: ________________________ __ 

*Title: ---------------

By: 

Name: ________________________ _ 

*Title: -------------------

Attachment C 
RFP No. 10514 

Date: ____ _ 

Date: ____ _ 

Date: ____ _ 

Date: ____ _ 

*If Contractor is a corporation, this agreement must be signed by two corporate officers; one of 
which must be the secretary of the corporation, and the other may be either the President or Vice 
President, unless an authenticated corporate resolution is attached delegating authority to a single officer 
to bind the corporation (California Corporations Code Sec. 313). 

THE FOLLOWING EXHIBITS WILL BE NEGOTIATED, BASED ON THIS RFPAND RESPONDENT'S 
PROPOSAL 
Exhibits 
A. Scope of Services 
B. Payment for Services Rendered 
C. Facilities, Equipment and Other Obligations of County 

1 
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December 11, 20 15 

COUNTY OF PLACER 
DIVISIONS: 

ClAdministration 
0 Centred Services 
0 Information T~:~ohnology 
[]Procurement Services: 
U Revenue SeNices 
0 T elecommuni=lions 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT 

Jerry Gamez, 
Director of Administrative Services 

PROCUREMENT SERVICES DIVISION 
2964 Richardson Drive, 

Auburn, CA 95603 
Phone: (530) 886-2122 

RFP No. 10514 
Operation of Medical Clinics 
Auburn and Kings Beach, CA 

Addendum No. 1 

The due date for responding to this RFP has been extended to: 
January 13, 2016- 5:00pm (Pacific) 

All other requirements, terms, and conditions of this RFP remain in full force and effect. 

Direct all questions regarding this RFP and all associated addenda to: 

April Pay, CPPO, CPPB 
Placer County Procurement 
Phone: 530-889-4253 
Email: apay@placer_ca_gov 
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COUNTY OF PLACER 
DIVISIONS: 

0 Administration 
0 Centro! Services 
J lnforrruJtion Technology 
Cl Procurement Services 
!J Revenue Services 
;:) T elecommuni=tions 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT 

Jerry Gamez, 
Director of Administrative Services 

PROCUREMENT SERVICES DIVISION 

2964 Richardson Drive, 
Auburn, CA 95603 

Phone: (530) 886-2122 

December 17, 2015 
RFP No. 10514 

Operation of Medical Clinics 
Auburn and Kings Beach, CA 

Addendum No. 2 

The purpose of this addendum is to provide responses to requests for information, or to provide 
clarification for issues that are considered to be material to the scope of services described in the RFP. 

No. Request Response 

1. Please clarify whether the dental services It is intended that all medical and dental services 
currently provided at the Kings currently provided at the Kings Beach/Tahoe 
Beach/Tahoe clinic will need to be facility will become the responsibility of the new 
addressed by the new Provider. Provider. 

2. Please provide the County's financial The budget for both clinics combined is provided 
statements for these programs in Attachment 1A to this addendum. The portion 

of the combined budget allocated for Tahoe is 
provided in Attachment 1 B. We do not have 
separate budget figures for the Auburn clinic at 
this time. However, you should be able to use 
both of these attachments to compute the budget 
for Auburn. 

3. Please provide metrics for the quantities of Attachments 2A-C to this addendum include 
various services provided, and estimates Encounter Reports by department, by payor and 
or forecasts for future growth (if any). by visit type. Each report contains separate 

information for each clinic site. 
4. Please provide a flowchart for the services We do not have this documentation. 

currently provided by the County. 

5. Please provide an organizational chart for The current Organizational Chart for the Medical 
the current staff. Clinics program is provided in Attachment 3 to 

this addendum. 

6. Please provide the CPT codes currently Attachments 4A-C contain reports by CPT code 
used by the County. and Procedure code for both Auburn and Tahoe 

combined. We do not have separate data at this 
time for the medical services at each facility. 
However, we have a separate report for the 
procedure codes used for dental service in Tahoe, 
which are shown in Attachment 5. 
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RFP No. 10514 
Auburn and Kings Beach Medical Clinics 
Addendum No. 2 
Page 2 of 2 

No. Request Response 

7. A. We would like floor plans for both the A. The Auburn Clinic is currently housed in a 
Auburn and Tahoe facilities. building which was originally constructed in 

the 1940s as a military barracks facility. It 
does not currently meet OSHPD-3 standards 
and it is fiscally impractical to bring it up to 
those standards. For this reason, we are not 
providing the requested floor plans. 

Floor plans for the Tahoe clinic are provided in 
Attachment 6 to this addendum. 

B. We would also like to make site visits B. The Auburn Clinic is not available for a site 
to both facilities. visit, for the reason stated above. 

The Tahoe facility may be toured by 
appointment only. Contact Maureen Bauman 
at 530-889-7256 to request a visit. 

The due date for responding to this RFP is extended to: 
January 15, 2016 - 5:00 pm (Pacific) 

With the exception of the above noted iterns, all other requirements, terms, and conditions of this RFP 
remain in full force and effect. Your response shall consider and/or address the clarifications 
addressed herein. 

Direct all questions regarding this RFP and all associated addenda to: 

April Pay, CPPO, CPPB 
Placer County Procurement 
Phone: 530-889-4253 
Email: apay@placer.ca.qov 
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COUNTY OF PLACER 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT 

Jerry Gamez, 

December 18, 2015 

DIVISIONS: 
0 Administration 
0 Centro. I Services 
:J Information Technology­
C) Procurement SeiVlces 
0 Revenue SeN ices 
;JTelecommuni<"mtions 

Director of Administrative Services 

PROCUREMENT SERVICES DIVISION 
2964 Richardson Drive, 

Auburn, CA 95603 
Phone: (530) 886-2122 

RFP No. 10514 
Operation of Medical Clinics 
Auburn and Kings Beach, CA 

Addendum No. 3 

The purpose of this addendum is to provide responses to requests for information, or to provide 
clarification for issues that are considered to be material to the scope of services described in the RFP. 

No. Question 

1. If a new Tahoe facility is needed, can it be 
relocated outside of Kings Beach? 

2. a. Which EHR is used by Placer County 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

currently? How long have they been 
live? 

b. Is there an EDR in place? 

c. Are there paper charts in use for the 
past three years? If so, approximately 
how many active patient files are on 

a er? 
Will County grant all clinical and office 
equipment currently in both clinics to the 
awarded applicant? 

Does Placer County employ a call center 
to enroll Medi-Cal patients? 

Is there an active outreach program to 
enroll patients in Medi-Cal orCA health 
exchange? 

Who does billing for Placer County? 

What is the current PPS rate for Auburn 
and Kin s Beach? 

Response 

We would consider alternatives within Placer 
County, however this location is close to the 
communi! needin these services. 
a. We utilize the OCHIN "Epic" EMR system for 

Electronic Health Records. 
Parts of Epic were implemented beginning in 
2010. The Epicare EMR was fully 
implemented in August of 2012. 

b. Our Electronic Dental Record system is 
Dentrix 

c. Paper charts are no longer utilized for 
standard patient visits; they are only required 
to be ke t for 7 ears after im lementation. 

Proposers are invited to request County 
contribution of any resources needed to 
implement the new service model, including any 
combination offunds and/or e uipment. 
There is a call center at the Human Services 
Division of HHS responsible for all Medi-cal 
enrollments. Human Services coordinates the 
assignment to one of the Managed Care 
com anies at the time of the enrollment. 
There is an outreach effort in Placer to enroll 
patients in Medi-Cal. Placer has doubled the 
number of persons enrolled in Medi-Cal since the 
im lementation of the A CA. 
Placer County HHS fiscal staff does the billing for 
the Medical Clinic at this time. 

PPS rate for both sites is $226.92 as of October 1, 
2015 
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RFP No. 10514 
Auburn and Kings Beach Medical Clinics 
Addendum No. 3 
Page 2 of 2 

No. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

Request Response 

List all of the positions at Auburn and Administrative Clerk (1 0) 
Kings Beach that are represented by a Administrative Secretary (1) 
union. Administrative Supervisor (1) 

Client Services Assistant (1) 
Client Services Program Specialist (1) 
Client Services Program Supervisor (1) 
Community Health Aide (1) 
Dental Assistant ( 1) 
Licensed Vocational Nurse (1) 
Medical Assistant (2) 
Mid-Level Practitioner (3) 
Registered Nurse (4) 
Registered Supervising Nurse (1) 

What is the notification period by the A Beilenson Hearing is required for county health 
County for closure of a health center? service closures. It must be noticed 14 days in 

advance of the Board of Supervisors meeting to 
allow public comment. Once the Board approves 
the closure there are no specific time lines in 
statute. It is anticipated that responders to this 
RFP will propose a transition process and 
timeline. 

Clarify that the psychiatrist at Auburn will The County will attempt to transition as many of 
stay with the County. the affected employees as possible into other 

positions. However, the success of that effort is 
dependent on which openings are available within 
the County at the time of the transition. 

II is unclear if applicant will be responsible The awarded Provider will be responsible for 
for mental health in these agreements. Will mental health services to the mild and moderate 
County keep moderate-to-severely as described in the current agreements between 
mentally ill patients and applicant take on mental health and managed care plans. The 
mild-to-moderate? County will continue to provide care for the 

severely mentally ill patients. 

The due date for responding to this RFP remains: 
January 15, 2016 - 5:00 pm Pacific 
(previously extended per Addendum #2) 

With the exception of the above noted items, all other requirements, terms, and conditions of this RFP 
remain in full force and effect. Your response shall consider and/or address the clarifications 
addressed herein. 

Direct all questions regarding this RFP and all associated addenda to: 

April Pay, CPPO, CPPB 
Placer County Procurement 
Phone: 530-889-4253 
Email: apay@placer.ca.gov 
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January 13, 2016 

COUNTY OF PLACER 
DIVISIONS: 

0 Administration 
D Central Services 

0 Information Technology 

0 Procurement Servloes 
0 Revenue SeN ices 
D T elecommunicntions 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT 

Jerry Gamez, 
Director of Administrative Services 

PROCUREMENT SERVICES DIVISION 
2964 Richardson Drive, 

Auburn, CA 95603 
Phone: (530) 886-2122 

RFP No. 10514 
Operation of Medical Clinics 
Auburn and Kings Beach, CA 

Addendum No. 4 

The due date for responding to this RFP has been extended to: 
January 29, 2016-5:00 pm (Pacific) 

All other requirements, terms, and conditions of this RFP remain in full force and effect. 

Direct all questions regarding this RFP and all associated addenda to: 

April Pay, CPPO, CPPB 
Placer County Procurement 
Phone: 530-889-4253 
Email: apay@placer.ca.gov 
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January 13, 2016 

COUNTY OF PLACER 
DIVISIONS: 

0 Adminislr<lllon 

ll Cen!ml Services 
Cl Information Technology 

G Procurement Services 
U Revenue Services 
::J T elec:ommunlcations 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT 

Jerry Gamez, 
Director of Administrative Services 

PROCUREMENT SERVICES DIVISION 
2964 Richardson Drive, 

Auburn, CA 95603 
Phone: (530) 886-2122 

RFP No. 10514 
Operation of Medical Clinics 
Auburn and Kings Beach, CA 

Addendum No. 5 

The Interview Date shown in Section 2.0 has changed. The new date 
is March 11. 2016. The key members of each firm's designated team must be 
available on this date, in the event the County invites the team to interview with 
the selection paneL 

All other requirements, terms, and conditions of this RFP remain in full force and 
effect. 

Direct all questions regarding this RFP and all associated addenda to: 

April Pay, CPPO, CPPB 
Placer County Procurement 
Phone: 530-889-4253 
Email: apay@placer.ca.gov 
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www.wsmcmed.org 

January 15, 2016 

Placer County Dept. of Administrative Services 
Procurement Services Division 
2964 Richardson Drive 
Auburn, CA 95603 

Western Sierra Medical Clinic: Downieville 
209 Nevada Street I PO Box 286 

Downieville, CA 95936 
530-289-3298 I FAX: 530-289-3159 

Western Sierra Medical Clinic: Grass Valley 
844 Old Tunnel Road 

Grass Valley, CA 95945 
530-273-4984/ FAX: 530- 273-7255 

Re: RFP No. I 0514- Operation of Medical Clinics Auburn and Kings Beach, CA 

Dear Sir or Madam: 

Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. ("WSMC") submits the enclosed proposal (original and five 
copies plus one electronic copy on CD) in response to the Placer County Department of 
Administrative Services on behaifofthe Department of Health & Human Services Request for 
Proposals for Operation ofMedicai Clinics Auburn and Kings Beach, CA, RFP No. 10514 (and 
Addendum No. 1 dated December II, 2015, Addendum No.2 dated December I 7, 2015, 
Addendum No.3 dated December 18,2015, and Addendum No.4 dated January 13, 2016). 

WSMC's mailing address is 844 Old Tunnel Road, Grass Valley, CA 95945. 

WSMC submits the enclosed proposal for both the Auburn Clinic and the Kings Beach Clinic. 

The contact person at WSMC for purposes ofthe enclosed proposal is Scott McFarland, CEO, 
whose e-mail address is scott@wsmcmed.org, telephone number is (530) 273-3813, and fax 
number is (530) 273-4573. Please copy Jessica Fraser, Executive Administrative Assistant, with 
all e-mail communications at jessicaf@wsmcmed.org. 

The undersigned is empowered by the Consultant designated by WSMC in the enclosed proposal 
to sign this letter and submit the enclosed proposal, to bind the Consultant to the obligations 
contained in the enclosed proposal, and further indicates by his signature below that WSMC 
intends to adhere to the provisions described in RFP No. I 0514 and the aforementioned addenda, 
and is committed to enter into a binding contract with respect to RFP No. 10514 and the 
aforementioned addenda pursuant to the proposal submitted herewith. 

WESTERN SIERRA MEDICAL CLINIC, INC. 

Scott Mcraifand, CEO 
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TAB A: Qualifications and Experience 

A. Brief Overview and Historv 

Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. ("WSMC") has been serving as Siena County's main 
community health center since 1974 in its Downieville, California facility. Until 2014, WSMC 
operated the Downieville Clinic 24 hours, seven days a week. In 2014, due to declining visits 
con-esponding to a decline in area population and need for services, WSMC changed its hours of 
operation to Monday tlu·u Thursday 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. In an effot1 to meet community concerns, 
WSMC has instituted telemedicine to assist in addressing urgent care situations. 

In 2009, WSMC added a mobile clinic to expand the area of services to include more 
remote re1,~ons of Sien-a and Yuha Counties and to the homeless at the Hospitality House in 
Grass Valley. 

In 2010. WSMC merged with Miners Community Clinic in Nevada County, and became 
the surviving corporation. Since the merger, WSMC has, through its sites in Grass Valley and 
Downieville, transitioned to become the leading community health center and healthcare 
provider in both Nevada County and Sierra County. 

WSMC embraces the tenets of seeking to provide affordable, quality health care for the 
poor and medically disenfranchised. WSMC is committed to serving low income residents of all 
counties in which it has a medical facility (Sien-a, Yuha and Nevada Counties, and soon Placer 
County) and to ensure that all patients receive accessible and affordable health care services. 

WSMC's vision is to be the health provider of choice promoting the health and wellness 
of Placer, Nevada, Siena and Yuba counties through its model of patient-centered care. WSMC's 
mission is to provide accessible, quality medical, dental and behavioral health services through 
innovative, patient-centered care employing the specific values of excellence and innovation 
resulting in the best possible and cost-effective patient care, dedication to respecting patients and 
their families' need for emotional support, treating every patient and staff member with 
thoughtful consideration and understanding of each other's circumstances, and protecting 
resources today to ensure success in WSMC's mission tomorrow. 

By submitting this proposal, WSMC seeks to establish a strong foundation and 
partnership with the County of Placer as it expands its sites of operation to include Auburn, and 
to collaborate, as it has done in other communities in which it serves, with the County of Placer 
for mutual participation, encouragement, support and collaboration to provide affordable, quality 
health care for the poor, low-income and medically disenfranchised. WSMC seeks to further its 
partnership with the County of Placer through its relationships and agreements with other 
Auburn and Placer County agencies, including Community Recovery Resources ("CoRR"), 
Sutter Auburn Faith Hospital, Sierra College, Pride Industries, and Freed. Attached hereto are 
letters of support from some ofWSMC's partners (who were kind enough to provide them under 
the time constraint) speaking to WSMC's value as a partner in the healthcare community. 

1 
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With a solid standing as a long-time FQHC, experience in opening new facilities. strong 
foundation of management and leadership, financial stability, strong patient-centered 
relationships. and history of collaboration and pmtnerships in the communities it serves. WSMC 
foresees establishing itself, in conjunction with the County of Placer. as becoming a leader in 
providing healthcare services in Placer County in the very near future. This ceJiainly has been 
WSMC's desire and plan, which already is in pro~o'fess and which now includes an enhanced 
partnership with the County of Placer vis- a-vis this proposal and resulting contract awm·d. 

B. Specific Requested Information 

WSMC has been a 330 Grant funded Federally Qualified Health Center since 2007. 

WSMC currently operates in three sites, two in Grass Valley and one in Downieville, and 
has a mobile clinic that serves three sites. WSMC is in process of opening sites in Penn Valley. 
Aubum. and Roseville. 

In 2014, WSMC completed construction of a new facility at 844 Old Tunnel Road in 
Grass Valley. This expansion allows WSMC to provide the following services onsite: 

Primary and Preventative Care 

Pediatric 

Matemity 

Dental 

Behavioral Health 

Teen Clinic 

Nutrition 

Case Management 

Pharmacy Services 

Lab Services 

Veterans Services 

Senior Care 

Workshops and Educational Classes 

Specialties of 

Obstetrics and Gynecology 

Gastrointestinal 

Physical and Rehabilitative Medicine 

2 
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Psychiatry 

Urgent Care 

In the CoRR facility in Grass Valley in which WSMC leases space, WSMC provides 
primary care, mental health services, and sLibstance recovery services, WSMC is in process of 
including pain management services for patients involved in CoRR 's prot,'Tams in the Grass 
Valley facility. 

WSMC mobile clinics offer services at Hospitality House in Grass Valley (a homeless 
shelter for the region), and in Camptonvi1Je and Washint,1on. 

WSMC provides the following services in its Downievi11e clinic: 

Primary care 

Dental 

Urgent care 

In 2016, WSMC will begin operating a clinic in Penn Valley, California, in a building 
purchased by WSMC in 2015, to provide the following services: 

Family Medical 

Dental 

Behavioral health 

In the Grass Valley site, WSMC has the following providers on statf: 

Provider Type 

Nurse Practitioner 

Dentist 

Pedialiic MD 

Behavioral Health 

Physician Assistant 

Family Medicine MD 

Registered Nurse 

Midwife 

OBIGYN MD 

Number of Providers 

4 

3 

4 

3 

4 

8 

3 

FTE Total 

2.0 

1.8 

.8 

1.6 

4.0 

4.6 

.9 

.6 

.8 
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In the Downieville site, WSI\1C has the following providers on staff: 

Provider T vpe Number of Providers FTE Total 

Nurse Practitioner -~ 

WSI\1C wi][ have on staff at its Penn Va][ey facility one part-time physician. one nurse 
practitioner and/or physician assistant, one LCSW, and one dentist. 

WSI\1C's Board of Directors consists of [ 4 Directors. 

WSI\1C currently serves 633 patients in its Downievi][e site, with 180 patient visits over 
per month on average over the past 12 months. 

WSI\1C cmTently serves 15,603 patients in its Grass Va][ey site, with over 45,000 patient 
visits over the past 12 months. 

WSI\1C has Spanish speaking interpreters on staff to assist its Spanish speaking patients 
and has access to other translation and disability assistance services. 

WSI\1C intends to expand operations and open facilities in Auburn, Rosevine' and 
Truckee. WSMC is positioned perfectly to assist Placer County Health and Human Services in 
a warm hand-off of its patients at both the Auburn and Kings Beach clinics. 

Recognizing the need for a community health center in Placer County based on 
conversations WSI\1C had with Placer County officials (and that WSI\1C already has 946 uniqne 
patients coming from Placer County to its Grass Valley facility for 6,3 70 visits in the past three 
years), and that situating a clinic in Placer County would ti.1rther the provider recruitment 
corridor for WSI\1C (three providers working at WSI\1C's Grass Valley facility commute fi·om 
Placer County), WSI\1C's Board of Directors approved expanding WSI\1C's operations in Placer 
County, and specifically opening a new facility in Auburn in 2016. Since that directive was 
made, WSMC has been working with real estate professionals to identify sites of service, has 
been in discussions with landlords of various facilities, has begun forging relationships in Placer 
County with Sutter Auburn Faith Hospital (WSI\1C is negotiating with Sutter Auburn Faith to 
secure a transfer at,>reement and OB/GYN privileges) and Sierra College, and has engaged in 
strategic planning with CaRR. Recently, WSMC identified suitable space in a building in 
Auburn to build two adjoining medical suites (see below). 

1 WSMC is not submitting a response to Placer County Health and Human Services Request for Proposal with 
Respect to the Cirby Hills facility as WSMC is presently in negotiations to lease space adjacent to CaRR to open a 
facility in collaboration with CaRR right across the street from the County's Cirby Hills facility, which is expected to 
be finalized by March 2016. 

4 
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In addition to providing primary and preventative care (and eventually dental, lab 
services and phannacy services) in Aubum, WSMC is positioned to work collaboratively with 
Placer County Health and Human Service5 as a partner with CoRR to address specialty access to 
behavioral health sen·ices and substance abuse disorder treatment. WSMC will also provide 
public health preventative care to Placer County patients through expansion of its HEDIS 
programs. 

WSMC has been nurturing an aJTangement with SietTa College for coordination of 
student clinical nursing training at WSMC"s Grass Valley site (and eventually at its site in 
Auburn). which recently was reduced to an a&'feement the parties are preparing to execute. 

WSMC works with Pride Industries and FREED in Nevada County and will work with 
those agencies in Placer County to provide services and employment opportunities to their 
participants. 

WSMC already has out&'fown its Grass Valley facility. The number of patients served by 
the facility has &'Town 59% since the facility was opened in 2014. Recently, WSMC expanded 
the services offered in its facility to include OB/GYN, phannacy and urgent care services. ln 
order to make space available for providers to serve its ever-growing number of patients, WSMC 
has located a facility in Auburn to serve its 946 Placer County patients and to serve new patients 
in and around the Auburn area. 

As previously mentioned, opening a facility in Auburn to serve its existing patients will 
have another important benefit to WSMC, which is maintaining recruitment corridors for 
qualified providers who share WSMC's mission and values. Three providers already commute 
from Placer County to work in WSMC's Grass Valley clinic and WSMC seeks to add providers 
from Placer County as the number of patients from Placer County served by WSMC and its 
services continue to grow. 

WSMC is working with its architect and contractor for improvements to two suites in a 
building originally constructed as medical suites located at 12183 Locksley Lane, Auburn to 
open a facility, with an option to lease an additional third suite, and continues to negotiate a lease 
that includes tenant improvements as those improvements are identified. The suites are adjacent 
to space leased by CoRR, WSMC's partner in substance abuse treatment. The two suites consist 
of I ,736 square feet and will situate WSMC in a matter of a few months to have a facility 
available to serve its Placer County patients and to accept additional patients including the 
transition of Placer County Health and Human Services' Auburn patients. The third suite is 
reserved at this time for future expansion to include dental, lab and pharmacy services onsite and 
potentially other services, or more primary care providers, as the Auburn community's needs are 
assessed. 

With respect to the Kings Beach clinic, WSMC desires to assume responsibility for 
serving the patients at Placer County Health and Human Services' Kings Beach facility as well. 
WSMC previously has been in discussions with CoRR regarding partnering to expand substance 
abuse treatment services in the Kings Beach area where CoRR 's facility at 8491 North Lake 
Boulevard is situated, potentially in Truckee, and at CoRR 's Cirby Way facility in RoseYille. as 
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well as other locations. Assuming responsibility for Placer County's patients in Kings Beach 
will penn it WSMC to further collaborative efforts with CoRR to expand behavioral health and 
substance abuse treatment in Kings Beach, and WSMC has the capacity and prm·en ability to 
manage the additional clinic and provide the same patient services now being provided at the 
Kings Beach clinic by Placer County Health and Human Services. WSMC's proposal submitted 
herewith with respect to the Kings Beach clinic dovetails nicely with WSMC's existing plans to 
expand on its partnership with CoRRin Kings Beach. This proposal enhances that collaborative 
effort by providing WSMC with the opportunity also to provide primary care and dental services 
in Kings Beach. 

C. Status of HRSA-Reguired Terms/Conditions 

WSMC operates in part through a 330 Grant issued by HRSA. WSMC is ''condition­
free" with respect to its 330 Grant and achieved a perfect score on a recent HRSA site inspection. 

D. Management Team 

Scott McFarland. Chief Executive Oflicer 

Mr. McFarland has been the CEO ofWSMC since 2008, after serving as Executive Director of 
Peach Tree Clinic in Yuba County. He holds a Master's det,'Tee in in Clinical Psychology and a 
Master of Business Administration. Mr. McFarland has overseen expansion of the health center 
dUJing this time, with particularly extensive t,'Towth dUJing the last year, including sites in Grass 
Valley, Downieville, at CaRR, and new sites in Auburn and Penn Valley opening in 2016. Mr. 
McFarland oversees care to more than 20,000 patients in Nevada, Sierra, and Yuba Counties. 
providing more than 55,000 visits a year in a multi-specialty type practice that includes mental 
health, Obstetrical, and dental services. Mr. McFarland serves on the Board of the California 
Primary Care Association and on its Executive Committee. He is also Chair of the California 
Primary Care Association's Workforce Development Committee, and fanner Chair and current 
member of California Primary Care Association's Rural Health Committee. Mr. McFarland 
serves on the Public Policy Committee of California Health & Wellness and is a current member 
of the Rotary Club of Grass Valley. In the past, he has served as Chair of the Nevada County 
Health Collaborative, Board President at the Health Alliance of Northern California, Board 
Member of the Rotary Club of Grass Valley, and Board Member of the Yuba City Kiwanis Club. 

Francine Novak, Chief Operating Officer 

Ms. Novak has overseen all aspects ofWSMC's daily operations for over 8 years, including 
manat,,jng its expansions and multiple sites, staffing, procedures, billing, front office, medical 
records, and patient satisfaction. She is also a member of the Compliance Committee and Quality 
Improvement Committee, which helps ensure that WSMC achieves its mission to provide 
affordable, quality care in the communities it serves. Ms. Novak has more than 15 years of 
leadership experience in community health care and adult day health care. She received her 
degree in accounting from Heald Business College, and has received ongoing education through 
the Blue Shield Clinic Leadership Institute. 
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Tom Monissev, Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Monissey has overseen financial management of WSMC's sites for more than 5 years. He 
previously served for 19 years as CFO at SieiTa Nevada Memmial Hospital and more recently 
three and a half years as CFO at Medical Benefits Administration. Mr. Morrissey has more than 
30 years of health care financial management experience and is very active in 1\evada County 
nonprofits, ranging from Gold Country Kiwanis to Sierra Nevada Community Health Plan to 
Hospitality House. 

Dr. Glenn Thiel. Chief Medical Ot11cer 

Dr. Thiel is the Chief Medical Ofticer for Westem Sierra, where he ranks among his most 
important accomplishments providing care to people "who normally don't get it and need it". 
Dr. Thiel is an Osteopathic Physician, with a special interest in in musculoskeletal problems and 
is trained in Osteopathic Manipulative Medicine, i.e. body work. He is Board Certified in 
Holistic Medicine. He did his family medicine residency at University ofCalifomia, Davis. Dr. 
Thiel worked with the State of Califomia for more than a decade, overseeing the implementation 
of services for persons with disabilities and those in coJTectional facilities. l-Ie is also a trained 
psychologist. 

Dr. Robert Simon Lyss. lntetim Acting Chief Medical Officer 

Dr. Lyss recently joined WSMC as Interim Acting Chief Medical Officer as Dr. Thiel transitions 
to clinical time in preparation for retirement. Dr. Lyss is a Dennatology Physician and is 
certified by the American Board of Dermatology. l-Ie served as Regional Medical Director and 
Group Medical Director for Kaiser Pennanente, Northeast Region, and in that capacity served as 
Chairman of the Kaiser Pennanente Committee (a group consisting of the 30 most senior 
managers of the Kaiser Permanente Medical Care Pro,gram), on the Finance Committee, 
Legislative Subcommittee, and as Co-Chairman of the Information Services Steering Committee 
of the Kaiser Pennanente Medical Care Program. He previously served as Chairman of Medical 
Directors, Chainnan of the Expansion Region Alliance, and Chainnan of the Expansion Region 
Medical Directors for Kaiser Permanente. Prior to his position as Ret,<ional Medical Director of 
Kaiser Permanente Northeast Region, Dr. Lyss served as Group Medical Director. Northeast 
Permrmente Medical Group, P.C., New York, Associate Regional Medical Director of Kaiser 
Permanente Northeast Region, as Chief of Staff ofthe Kaiser Foundation Hospital and as 
Physician-in-Chief, The Permanente Medical Group, Kaiser Permanente Medical Center, Walnut 
Creek, Califomia, and as Assistant Chief of Staff, Kaiser Foundation Hospital and Assistant 
Physician-in-Chief, Chief of Quality Assurance, Chief of Staff Education, and Staff 
Dermatolot,<ist for The Permanente Medical Group, Kaiser Permanente Medical Center, 
Hayward, California. After working for Kaiser Pennanente for twenty-eight years, Dr. Lyss 
worked as Medical Director, Senior Vice President for Health Affairs, and Chief Medical Officer 
for Health Partners of the Southeast. 
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Juan Alberto Chavez. DDS. Dental Director 

Dr. J. Alherto Chavez is WSMC's Dental Director. Dr. Chavez t,>raduated from dental school at 
the National University of Mexico. He took the dental hoards at Lorna Linda University. 
Califomia in 1996. Prior to relocating to Grass Va11ey, Dr. Chavez practiced general dentistry in 
the Los Angeles area for 17 years. He grew up in Texas and Mexico City, and speaks fluent 
Spanish. 

Darin Peters. Chieflnfonnation Officer 

Mr. Peters oversees alllnt<mnation Technology planning and strategies at WSMC providing 
oversight of network administration, staff technology and training. infonnation security. 
reporting tools. patient portal and the Electronic Health Records systems. He has more than 25 
years' expetience in various management and leadership roles. Prior to joining Western Sierra 
Medical Clinic, Mr. Peters led the Quality Assurance Development Department for a residential 
facility organization that serves children and adolescents suffering from severe emotional 
disturbances throughout the state of California. He has worked for a number of technology. 
communications and marketing companies throughout the Western United States. Mr. Peters 
helped to develop, write and prot,>ram many software packages and analytical systems. He is a 
Commandant's List h'Taduate of both the US Army Leadership Development and Adjutant 
General's School. 

Cheryl Ruhin. Planning & Development Director 

Ms. Ruhin builds awareness for WSMC directing community engagement. mmketing. fund 
development and other activities. Previously she served as a Senior Analyst with Nevada 
County's Health & Human Services Agency, ran her own public relations firm and was Vice 
President of Communications for the Califomia Forest Products Commission and The Forest 
Foundation. Ms. Rubin began her PR career with a Madison Avenue finn. She is a recipient of 
the Silver Anvil Award, the Public Relations Society of America's highest honor. In 
Washington, DC, Ms. Rubin served as United Way of America's PR Director. She also worked 
for ABC TV's "Good Moming America." Ms. Rubin is active in the community and served on 
the Board of Directors for the Center for Nonprofit Leadership and Nevada County Digital 
Media Center/NCTV. She emned her Bachelor's deb>ree in journalism. minor in political science. 
with honors from the University of Georgia. 

Andrew Hanis, Chief Legal and Administrative Officer 

Mr. Hanis joined WSMC in 2015 to oversee its compliance and human resources and assist in 
business development. He served as Western Sierra Medical Clinic's attomey from 2012 to 
2015. Mr. Hanis eamed a Juris Doctorate degree in 2001 from Lincoln Law School of 
Sacramento, was Valedictmian of his class, and was admitted to the State Bar in 2001. Before 
becoming an attorney, 'v1r. Harris worked for thirteen years as a paralegal and law clerk during 
which time he worked on many matters including assisting publicly traded companies with 
reporting and compliance issues, mergers and acquisitions, securities class actions, and complex 
civil litigation. He is an active member of the community and serves on the Board of Directors 
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of the Greater Grass Valley Chamber of Commerce and as the Chairman of its Business and 
Govemment Committee. Mr. Hanis has served on the Boards of the Nevada County Girls 
Softball Association and Grass Valley Little League, as an officer ofthe Nevada County Bar 
Association, and as Chainnan of the Mandatory fee Arbitration Program for the Nevada County 
Bar Association. 

E. Collaboration Experience 

WSMC partners and collaborates with several agencies and providers to deliver a broad 
spectrum of services throughout the community. including: 

Community Recovery Resources (CoRR), Grass Valley: WSMC provides onsite 
services to patients by referral for substance abuse/dependence, mental health, chronic 
pain management services and primary care at CoRR 's Grass Valley. facility. 

County of Nevada, Grass Valley: WSMC collaborates with the County of Nevada to 
enhance emergency preparedness and response effmts in the event of a large-scale 
disaster, and stores its Mobile Medical Unit on the County's property. 

Nevada County Transit Services Division- Gold Country Stage (Gold Country), 
Grass Valley: WSMC patients that are at or below 200%, of the Federal Poverty 
guidelines receive transportation assistance through one-way transp011ation vouchers. 

Sierra County, Loyalton: WSMC provides services to Sierra County Human Services­
Drug/Alcohol Programs and the Sierra County Jail. 

Sierra & Eastern Plumas Counties: Pru1nership between Sierra and Plumas Counties 
with WSMC to develop a working collaboration. 

Sierra Nevada Memorial Hospital, Grass Valley: Clinical laboratory services are 
provided at WSMC's Grass Valley facility by Dignity Health-Sierra Nevada Memorial 
Hospital for orders by WSMC medical providers. WSMC has access for Hospitalist 
hospital admission services, including discharge planning, for the patients of WSMC. 
WSMC provides OB/GYN and emergency department call coverage. Transfer agreement 
provides hospital admission for patients ofWSMC. WSMC participates in the Greater 
Sierra HIO (GSHIO) patient record data storage portal for appropriate data access for 
optimal coordinated patient care via WSMC's eClinicalWorks EMR system. 

Sierra Nevada Memorial Hospital and Community Recovery Resources: Under this 
triparty arrangement, patients that are in need of a primary care provider or in need of 
substance abuse/dependence, mental health and chronic pain management services may 
be admitted to the hospital for treatment by hospital staff in conjunction with providers 
and staff of CoRR and WSMC. 
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Sierra College, Rocklin: Nurse training clinical program ab~·eement to allow students to 
receive clinical training as required for their deb'fee (agreement near consummation). 

Sutter Auburn Faith Hospital, Auburn: WSMC is in negotiations with Sutter Auburn 
Faith with respect to a transfer agreement pursuant to which Sutter Auburn Faith will 
allow access for Hospitalist hospital admission services, and including discharge 
planning, for Placer County patients ofWSMC by referral only, and for 08/GY!\ 
privileges at the hospital to treat and deliver WSMC's Placer County maternity patients. 

FREED Center for Independent Living, Grass Valley: WSMC renders services on an 
as-needed basis. 

Friendship Club, Nevada City: WSMC renders services on an as-needed basis. 

Hospitality House, Grass Valley: WSMC renders services on an as-requested basis. 
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Community Recovery Resources 
A Wellness-Focuscd Recovery Organization 

I Auburn I Grass Valley I Kings Beach I Lincoln I Roseville I Truckee I 

Date: 1/12/16 

April Pay, CPPO, CPPB 
Placer County Procurement 

2964 Richardson Drive 

Auburn, CA 95603 

Dear Ms. Pay: 

Re: Suppm1 for Western Siena Medical Clinic's Proposals for Operation ofMcdical Clinics in Auburn and Kings Beach, 
CA,RFPNo.l0514. 

Community Recovery Resources (CaRR) is pleased to offer our support of Western Siena Medical Clinic, Inc. (WSMC) 
as it seeks to provide quality health care services to residents of Placer County through a planned transition with the 
Placer County Health & Human Services. 

WSMC is an engaged collaborator in the region, working diligently to suppon partnership efforts, and in many cases 
leading the way. WSMC, the largest outpatient health care provider in Nevada County, has a proven record of doing 
effective work in the community through many collaborative agreements with community partners, from the Nevada 
County Public Health and Health & Human Services agencies to nonprofits and Sierra Nevada Memorial Hospital. 

CoRR is a non-profit organization, and has been saving and improving lives through substance abuse treatment and 
mental health services since 1974 and has been growing over the years to meet the needs of the communities in Placer and 
Nevada counties. WSMC works with CoRR to address the mental health and substance abuse services needs of 
communities through many collaborations, including among the Board of Directors of both organizations. 

The two health care providers are implementing long-term strategies to integrate primary care, behavioral health and 
specialty services such as substance abuse and pain management. They teamed up to create a unique partnership to benefit 
patients- all under one roof in Grass Valley.ln 2014, a medical clinic operated by WSMC was located within CoRR, first 
open to patients only one day a week and bas already expanded to three days a week. WSMC and CoRR also have a 
referral agreement to address substance abuse/dependence, mental health and chronic pain management. 

Ibis formula for success is expanding to Placer County, where WSMC and CoRR are developing and implementing 
strategies to put similar services in place. In addition, WSMC and CoRR have collaborated on grants, including one to 
establish an integrated program to identifY, serve and provide ongoing support of residents with disabilities in need of 
mental health and treatment for chemical dependency. They partnered with other Nevada County providers to develop the 
Healthy Outcomes Intervention Team (HOlT), t11e Nevada County Integrated Mental Health Program. 

Our relationship with WSMC has worked so well in Neyada County and serves as a model for what can be achieved in 
Placer County. As a capable collaborator with extensive experience, I believe WSMC will be able to forge innovative 
partnerships in Placer County to value the entire community. WSMC is actively engaged in the community. We urge you 
to establish a partnership with WSMC to enable the organization to expand its vital work as a safety-net health services 
provider in Placer County. 

Sincerely, d~~!--2~'-"=~~\::::~"""::..-> 
Warren Daniels, CEO 

Steve Martino 
President 

Ron Abram 
Vice-President 

Chip Arenchild 
Vice-President 

Nancy Kelly 
Secretary 

Roger Baker " Lynn Van Camp " Bob Henk " Bill Wilcock " Lee Osbome 

I www.CoRR.us I 1-855-HOPE-4-YOU I Tax ID 94-22750911 
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U Dignity Health. 
~(:(" Sierra Nevada Memorial Hospital 

January 12,2016 

April Pay, CPPO, CPPB 
Placer Cotmty Procurement 
2964 Richardson Drive 
Auburn, CA 95603 

Dear Ms. Pay: 

155 Glasson 'v\'zy 

Gra5s Valley, C/1 95945 
S3J 27<:.6000 
53iJ 274.6614 far 

Re: Suppmt for Western Sierra Medical Clinic's Proposals for Operation of Medical Clinics Auburn and 
Kings Beach, CA, RFP No. l 0514. 

Sien·a Nevada Memorial Hospital is pleased to offer our support of Western Siena Medical Clinic, Inc. 
(WSMC) as it seeks to provide quality health care services to residents of Placer County through a 
planned transition with the Placer County Department of Health & Human Services. 

WSMC is an engaged collaborator in the region, working diligently to support partnership efforts 
throughout is service area, and in many cases leading the way. WSMC, the largest outpatient health care 
provider in Nevada County, has a proven record of doing effective work in the community through 
many collaborative agreements with community partners, from the Nevada County Public Health 
Department and Health & Human Services agency to nonprofits and Siena Nevada Memorial Hospital. 

Siena Nevada Memorial Hospital's collaboration with WSMC includes: a transfer agreement that allows 
for prompt transfer of patients and records from WSMC to the hospital; a refenal agreement for 
diagnostic x-ray services; hospital services for admission and discharge planning; collaborative 
arrangements with the ER and Discharge Departments to provide continuity of care for mutual patients 
who utilize our hospital services; and strategic planning. 

WSMC also has a contract with Community Recovery Resources (CoRR) substance abuse treatment 
center and Siena Nevada Memorial Hospital that enables patients who are admitted to the hospital and 
who are in need of a primary care provider or in need of substance abuse/dependence, mental health and 
chronic pain management services to be refened to WSMC and CaRR by the hospital staff. 

As a capable collaborator with extensive experience, I believe WSMC will be able to forge innovative 
partnerships in Placer County to value the entire community. 

WSMC is actively engaged in the community. We urge you to establish a partnership with WSMC to 
enable the organization to expand its vital work as a safety-net health services provider in Placer 
Co 

at er ne A. Mede~<o::--~----~ 
President I CEO 
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SIERRA. C~LLEGE 

January 12, 2016 

April Pay, CPPO, CPPB 
Placer County Procurement 
2964 Richardson Drive 
Auburn, CA 9S603 

Dear Ms. Pay: 

Re: Support for Western Sierra Medical Clinic's Proposals for Operation of Medical Clinics Auburn 
and Kings Beach, CA, RFP No. 10S14. 

The Sierra College Nursing Program is pleased to offer our support of Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 
(WSMC) as it seeks to provide quality health care services to residents of Placer County through a 
planned transition with the Placer County Department of Health & Human Services. 

WSMC is an engaged collaborator in the region, working diligently to support partnership efforts 
throughout is service area, and in many cases leading the way. WSMC, the largest outpatient health care 
provider in Nevada County, has a proven record of doing effective work in the community through many 

collaborative agreements with community partners, from the Nevada County Public Health Department 
and Health & Human Services agency to nonprofits and Sierra Nevada Memorial Hospital. 

WSMC approached our nursing department to ascertain possible clinical opportunities for our nursing 
students, as well as allied health jobs that could benefit the residents of Nevada County. I was so 
impressed by the entire organization and all that it offered for the community; I knew that this would be 
an incredible partnership. 

WSMC's agreement with Sierra College will allow Associate Degree nursing students to work with the 
pediatric population in a community-based environment. During this invaluable clinical rotation, our 
students will work with WSMC Pediatricians and RNs, as they collaborate and implement care on the 

outpatient needs of children. Our pediatric instructor will also work with WSMC to plan and sustain the 
learning objectives as outlined by the Board of Registered Nursing. Having an additional WSMC site in 
Placer County would allow for even more educational opportunities for our nursing students, in an 
environment close to home. As a nurse practitioner with extensive experience1 I believe WSMC will be 

able to forge innovative partnerships in Placer County to value the entire community. 

sooo Rocklin Road I Rocklin CA 95677 I (916) 624-3333 I www.sierracollege.edu 
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WSMC is actively engaged in the community. I urge you to establish a partnership with WSMC to enable 
the organization to expand its vital work as a safety-net health services provider in Placer County. 

Sincerely, 

/1th'-'j 9-Jdv~ 
Nancy J Schwab, MS RN CRNP 
Associate Dean of Nursing and Allied Health 
Sierra College 
(916)660-8302 
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January 13, 2016 

Ap~IPay, CPPO, CPPB 
Placer County Procurement 
2964 Richardson Drive 
Auburn. CA 95603 

Dear Ms. Pay: 

Re: Support for Western Sierra Medical Clinic's Proposals for Operation of Medical Clinics Auburn 
and Kings Beach, CA, RFP No. 10514. 

Placer Independent Resource Services (PIRS) is pleased to offer our support of Western Sierra 
Medical Clinic, Inc. (WSMC) as it seeks to provide quality health care services to residents of Placer 
County with facilities in Auburn and North Tahoe through a planned transition with the Placer County 
Department of Health & Human Services. 

PIRS is the federal and state designated Independent living Center serving individuals with disabilities 
throughout Placer, ElDorado and Alpine Counties, enabling them to live as independently as they are 
able in the community, rather than institutionalization. PIRS mission is to advocate, empower, 
educate and provide services for people with disabilities enabling them to control their alternatives for 
independent living. 

WSMC is an engaged collaborator in the region, working diligently to support partnership efforts 
throughout its service area, and in many cases leading the way. WSMC is the largest outpatient 
health care provider in Nevada County. It has a proven record of doing effective work in the 
community through many collaborative agreements with commun'ity partners, from the Nevada 
County Public Health Department and Health & Human Services agency to community-based 
nonprofit organizations and Sierra Nevada Memorial Hospital (SNMH). 

The Freed Independent Living Center, which is similar to PIRS and based in Nevada County, already 
collaborates with WSMC in many ways. This includes developing and implementing shared grants 
with SNMH and Community Recovery Resources, a substance abuse treatment center, which has 
reduced readmission rates at the hospital- a strategy that could be implemented with Sutter Auburn 
Faith Hospital. PIRS would be open to developing similar collaboration strategies with WSMC also. 

We believe WSMC would engage with our Placer County community as it does with Nevada County, 
using its broad experience to forge innovative partnerships. We urge you to establish a partnership 
with WSMC, expanding its vital work as a safety-net health service provider into Placer County. 

SLM: 
1! 76X Atwood Rd ... ~'u. 21J e Auburn. Cal~Fornia CJ56fl3 

1 liHc/') 1-81!1!-833-3453 • (TIT! 531!--fif.i5-03Jfl•l f(l.r! S.W-885-31i3.! 
H'll'W.pi.rS.OrJ:: 
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Hospitality 
l-In 1 1 '".'· e ..; \., . ....,:} ... ~ 

Apnl Pa~. CPPO. CI'PB 
Pla~~~..T Count~ Proctn:mcnt 
206:.! R ichard::>Pn Ori,·c 
1\llht~rn ('A t.J~(,().._ 

Dear Ms. Pa_v. 

Re: Suppon for \Vcsi;;!nt St~rra f'vlcdical Clime's Prop\)S~t!s for Opt:r~tti·~rn of JVkdico.! C!ini;,.·s 
Auburn and Kjngs Beach. CA. RFP No. !05 !4. 

Hospital if\ House IS a leased to offer our support ofWcstorn Sierra iVIed teal Ciinic. Inc. (WSiviC:J 
~~s H seeks to proviU.c qualtcy health care services to residents of Plac\..~r County through J pbHnccJ 
[ransition n1th the Pbc._:r Coum~ Dcpartmelli: ofll .. :alth tt Hum:w S-.:1\·ic:c.s. 

\\'SMC is an engaged colbborawr in the rt:gion. \\'Drkwg diligently w support partnership d'fons 
throughout is sen-tee area. and in m~my cases kading rh,· way. \\'SMC. th~..: brgt:st ouq~alic:nl 
health carr..:: rrm·Jdcr in ~t:\acb Count~. hJ.s J proven record of dotng dl~:cti Vl' '.vorl-. til t\H.· 

community through rnany collaborati\-:.: agreements v.:ith communit~ p~rtncrs. from th:: Nevada 
Ct)unty Public H-:alth Dcpanm..::nl and Health & Human Scrnces [Jg~nc~ to nonpmfits .uncl St·..;rra 
Nl'vada M:.:::moria\ Hospital 

Hospitality Housc· is a SO! {c) (3) nonprofi! cummunity shdtt.:r fuJ the Hom...::i{.;SS in N~,.•\'ada 
County ft.mc!:;d p:·tmarily by individuaiLkmatwus. Tht: y~.:ar-round sht;;I!Gr is a m1 tukTJUC(.: saf~· 

haven: tbos.:: sc~:king shelter at Hospiwlit~ House arc offered thr(.'e meals. along \.Yilh bundr~ ~md 

shower f~tcilitics. Hospitality House is commit1ed to ending hom~lessncs.s b:. providing intens1vc 
cas~ m<J.nJgemcnt ~~,.:r·, ices to .:dl its guest::;. 

\VSMC. the only maJor mtdJca.l prm·idcr forth~ homeless in Nt .. :vada County. brings h:...·alth ..:are 
services W our shdter lhrough a volunkcr team of mecltcal providt"TS. Thcr:...~ is a lot of attt.::ntion 
on ways: to hdp rn-:ct th-.~ n.::cds of homeless people in our comnmntty and in neighboring Pbccr 
County. The W5l'v!C-f-lospit~litv House program thQt hQs worked so well here could be a '"odd 
for what can be achieved in Placer Count\· J.S wdl 

As a capable eollabor3tor with extensive C\\pt:ricnce. I bclicVL~ 'vVSfV·JC will be abl~ to forge 
innovative panncrships in Placer County' to valu-.~ th;:; entire community 

V/SMC IS actively engaged in the communit: '1\r~ urge you to establish a partnership v:ith 
\VSI'vlC to enable the organization ro expand its vit~! \Vork as a safety-net h::::alth scrvic:.:s pruud(:r 
in Placer Countv. 

Sincere]'. 

cvv1 ~f)Cb{X-t 
Cinrk Maple 
ExGcutivL; Director 
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January 15, 2016 

April Pay, CPPO, CPI'l3 
Placer County Procurement 
2964 Richardson Drive 
Auburn, CA 95603 

COUNTY OF NEVADA 
COUNTY EXECUTIVE OFFICE 

Eric Rood Administrative Center 
950 Maidu Avcuuc, Suite 220 

Nevada City, CA 95959 
(530) 265-7040 
Fax 265-9839 

E-MAIL: cco@co.ncvada.ca.us 

Re: Support for Western Sierra Medical Clinic's Proposals for Operation of Medical Clinics Auburn and 
Kings Beach, CA, RI'P No. I 0514. 

Dear Ms. Pay: 

The County ofNcvada is pleased to offer our support of Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. (WSMC) as 
it seeks to provide quality health care services to residents of Placer County through a planned transition 
with the Placer County Department of Health & Human Services. 

WSMC is an engaged collaborator in the region, working diligently to support pa11nership efforts 
throughout is service area, and in many cases leading the way. WSMC, the largest outpatient health care 
provider in Nevada County, has a proven record of doing effective work in the community through many 
collaborative agreements with community partners, from the Nevada County Public Health Department 
and Health & Human Services agency to nonprofits and Sierra Nevada Memorial Hospital. 

for 40 years, WSMC has been a strong pa11ner in all areas of health and well ness in the region. WSMC 
believes strongly that outreach, education and coordination of care arc crucial to sustaining access to 
health care for residents of the communities they serve- evetyone, fi·01n newborns to seniors. 

In fulfilling its commitment to the community, WSMC worked closely with the County of Nevada to take 
over the county-run health clinics. WSMC also played a leadership role in establishing the Nevada 
County Hcahh Collaborative. 

As a capable collabora1or with extensive experience, I believe WSMC will be able to forge innovative 
partnerships in Placer County to value the entire community. 

WSMC is actively engaged in the community. We urge you to establish a partnership with WSMC to 
enable the organization to expand its vital work as a safety-net health services provider in Placer County. 

Sincerely, 
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ABILITY REDEFINED 

January 12'h, 2016 

April Pay, CPPO, CPPB 
Placer County Procurement 
2964 Richardson Drive 
Auburn, CA 95603 

Dear Ms. Pay: 

Re: Support for Western Sierra Medical Clinic's Proposals for 
Operation of Medical Clinics Auburn and Kings Beach, CA. 
RFP No. 10514. 

FREED Center for Independent Living is pleased to offer our 
support of Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. (WSMC) as it 
seeks to provide quality health care services to residents of 
Placer County through a planned transition with the Placer 
County Department of Health & Human Services. 

WSMC is an engaged collaborator in the region, working dili­
gently to support partnership efforts throughout is service ar­
ea, and in many cases leading the way. WSMC, the largest 
outpatient health care provider in Nevada County, has a prov­
en record of doing effective work in the community through 
many collaborative agreements with community partners, 
from the Nevada County Public Health Department and 
Health & Human Services agency to nonprofits and Sierra Ne­
vada Memorial Hospital (SNMH). 

FREED is a nonprofit disability resource center supporting 
people with disabilities of all ages and with any type of disa­
bility through a wide array of programs and services that fo­
cused on independent living and community living. 

WSMC's collaboration with FREED includes developing and 
implementing shared grants with SNMH and Community Re­
covery Resources, a substance abuse treatment center, that 
has reduced readmission rates at the hospital - a strategy 
that could be implemented with Sutter Auburn Faith Hospital. 

As a capable collaborator with extensive experience, I believe 
WSMC will be able to forge innovative partnerships in Placer 
County to value the entire community. 

WSMC is actively engaged in the community. We urge you to 
establish a partnership with WSMC to enable the organization 
to expand its vital work as a safety-net health services pro­
vider in Placer County. 

Sina:': ~ 
Ana Acton 
Executive Director 

D Grass Valley Office 
2059 Nevada City Hwy 
Suite 102 
Gt·ass Valley, C/l. 95945 
Tel: (530) 477-3333 
Fax: (530) 477-818!: 
TTY: (530)477-3194 
Toll Free: 800-555-7732 

D Marysville Office 
508 J Street 
IVIarysville. CA 95901 
Tel: (530)742-4474 
TTY: (530)742-4474 
Fax: (530)742-4475 

www.FREED.org 

Board of Directors. 2016 
Kate Luce, Chair 
Sue Shaffer, Vice Chair 
Spencer McClay, Secretary 
Neil Goforth, Treasurer 
Velina Herrenkohl 
Ashley Jones 
Mark Fenicle 

Member, 

Community Partner 
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January 12. 201G 

April Pay. CPPO. CPPB 
Placer County Pmcurement 
2964 Richardson Drive 
Auburn. CA >l5603 

Rc:: Support for Westem Sierra Medical Clinic's Proposals for Operation of l\1eclical Cllnics Au bum 
and E:ings Beach, CA. RFP No. 10514. 

Dear Ms. Pay: 

The Health Care Alliance of Northern California is pleased to after om support of Western Sierra 
Medical Clinic. Inc. (WSMC) as it seeks to provide quality health care services to residents of Placer 
County through a planned transition with the Place!' County Department of Health & Human Services. 

WSMC is an engaged collaborator in the region, working diligently to suppol't partnership efknts 
throug·hoctt its service area, and in many cases leading the way. WSMC. the 18l'gest outpatient health 
care provider in Nevada County. ha.s a proven record of doing effective work in the community through 
many collaborative agreements with community partners, from the Nevada County Public Health 
Department and Health & Human Services agency to nonprofits and Sierra Nevada Memorial 
Hospital. 

The Health Alliance of Northern California (HANC) is a network of community clinics and health 
centers working to promote the health and well-being of our communities in rural, Northern California. 
Our clinics and partners work together to expand access to quality health care ~including physical, 
mental health and dental care~ and improve health outcomes for all people, !'egardless ofthei.J· ability 
to pay. HANC exists to assist and suppol't our member clinics in their mission to improw community 
health and to promote and preserve community-based health care in our rural area. 

For 40 years. WSMC has been a strong partner in all areas of health and wellncss in the region. WSMC 
believes strongly that outreach, education and coordination of care are crucial to sustaining access to 
health care for residents of the communities they serve~ everyone, from newborns to seniors. 

As a capable collaborator with extensive experience, I believe WSMC will be able to forge innovative 
partnerships in Placer County to value the entire community. We urge you to establish a partnership 
with WSMC to enable the organization to expand its vital work as a safety-net health services provider 
in Placer County. 

Since!'ely, 

:.jl, ... . L _· .,,.,_ 
., ' - I, 

Doreen B1·adshaw, Executive Director 
Health Alliance of Northern California 
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~January 13, 2016 

April p,y, CPPO, CPPB 

Placer County Procurement 

2964 Richardson Drive 
Auburn, C/\ 95603 

Assrmhi~ 
ffial!fornta J[rgislnfnrr 

BRiAN DAHLE 

v·i:.t :·r-I"'IF h:;'f._1!1.c',;_ ;I:C:SC,_IFJ.:.~: 

i'.-·;''.'.;,:;' 1\,.;~ ,-.(JI·l-;;LI:.-F?_;. P~:--,-,--::_c TI'Ji·J 
T _Ill"''~ t\' J[-, ·; Y,!;.,:;::-:1;_;::-

'i/•~~-F~ r-;,;--·t,: r,rJ-,','-'1 __ [,: 1t=T 

Rc: Support for Western Sierra Medical Clinic's Proposals for Operation of Medical 
Clinics Auburn and Kings Beach. CA. RFP No. 10514. 

Dear Ms. Pay: 

I <un pleased to offer our support of Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. (WSMC) as it 
seeks to provide quality health care services to residents of Placer County through a 
planned transition with the Placer County Department of Health & Human Services. 

WSMC is an engaged collaborator in the region, working diligently to support 
partnership efforts throughout is sen-ice area, and in many cases leading the \vay. 
\VSMC, the largest outpatient health care provider in Nevada County, has a proven 
record of doing effective work in the community through many collaborative 
agreements with community partners, from the Nevada County Public Health 
Department and Health & Human Services agency to non profits and Siena Nevada 
Memorial Hospital. 

The new facility is helping meet the burgeoning demand of patients, especially with 
more people insured under the Affordable Care Act, and providing opportunities to 
expand in the futur~ to help ensure all community residents enjoy good health and 
quality of life. Importantly, Western Sierra is a community nonprofit, dedicated to all 
residents- people with insurc:mce, people covered by Medicare and Jow-incorne and 
uninsured residents. I was pleased to be a guest spealcer and present a State 
proclamation to Western Sierra at its Grass Valley site grand opening as the health 
center embarked on a ne\v era delivering health care in_ the region. 

For 40 years, WSMC has been a strong partner in all areas of health and wellness in 
the region. WSMC believes strongly that outreach, education and coordination of care 
are crucial to sustaining access to heaJth care for residents of the communities they 
serve- everyone, from newborns to seniors. 
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As a capable collaborator \v)th extensive expe:nencc. I believe \\rSMC will be able to 
forge innoYat1ve panncrsbips in Placer County to ,·alut> t.l1e entire community. 

'.}./e urge _you to establish a partnership wjth \.VSMC to enable the organization to 
expand ib vital work as a s<--Jle~.y-net heallh services pro\·ider in Placer County. 

Sinccrclv 
~ ' 

BRIAN DAHLE 
}-\ssemblyman, 1 ~~District 
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:::Af'ITOL OFFi:;E 

STATE CAPITOL, ROOM 3070 
SACRAMENTO, CA. 958'4 

TEl f916) 651-400\ 
FAX (916) 651-490', 

C!IaHfnrnht ~tat.c ~.cnatc 
SENATOR 

January 12, 20 I 6 

April Pay, CPPO, CPPB 
Placer County Procurement 
2964 Richardson Drive 
Auburn, CA 95603 

TED GAINES 
FIRST SENATE DISTRICT 

SNVIflor<MENTAL QUA_ TY 
VICE CH ... !R 

ll'iSURANC=. 
VICE CHAIR 

GOVERNMENTA 
ORGANIZATION 

LSG:SLATIVE ETHIC5 

TfiANSPORIATION M~C: 
HOUSING 

Re: Support for Western Sierra Medical Clinic's Proposals for Operation of Medical Clinics 
Aubmn and Kings Beach, CA, RFPNo. 10514. 

Dear Ms. Pay: 

I am pleased to offer our support of Western Sierra Medical Cinic, Inc. (WSMC) as il seeks to 
provide quality bealtb care services to residents of Placer County through a phmned transition 
with the Placer Cotmty Depmtmenl of Health & Human Services. 

WSMC is an engaged collaborator in the region, working diligently to support partnership eiTorLs 
Lhroughom its servk:c area, and in many cases leading the way. WSMC .. the l<u·gesl outpatient 
health cure provider in Nevada County, has a proven record of doing effective work in the 
comrrnmity tlrrough many collaborative agreements with commtmity partners, from the Nevada 
County Public Health Department and Health & Human Services agency Lo nonprofits and Sierra 
Nevada Memorial Hospital. 

l was glad lo be a f.>Cte<.'t speaker and present a State proclamation TO Western Sierra at its Grass 
Valley site gr~md opening to help the health center embark on a new era of delivering health care 
in the region. 

The new facility is helping meet the burgcon.ing demand of patients, especially with more people 
insured under the Affordable Care Act, and providing opportunities to expand in the future to 
help ensure all community residents enjoy good health and quality oflik 

Importantly, Western Sierra is a community nonprofit, dedicated to all residents -people with 
insurance, people covered by Medicare and low-income and uninsured residents. 

For 40 years, WSMC has been a strong partner in all areas ofhealth ~md wellness in the region. 
WSMC believes strongly that outreach, education and coordination of care are crucial to 
sustaining access to health care for residents of the communities they serve- everyone, from 
newboms to seniors. 
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As a capable collaborator with extensive experience, I believe WSMC will be able to forge 
innovative pminerships in Placer County to value the entire community. 

WSMC is actively engaged in the community. I urge you to establish a partnership with WSMC 
to enabl~ the organization to expand its vital work as a safety-net health services provider in 
Placer County. 

Thank you for your consideration of this important project. 

Sincerely, 

<foif ~~-
TED GAINES <J~~ 
Senator, 1" District 
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California 
Primary Care 

ASSOCIATION 

January 7, 2016 

Apnl Pay,CPPO,CPPB 
Placer County Procurement 
County of Placer 
2964 Richardson Drive 
Auburn, CA 95603 

RE: Placer County RFP No. 10514 

Dear Ms. Pay, 

The California Primary Care Association (CPCA) supports the Placer County RFP No. 10514 
application from Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 

The California Primary Care Association is the statewide leader and recognized voice of 
California community clinics and health centers (CCHCs) and their patients. CPCA represents 
more than 1,100 not-for-profit CCHCs that provide comprehensive, high quality health care 
services, particularly for low-income, uninsured, and underserved Californians who might 
otherwise not have access to health care. Since 1994, CPCA has successfully worked with its 
members to strengthen and protect the role of CCHCs in the fragile health care delivery system. 

CPCA maintains strong relationships with our members, and Western Sierra Medical Clinic is a 
member of CPCA in good standing. However, CPCA has not conducted an independent analysis 
of Western Sierra Medical Clinic's proposal nor the health care needs of Western Sierra 
Medical Clinic's service area. CPCA does not have the capacity to conduct this type of 
independent analysis. 

On behalf of the CPCA, I support Western Sierra Medical Clinic's application for consideration. 

Please feel free to contact me at (916) 440-8170 if you have additional questions. 

Sincerely, 

c;.. £ a.6~ ~-. · 
oo1 ....... 

Carmela Castellano-Garcia, Esq. 

President & Chief Executive Officer 

1231 I Street, Ste. 400. Sacr.~mento, CA 95814 
www.cpca.org I (916) 440-8170 
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TAB B: Program Approach 

A. How WSMC Will Approach Transition of Auburn and Kings Beach Clinics 

WSMC will collaborate. partner and engage with Placer County Health and Human Services in a 
transitional planning process for the seamless and wann handoff of all patient services now 
offered at both the Placer County Health and Human Services clinics to WSMC's site under 
development in Auburn and at the County's Kings Beach clinic to provide excellent health care. 
dental and behavioral health services, to prevent disruption of care, and ensure continuity of care 
for the transitioned patients. 

WSMC proposes that Placer County Health and Human Services continue to operate both clinics 
independent ofWSMC, collaborate with WSMC on a transition plan, and then transition the 
patients to WSMC as soon as WSMC can complete tenant improvements at the Auburn site and 
receive approval on its Changes in Scope for both the Auburn and Kings Beach facility sites. 

As the extent of collaboration from the County's viewpoint is not clear, WSMC has not 
identified herein a consultant with the requisite skills and experience to assist in the collaborative 
transition. WSMC proposes to engage a consultant acceptable to Placer County Health and 
Human Services during the interview process after the role of the consultant is better defined by 
agreement to be certain the consultant has the requisite skills and experience to fulfill the role 
envisioned by Placer County Health and Human Services. Alternatively, WSMC proposes the 
engagement of a consultant is not necessary (and in fact such an arrangement may be 
problematic for WSMC as a FQHC as raised by WSMC's Chief Executive Officer during the 
RFP pre-proposal conference) as the proposal herein contemplates that the Auburn and Kings 
Beach clinics will function under Placer County Health and Human Services until a transition 
point, at which time WSMC will take on responsibility for all transitioned patients. 

WSMC will interview all providers at the Auburn and Kings Beach clinics for purposes of 
offering qualified candidates a position with WSMC. 

WSMC has experience tn relocating its facility within Grass Valley and in opening its new 
facility on Old Tunnel Road in Grass Valley and its soon-to-be open facility in Penn Valley. 
WSMC's Chief Executive Officer oversaw the transition of Peachtree Clinic from a county­
based clinic to a FQHC clinic (including securing new facilities) and the opening of the 
Marysville Immediate Care facility and mobile dental program "Bright Smiles". WSMC is 
confident it will be able to open a facility in Auburn sufficient to transition patients now being 
served by Placer County Health and Human Services. 

1 
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Auburn: 

Initially, WSMC's Chief Executive Officer will work collaboratively with Placer County Health 
and Human Services as pmt of a joint transition committee to facilitate timely and successful 
transition of patients. As set forth below, after WSMC's Aubum clinic opens, operation 
responsibility will be assigned to WSMC's clinic administrator. If a consultant is required or 
desirable, the consultant will assume the role of working collaboratively with Placer County 
Health and Human Services on the joint transition committee. 

As soon as the lease for WSMC's new Auburn facility is exec.;utcd, WSMC will submit an 
application to the State of California ±or licensure of the site and a Change in Services and Scope 
to HRSA. 

Upon receiving a contract under this proposal, WSMC will build out the remainder of its Auburn 
facility in order to serve the patients transitioned from Placer County Health and Human 
Services. WSMC then will employ providers who will provide a full range of comprehensive 
primary care services including behavioral health, preventative care, and special care and 
through a~o'feements and arrangements with providers. hospitals and agencies in Placer County. 
As part of its HEDIS program, WSMC's providers will address with patients chronic health 
conditions, including diabetes, asthma, and hype1tension. WSMC will provide care management 
services through a full-time, onsite registered nurse. Consistent with its policies and procedures. 
WSMC will ensure that all staff are properly licensed, credentialed and privileged. 

WSMC estimates to meet the immediate needs of its current patients and patients transitioned by 
Placer County Health and Human Services, initially two to three 1.0 FTE physicians will he 
assigned to the Auburn clinic along with two 1.0 FTE medical assistants, one receptionist, one 
eligibility/enrollment coordinator/case manager, and one 1 .0 FTE registered nurse for case 
management and quality assurance. 

WSMC will interview and as appropriate offer positions to providers now employed in the Placer 
County Health and Human Services Auburn clinic. As WSMC's staff has worked with some of 
the providers at Placer County Health & Human Services' Aubum clinic and respects the quality 
of care they provide, WSMC looks forward to the interview process and the opportunity to 
employ those outstanding providers. 

WS'v!C will hire a clinic administrator to oversee operations at the Auburn clinic, who will work 
under the supervision and direction ofWSMC's Chief Operating Officer. The clinic 
administrator will serve on WSMC's quality assurance committee. The clinic administrator will 
work with Placer County Health and Human Services as part of a joint transition committee to 
facilitate timely and successful transition of patients. 

WSMC's Chief Medical Officer will work with and oversee the onsite registered nurse to ensure 
quality patient care based upon the systematic collection and evaluation of patient records, 
identify and document the necessity for any change in the services provided by WSMC, and 
oversee the implementation of those changes. 

2 
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Through partnership with CORR, WSMC will expand services to Placer County for substance 
abuse and medical treatment, particularly to opioid-dependent population. WSMC will hire 
behavioral health staff to work onsite as needs are assessed. 

WSMC will complete the process to establishing OB/GYN privileges and a transfer ab~·eement 
with Sutter Auburn Faith HospitaL WSMC will reach out to providers and agencies in Placer 
County to fom1 partnerships and execute agreements to establish a wide spectrum of sen· ices for 
patients. 

As the number of patients seeking services at WSMC's clinic in Auburn grows, at the 
appropriate time WSMC will execute its option on the third adjacent suite to meet patient needs, 
which it can do quickly. 

WSMC will offer services to the homeless in Placer County. 

WSMC believes the following is a reasonable transition timeline: 

February- March 2016: Tenant improvements 

February 2016: Complete State license application for new site 

February 2016: File HRSA changes in services and scope 

February 2016: California Health & Wellness new site application 

April-May 2016: Receive state license and HRSA approval 

May 201 ti: Open Auburn Clinic. 

June 2016: Notice ofBeilenson heating. 

June 2016 (approx.): Board of Supervisors meeting. 

May- June 2016: Interview County providers; initiate marketing and outreach progtam. 

July 201 ti: Work with Placer County on patient transition and accept transfer of patients. 

July- October 31, 2016: Ongoing quality assurance with Placer County. 

Kings Beach: 

With respect to Kings Beach, initially WSMC's Chief Executive Officer will work 
collaboratively with Placer County Health and Human Services as part of a joint transition 
committee to facilitate timely and successful transition of patients. If a consultant is required or 
desirable, the consultant will assume the role of working collaboratively with Placer County 
Health and Human Services on the joint transition committee. 

WSMC proposes purchasing or leasing Placer County's King Beach facility as set forth below. 

3 
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WSMC will employ providers who will provide a full range of comprehensive ptimary care 
services including behavioral health. dental care, and preventative care. WSMC will reach out to 
local providers and agencies to fom1 alliances with them as patient needs are assessed. WSMC 
will provide care management services tlu·ough an onsitc registered nurse and under the direction 
ofWSMCs Chief Medical Officer and dental services under the direction of Dr. Chavez. 
WSMCs Dental Director. Consistent with its policies and procedures. WSMC will ensure that 
all staff arc properly licensed, credentialed and privileged. 

WSMC estimates to meet the immediate needs of its patients transitioned by Placer County 
Health and Human Services it initially will employ one 1.0 FTE dentist, one 1.0 FTE dental 
assistant, one I .0 FTE registered nurse for primary care, case management and quality assurance. 
one .8 FTE medical assistant, and one 1.0 FTE receptionist/eligibility/enrollment 
coordinator/case manager. WSMC will have available a physician to provide services as needed 
and also will install devices to support telemedicine. 

WSMC will interview and as appropriate offer positions to providers now employed in the Placer 
County Health and Human Services Kings Beach clinic. 

WSMC will hire additional staff as the needs of the clinic are assessed on an ongoing basis. 

The registered nurse administrator will he a member ofWSMC"s quality assurance committee. 
WSMC"s Chief Medical Officer will work with the onsite reb<istered nurse and its dental Director 
will work with the dentistry staff onsite to ensure quality patient care based upon the systematic 
collection and evaluation of patient records, identify and document the necessity for any change 
in the services provided by WSMC', and oversee the implementation of those changes. 

Tlu·ough partnership with CORR. WSMC will provide behavioral health, substance abuse and 
medical treatment, particularly to opioid-dependent population. WSMC will hire behavioral 
health staff to work onsite as needs are assessed. 

WSMC will reach out to providers and agencies in the Kings Beach area to fonn pattnerships 
and execute agreements to establish a wide spectrum of services for patients. 

WSMC believes the following is a reasonable transition timeline: 

Within twenty business days of award of contract, evaluate site for needed improvements 
and potential OSHPD-3 compliance, complete State license application for new site, file 
California Health & Well ness new site application, and file HRSA Changes in Services and 
Scope. 

Within 60-90 days of award of contract, receive stale license and HRSA approvaL 
Thereafter, notice of Beilenson hearing and subsequent Board of Supervisors meeting. 

Within twenty business days after Board of Supervisors approval, WSMC will begin any 
improvements to the facility and interview employees. As soon thereafter as practicable, patients 
will be transitioned to WSMC and WSMC assumes sole responsibility for patient care. 

4 
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Through October 31. 2016. WSMC will participate in ongoing quality assurance with 
Placer County. 

B. Current Management!EHR Svstem; Patient Centered Medical Home and Meaningful 
Usc 

WSMC has fully implemented and uses eCiinicaiWorks electronic health record system in its 
Grass Valley and Downieville clinics, which also provides a platform for a patient pmial utilized 
by WSMC's patients that is fully implemented. and will extend the same system to all of its sites. 
WSMC participates in the Greater Sierra HlO (GSHlO) patient record data storage portal tor 
appropriate data access for optimal coordinated patient care via WSMC's eCiinicaiWorks EMR 
system. WSMC is at Stage 2 with respect to Patient Centered Medical Home and Meaningful 
Use. 

C. Change in Scope Transfer 

J-IRSA (Health Resources and Services Administration) PAL 2014-05 states all Federally 
Qualified Health Centers must submit a Change in Scope to add a new delivery site of service to 
the approved scope of service of the health center. The detailed Change in Scope process can 
take up to 90 days for approval. Once approved. the CMS 855 application to add a site of 
service and establish a provider number can be submitted to CMS and the Medicaid provider 
application can be submitted. The site of service must then be added to all managed care plans, 
commercial insurance and any ancillary contracts can be filed. WSMC has discussed this 
proposal with its project officer and does not anticipate any issues with respect to HRSA 
approval. WSMC's HRSA project officer indicates it will take approximately 60 days to process 
WSMC's application. 

D. Status of HRSA-Required Terms/Conditions 

HRSA PAL 2014-05 states no services can be rendered until the Change in Scope is approved. 
WSMC has discussed this proposal with its HRSA project officer and. as WSMC has no HRSA 
conditions, she does not anticipate any issues with respect to HRSA approval ofWSMC's 
Changes in Services and Scope relative to this proposal. 

5 
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TAB C: Requested Resources 

With respect to Auburn, WSMC proposes that the County of Placer loan WSMC an amount up 
to $500JJ0(1 to fund expansion of its Auburn facility for the transitioned patients. WSMC 
proposes that Placer County employ an enrollment/eligibility clerk to work in WSMC's facility 
for up to six months to assure smooth transition of patients from Placer County Health and 
Human Services to WSMC. WSMC does not request any grants or other remuneration and 
instead seeks an ongoing partnership with the County of Placer to provide quality healthcare to 
Placer County residents. If, as a result of closing its Au bum facility, Placer County has excess 
equipment, furnishings or supplies, WSMC would appreciate the opporiunity to choose what it 
desires from the excess inventory upon receiving the awarded contract and prior to transition and 
take title to and possession of such inventory. In order to meet the timeline outlined above, 
WSMC requests expedited review and approval of site improvement plans for WSMC's facilities 
by Placer County building officials. 

With respect to Kings Beach, WSMC proposes that the County of Placer either sell the facility to 
WSMC "as-is" for a nominal price or lease the facility to WSMC for nominal rent, in exchange 
for which WSMC will bring the facility into OSHPD-3 compliance as necessary. Further. 
WSMC proposes that the County of Placer transfer title to all equipment. furnishings and 
supplies in the facility to WSMC at no cost at the appropriate time prior to or at the same time as 
patients are transitioned to WSMC. 

1 
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TAB D: Financial Statements and Supporting Documents 

A. Current Standing with Federal Grant 

WSMC is in good standing with respect to its federal grants. 

B. Current Financial Stability 

WSMC attaches its Audited Financial Statements for the Years ended December 3 L 2014 and 
2013. 

WSMC is financially stable and has the capacity to expand operations in Placer County. 
WSMC"s net income from operations for the first eleven months of201 5 was $374,840. Net 
patient revenues have increased 23.7% in the first eleven months of2015 when compared to the 
first eleven months of2014. During the same period, patient visits increased 17.2%,. WSMC has 
total assets of $7,616,017, total liabilities of $5,541,705, and its fund balance of $2,074.312 
remains quite stable. WSMC's total cash position of$489,072 is up $102,564 or 26.5':/c, since 
November 2014. Fixed assets of $5,881,522 represents 77.2% ofWSMC's total assets, up 
$945,1:?.6 from November 2014. WSMC's long tenn debt to equity ratio is 2.35. 

WSMC will provide documents and infonnation during the interview process, irrequested. to 
further address its financial condition. 

C. Federal Notice of Award for Current ProJect Period 

Attached hereto is a copy t'f the Federal Notice of Award for the cmTent project period 
through April30, 2017. 

D. List of Current Board of Directors with Affiliations 

Larry Allen, Chairman- District Attorney, Sierra County 

Florence Lyss, Vice Chair- Registered Nurse, Retired 

Richard Kuhwarth, Treasurer- CFO and CPA, Retired 

Scott Browne, Secretary- Attorney at Law 

Timothy Beals- Director, Sierra County Planning and Transportation 

Anita Daniels- Vice President and Branch Manager Tri Counties Bank 

Katherine Medeiros- CEO Sierra Nevada Memorial Hospital 

1 
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Doug McDonald- Retired Executive Director Boy Scouts of America 

Brandon Pangman - Planner, Sierra County 

Jon Peek- Veterinarian, Retired 

Lupe Peterson- Business Owner 

Don Russell-Editor. Mountain Messenger Newspaper 

Derek Williams- Macintosh Computer Consultant & Investment Trader 

2 
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Audited Financial Statements 

Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 



189

Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 

Table of Contents 

Independent Auditors' Report 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Balance Sheets 

Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

SINGLE AUDIT 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program; Report on 
Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

I 

3 

4 

5 

6 

14 

15 

16 

18 

21 



190

Healthcare Audit, Tax & Consulting Services 

7797 N. First Street 1115. J'resnu, Cali!Omia 93720 

Phone: 559.549.5400 Email: info@chwllp.org 

INDEPENDENT A UDJTORS' REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENIS AND SUPPLEMEN);IRY 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

Board of Directors 
Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 
Downieville, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. (the 
"Center"), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 and the related 
statements of operations and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the 
related notes to the fitwncial statements. 

11.-fanagement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair prcscntnlion of these financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an optnton on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government /\uditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are fi·ec of material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves perfonning procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures se]ccted depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment oft he risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or enor. 
ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 011 the effectiveness or the entity's 
internal controL Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 and the 
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 30, 2014, 
on our consideration ofthe entity's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. The purpose of that report is to describe 
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. 

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of the 
Center taken as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for 
the purpose of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, 
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to 
the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Fresno, California 
May 27,2015 

2 
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Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Patient accounts receivable, net 

Balance Sheets 
December 31, 2014 and 2013 

Grant and contract receivable 
Estimated third-party payor settlements 
Inventory 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 

Total current assets 

Property and equipment, net 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 
Long-term debt, current portion 
Line-of-credit 
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 
Deferred revenue 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term liabilities: 
Long-term debt, net of current portion 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

2014 

$ 403,649 
607,176 

610,817 
118,427 
79,624 

I ,819,693 

5,658,521 

$ 7,478,214 

$ 55,310 
60,500 

693,593 
316,705 

61,269 
1,187,377 

4,647,438 
5,834,815 

1,643,399 
1,643,399 

$ 7,478,214 

2013 

$ 349,123 
287,260 

II ,521 
465,748 

95,708 
187,271 

I ,396,631 

I ,752,170 

$ 3,148,801 

$ 61,291 
160,500 
139,392 
299,174 

12,424 
672,781 

1,208,999 
1,881,780 

1,267,021 
1,267,021 

$ 3,148,801 
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Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 
Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets 

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 

2014 

Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets: 
Revenues and other support: 

Patient service revenue, net $7,243,053 
Grant revenue 1,023,337 
Contributions 126,325 
Other 25,194 

Total unrestricted revenues and other support 8,417,909 

Expenses: 
Salaries and wages 4,044,505 
Employee benefits 934,523 
Contracted services 469,970 
Facility expense 380,750 
Purchased services 856,014 
Supplies 721,978 
Insurance 34,186 
Repairs and maintenance 36,541 
Communications 54,765 
Depreciation and amortization 83,941 
Interest 157,231 
Other operating expenses 267,127 

Total expenses 8,041,531 

Change in unrestricted net assets 376,378 

Net assets, beginning of year 1,267,021 

Net assets, end of year $ 1,643,399 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

4 

2013 

$ 5,862,216 
890,283 
41,626 

109,613 

6,903,738 

3,791,672 
836,788 
373,870 
371,610 
620,429 
415,086 

35,879 
13,736 
45,626 

118,751 
55,094 

!61,309 
6,839,850 

63,888 

1,203,133 

$ 1,267,021 
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Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 
Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 

2014 2013 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Change in net assets $ 376,378 $ 63,888 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 83,941 118,751 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
Patient accounts receivable (319,916) (32,615) 
Grants receivable II ,521 (11,521) 
Estimated third-party payor settlements (145,069) (33,574) 
Inventory (22,719) (II ,092) 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 107,647 (114,512) 
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 554,201 (72,757) 
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 17,531 65,377 
Deferred revenue 48,845 (6,011) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 712,360 (34,066) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Acquisition of property and equipment (3,990,292) (728,065) 

Net cash used in investing activities (3,990,292) (728,065) 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Proceeds from (payments on) line-of-credit (100,000) (99,500) 
Proceeds from new debt 3,495,600 1,266,210 
Principle payments on debt borrowings (63, 142) (298,054) 

Net cash provided by financing activities 3,332,458 868,656 

Net increase in cash 54,526 106,525 

Cash at beginning of year 349,123 242,598 
Cash at end of year $ 403,649 $ 349,123 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: 

Cash paid during the year for interest $ 157,231 $ 55,094 

__ ---··-·-·--·:·-- --•-- --- -- !-•----1 --- -l'•L--- l":----:-1-•-•----•-
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Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 

Note A- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Organitation 
Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc., (the "Center") is a comprehensive community health center, 
operating as a private non-profit corporation. WSMC provides a full range of outpatient health services 
and administers medical programs primarily for the low-income communities of Downieville and Grass 
Valley/Nevada City California and the surrounding area. 

Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. is designated as a Federally Qualified Health Center for Medicare and 
Medi-Cal reimbursement purposes. The majority of the Center's revenue is derived from patient services 
with the remainder from grants and contracts with the Department of Health and Human Services, the 
State of California Department of Health Services, local government, and private foundations. 

In January 2010, Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. merged with Miners Community Clinic, Inc., an 
FQHC "Look-Alike". As part of the merger all assets and liabilities of Miners Community Clinic, Inc. 
were merged with Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. creating a single organization known as Western 
Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The Center considers all highly liquid investment securities with original maturities of three months or 
less as cash and cash equivalents. Per the various financial institutions as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, 
approximately $238,450 and $349,023, respectively was covered by federal depository insurance, and 
$165,199 and $100 was uninsured. 

Patient Accounts Receivable 
Patient accounts receivable consist of amounts owed by various governmental agencies, insurance 
companies and self-pay patients. The Center manages its receivables by regularly reviewing the accounts, 
inquiring with respective payors as to collectability and providing for allowances on the accounting 
records of the Center for estimated contractual adjustments and doubtful self-pay accounts. 

Inventories 
Inventories consist of pharmaceutical, medical and office supplies and are stated at cost. Due to rapid 
turnover of supplies, cost approximates market value. 

Income Taxes 
The Center is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 50I(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code 
and is exempt from federal corporate income taxes on related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the 
Code. The Center is also exempt from State corporate income taxes. The tax years of 2010 through 2013 
remain open and subject to examination by the appropriate government agencies in the United States and 
California. 

6 
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Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 

Note A- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Property and Equipment 
Property, plant, and equipment acquisitions greater than $5,000 are capitalized and recorded at cost. 
Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of each class of depreciable assets and is computed 
using the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives range from three to thirty years. Leasehold 
improvements are amortized over the shorter of the life of the lease or the useful life ofthe improvements. 

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as unrestricted support unless 
explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with 
explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be 
used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations 
about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported 
when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service. Costs of maintenance and repairs are 
charged to expense as incurred. 

Third-Party Contractual Agreements 
The Center has agreements with Medicare that provide payments under a cost-based reimbursement (not 
to exceed the maximum cap) system and with Medi-Cal that provide payments under the Prospective 
Payment System (PPS). In the case of Medicare, reasonable estimates are made and reported in the period 
services are rendered, and differences between the estimates and actual receipts are included in the 
statement of operations in the period in which they are determined. In the case of Medi-Cal, payments 
under the PPS payment system are final, unless the number of reimbursable visits is changed as a result of 
an audit by the State of California, Department of Health and Human Services. 

Revenue Recognition 
It is the policy of the Center to recognize revenues from federal grants and state contracts to the extent of 
expenses incurred not to exceed grant and contract awards. When the grant and contract budgets do not 
coincide with the Center's reporting period, revenues are recognized on a pro rata basis. 

Patient service revenue is recorded at the Center's established rates with sliding fee scale adjustments, 
provision for uncollectible accounts, and contractual allowances deducted to arrive at net patient service 
revenue. 

Charity Care 
The Center provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without charge 
or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Center does not pursue collection of amounts 
determined to qualifY as charity care, they are not reported as revenue. The Center provides discounted 
medical services to self-pay patients on a sliding fee scale based on the patient's gross income and family 
size. Patient sliding fee discounts were $66,289 and $144,791 for the years ended December 31,2014 and 
2013, which is included in the accompanying statement of activities and changes in net assets. 

Donated Supplies and Services 
Donations are reported as unrestricted support unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a 
specific purpose. Non-cash donations are recorded at their estimated fair values at the date of donation. 
Donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or that require specialized skills, are provided 
by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by 
donation are reported as donated services. 

7 
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Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 

Note A- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Net Assets 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Net assets, 
revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed 
restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Center and changes therein are classified and reported as: 

Unrestricted net assets • Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed stipulations and are 
available for use in the activities of the Center under the direction of the board as well as those 
resources invested in equipment and furniture. 

Temporarily restricted net assets -Net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations that may, or 
will, be met either by actions of the Center and/or the passage of time. When a restriction is met, 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the 
statement of operations as net assets released from restrictions. 

Vacation Pay 
Accumulated unpaid employee vested vacation benefits are recognized as liabilities of the Center. The 
amount of accumulated unpaid vacation benefits for the years ending December 31, 2014 and 2013 was 
$87,293 and $57,663, respectively. 

Reclassifications 
Certain financial statement amounts have been reclassified in these financial statements to conform to the 
current year presentation. These reclassifications have no effect on previously reported net income. 

Subsequent Events: 
The Center has evaluated events and transactions that occurred after December 31, 2014, and through 
May 27,2015, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

Note 8: Patient Accounts Receivable 

Patient accounts receivable are comprised of the following payors at December 31, 2014 and 2013: 

2014 2013 

Medicare $ 35,735 $ 32,047 
Medi-Cal 413,467 217,499 
Other third-party payors 357,344 140,504 
Private pay 81,474 78,054 

Total patient accounts receivable 888,020 468,104 

Less: allowance for doubtful account (280,844) (180,844) 

Net patient accounts receivable $ 607,176 $ 287,260 

The allowance for doubtful accounts is an estimate of the amount of cash to be collected from the 
accounts receivable at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The allowance is calculated based on 
established rates with the governmental payors, commercial insurance carriers, and patients. 

8 
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Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 

Note C: Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

Financial Accounting Standards Board's (FASB) Accounting Standard Codification (ASC) 820, Fair 
Value Measurements and Disclosures. requires the fair value of financial assets and liabilities to be 
determined using a specific fair-value hierarchy. The objective of the fair value measurement of 
financial instruments is to reflect the hypothetical amounts at which the Center could sell assets or 
transfer liabilities in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. FASB 
ASC 820 describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value: 

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; 

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than Level I prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets; 
quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be 
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets; 

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are 
significant to the fair value of the assets. 

The following table presents the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the accompanying 
balance sheets measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the level within the fair value 
hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at December 31, 2014: 

Fair Value Measurement Using 
Fair Value Level I Level2 Level3 

December 31,2014: 
Money market funds $ 307,113 $ 307,113 $ $ 
Total $ 307,113 $ 307,113 $ $ 

December 31, 2013: 
Money market funds $ 182,589 $ 182,589 $ $ 
Total $ 182,589 $ 182,589 $ $ 

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheets for other financial assets and liabilities that are not 
measured at fair value on a recurring basis including patient accounts receivable, grant and other 
receivables, settlement receivables, accounts payable, accrued payroll and other expenses, deferred 
revenue, long term debt, and estimated third party liabilities approximate fair value. 

NoteD- Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Center grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of who are local residents and are insured 
under third-party agreements. Concentration of patient accounts receivable as of December 31, 2014 and 
2013 were as follows: 

2014 2013 

Medicare 4% 7% 
Medi-Cal 47% 46% 
Other third-party payors 40% 30% 
Self-pay 9% 17% 

100% 100% 

9 
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Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 

Note E- Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are comprised of the following: 

Land 
Buildings 
Furniture and equipment 
Construction in progress 

Subtotal 

Less: Accumulated amortization and depreciation 
Total 

2014 
$ 275,721 

855,870 
937,429 

4 713 677 
6,782,697 

{1,175,458) 
$ 5,607,239 

2013 
$ 275,721 

855,870 
937,429 
774 667 

2,843,687 

(! ,091 ,517) 
$ 1,752,170 

Depreciation and amortization expense for fiscal year ending December 31,2014 and 2013 was $83,941 
and $118,751, respectfully. 

Note F- Net Patient Service Revenue 

The Center has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Center at amounts 
different from its established rates. A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party 
payors follows. 

Medicare 
The Center is reimbursed for cost reimbursable items at a tentative rate with final settlement determined 
after submission of annual cost reports and audits thereof by the Medicare fiscal intermediary. The 
Center's Medicare cost reports have been audited by the fiscal intermediary through December 31, 2013. 

Medi-Ca/ 
Services rendered to Medi-Cal program beneficiaries are reimbursed under a prospective rate of 
reimbursement using rates established by the Center's "Base Years", fiscal years ended December 31, 
2000 and 1999, cost reports filed under the previous cost-based reimbursement system. These rates are 
adjusted annually according to changes in the Medicare Economic Index and any approved changes in the 
Center's scope of service. 

Other 
Payments for services rendered to those payors other than Medicare or Medi-Cal are based on established 
rates or on agreements with certain commercial insurance companies, health maintenance organizations 
and preferred provider organizations which provide for various discounts from established rates. 

Note G- Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements 

The Center has recorded an estimated net receivable due from government payors of $610,817 and 
$465,748 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. These balances comprise estimated 
settlements related to PPS Reconciliation Requests from 2005 through 2014 as well as a Change in Scope 
Request for the Grass Valley location for 2010. Management periodically evaluates estimated third-party 
payor settlements based on the current information available and believes the final settlements will not 
materially affect the financial statements of the Center. 

10 
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Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 

Note H - Debt Borrowings 

The following is a summary of debt as of December 31, 2014 and 2013: 

2014 2013 
In August 2008, the Center entered into a seven year note payable $ 4,609 $ 19,512 
agreement for the purchase of a mobile clinic. The note is collateralized 
by the equipment and the monthly payment amount is $1,234. 

In July 2013, the Center entered into a loan agreement for $4,870,000 to 
finance the construction of a new medical clinic. The note bears interest 
at the rate of 5.5% per annum. The loan matures August I, 2015. In 
March 2015 the Center refinanced this note with permanent financing. 4,511,330 1,015,730 
The note is for $4,870,000 at 5.75% per annum and matures in 30 years. 
The note is collateralized by the Center's property and equipment. 

In July 20 13, the Center entered into a $260,000 note payable 
agreement to refinance existing debt obligations. The note bears interest 
at the rate of 4.95% per annum and the Center makes monthly payments 186,609 235,039 
of $4,917.22. The note is collateralized by Center property and matures 
August 5, 2018. 

Total long-term debt $ 4,702,748 $ 1,270,281 

Less: current portion (55,31 0) (61,291) 

$ 4,647,438 $ 1,208,990 

The agreed upon repayment schedules indicates future maturities of debt borrowings of $55,310 in 2015, 
$53,286 in 2016,$56,042 in 2017; and $26,781 in 2018. 

The Center was in compliance with all debt covenants as of December 31, 2014. 

The Center has a $500,000 revolving credit line with River Valley Community Bank which matures on 
August 5, 2015. Accrued interest on the outstanding balance is due monthly, and the principal is due at 
maturity. Interest incurs at a variable rate of 1% per annum over the bank's index. The line of credit is 
secured by the assets of the Center. There was a balance outstanding on the line-of-credit of $60,500 for 
the year ending December 31, 20 14. 

II 
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Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the years ended December 31,2014 and 2013 

Note I- Commitments and Contingencies 

Deferred Revenue - The Center has received State and Federal funds in the form of grants, which are 
subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Continuing program funding from federal and state 
sources is contingent upon availability of funds and project performance. The funds are awarded on a 
yearly basis upon receipt and approval of program applications. Additionally, funds received in advance 
of their corresponding expenditure are considered to be refundable until such expenditure is incurred. 
Revenue recognition is also deferred until expenditures are realized. Deferred revenues in this category 
for the year December 31,2014 and 2013 amounted to $61,269 and $12,424, respectively. There was no 
deferred revenue related to Federal funds as ofthe year ended December 31, 2014. 

Operating Leases - The Center leases certain facilities and equipment under operating leases expiring at 
various times through 2016. Future minimum lease payments for the succeeding five years under these 
committed lease arrangements is approximately: $1,481 in 2015, and $247 in 2016. 

Medical Malpractice - The Center, including officers, governing board members, employees, and 
contractors who are physicians or other licensed or certified healthcare practitioners, are covered by 
professional and general liability insurance. The Center is deemed by the Federal Government and is 
covered under the Federal Tort Claims Act ("FTCA") for malpractice insurance. The Center also has 
supplemental professional liability coverage. There are no known claims or incidents that may result in 
the assertion of additional claims as of the date of this report 

Litigation - The Center may from time-to-time be involved in litigation and regulatory investigations, 
which arise in the normal course of doing business. After consultation with legal counsel, management 
estimates that matters existing as of December 31, 2014 will be resolved without material adverse affect 
on the Center's future financial position, results from operations or cash flows. 

Retirement Plan - In 1989 the Center established an employee retirement plan pursuant to Internal 
Revenue Code Section 403(b). The employees must be permanent full-time or part-time (at least 20 
hours) and have at least one year of service with the Center to qualify for this benefit. Once qualified, the 
Center contributes 2% of each of the employees' annual wages into an annuity administered by Met-life. 
In March of 2008 the plan was replaced with a 401 (k) and the contribution amount was increased to 3%. 
The employees may also contribute to the annuity through tax sheltered payroll deductions. The Center 
contributed $97,967 during the year ended December 31, 2014. 

Note J - Functional Expenses 

The Center provides healthcare services primarily to residents within its geographic area. Expenses 
related to providing these healthcare services are as follows: 

Health care services 
General and administrative 

Total 

12 

2014 

$ 6,127,758 
1,913,773 

$ 8,041,531 

2013 

$ 5,251,486 
1,588,364 

$ 6,839,850 
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SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS 

13 



203

Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Federal Grant I Program Title 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES, PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES: 

Direct Programs: 

Community Health Center Cluster, Section 330 

Pass Through: 

Lassen-Plumas-Sierra Community Action Agency: 

Lassen-Plumas-Sierra Community Action Grant 

Total federal financial assistance 

* Denotes major program 

14 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

93.224* 

93.569 

Expenditures 

$ 873,943 

4,531 

$ 878,474 
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Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Note A- Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") summarizes the 
expenditures of Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. (the "Center'') under programs of the federal 
government for the year ended December 31, 2014. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion 
of the operations of the Center, it is not intended to, and does not, present the financial position, changes 
in net assets, or cash flows for the Center. 

For purposes of the Schedule, federal awards include all grants and contracts entered into directly 
between the Center, agencies, and departments of the federal government. The awards are classified into 
major program categories in accordance with the provisions of Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Government and Non-Profit Organizations. 

Note B- Basis of Accounting 

For purposes of the Schedule, expenditures for federal programs are recognized on the accrual basis of 
accounting. Expenditures are determined using the cost accounting principles and procedures set forth in 
OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations. 

Note C- Relationship of Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards to Financial 
Statements 

Consistent with management's policy, federal awards are recorded in various revenue categories. As a 
result, the amount of total federal awards expended on the Schedule does not agree to total grant revenue 
on the Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets as presented in the Center's Report on Audited 
Financial Statements. 

15 
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Hea\thcnre Audil. Tax & Consulting Services 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 

7797 N. Fln>t Strcd #15, Fn.:sno, California <J3720 

Phon..:: 559.54!J.S4UO Email: infi..l@chwllp.org 

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Board of Directors 
\Vestern Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 
Downieville, California 

\Vc have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
Americn and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing .S'tandards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Western Sierra 
Medical Clinic, Inc. (the "Center"), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 3!, 2014 and 
201.3 and the related stntcments or operations und changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then 
ended, and the related notes to the tinancial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 27, 
2015 

lntci"nal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Wcstem Siena Medical Clinic, Inc.'s intemal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to detem1ine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of" expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Center's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness llfCcntcr's intemal control. 

A df!_/icien(\' /n internal conft"()/ exists when the design or op~mtion of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the nonnal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of ddlciencics, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
or the Center's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and conected on a timely basis. A 
signijica11! d~/lcien(y is a deficiency, or a com.bination or deticiencies, in intcmal control that is less 
severe than a mnterial weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first parab'Taph or this 
section and was not designed to identifY all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identitY any 
dcticiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 

ili 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc.'s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions oflaws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Fresno, California 
May 27,2015 

17 
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Healthcare Audit, Tax & Consulting Services 

7797 N. Firsl Strt:cl !115, Fresno, Cnlili.mtia 93720 
Phone: 559.549.5400 Email; inli.J@chwllp.org 

Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program; Report on 
Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133 

Board of Directors 
VVestem Sierra Medical Clinic, 1nc:. 
Downieville, Califomia 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Report on Compliance for Each i\tlajor Federal Program 

\Ve have audited Western Sie1Ta Medical Clinic, Inc. (the "Center") compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the ONJB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and matelial effect on each of the Health Center's major federal programs for the year ended 
December 31, 2014. The Center's major fCderal pro~:,rrmns are identified in the summary of auditor's 
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

i.l1anagement 's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs . 

. l-1nditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Center's major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements rcfeiTcd to above. \Vc conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Stales, Local 
G(J\'ermnents, and Non~Projit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we 
plan and pcrfom1 the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Center's compliance 
with those requirements and perfonning such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opmwn on compliance for each major 
tCderal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal detem1ination of the Center's compliance. 

IS 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended December 31, 2014. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintammg 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 
In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Center's internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major 
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on 
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-I33, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Center's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

19 
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133 

We have audited the financial statements of the Center as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, 
and have issued our report thereon dated May 27, 2015, which contained an unmodified opinion on those 
financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial 
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditure of federal 
awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Fresno California 
May 27, 2015 

20 
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Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

I. Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued 

Internal Control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness identified? 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 
considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 
Material weakness identified? 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 
considered to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance 
for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to 
be reported in accordance with Section 510(a) 
of Circular A-133? 

Identification of Major Program 

CFDANumber 

93.224 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
Types A and B programs 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

21 

Unqualified 

__ yes _x_no 

__ yes _x_ None Reported 

__ yes __ X_ no 

__ yes _x_no 

__ yes __x_ None Reported 

Unqualified 

__ yes X no 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, 
Public Health Services, Community Health Center 

$300,000.00 

_X __ yes no 
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Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

II. Current Year Audit Findings and Questioned Costs 

Financial Statement Findings 

None Reported 

Federal Award Findings And Questioned Costs 

None Reported 

III. Prior Year Audit Findings and Questioned Costs 

None Reported 

22 
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1. DATE ISSUEDo 12. PROGRAM CFDA: 93.224 US 0.;·;:>~>'l1~1 ~~ ~~liH· 0'; "~"·',. 5~;..c,~ 
i 03/17/2015 <®HRSA ' 

3. SUPERSEDES AWARD NOTICE dated: 
e>':~u: I!Lal nn•, <JddtloOns o· r~o!ucllon~ pt~VIOU>It'mros~d remJLn In crt .. cl unless spco,ltcnlly r~scm!l~d 

li<.l'ln R•<r,.~:•• Ch0 ~-tile~·. ~'n'"""''''' 
4a. AWARD NO.: ):b. GRANT NO:. I~- FORMER GRANT 
5 H8DCSOB234-00.()0 H80CSC8234 NO.: NOTICE OF AWARD 

6. PROJECT PERIOD: 
AUTHORIZATION (Legislation/Regulalton) 

Public Health Service Act. Title Ill. Section 330 
FROM: 07/01/2007 THROUGH: 04!30/2017 Public Health Service Act. Sectron 330. 42 U.S.C. 254b 

Affordable Care Act. Sect1on 10503 
Public Health Service Act. Section 330.42 U.S. C. 254. as 

amended 
Authority: Public Health Service Act. Section 330. 42 U.S.C. 254b. 

as amended 
7. BUDGET PERIOD: Public Health Service Act. Section 330. 42 U.S.C. 254b. as 

FROM: 0510112015 THROUGH: 04/30/2016 amendec 
Public Health Service Act. Section 330(e). 42 U.S.C. 254b 

Section 330 of tile Public Heallh Service Act. as amended (42 
U.S.C. 254b. as amended) and Section 10503 ofThe Patrent 

Protection and Affordable Care Act (P.L. 111-148) 

8. TITLE OF PROJECT (OR PROGRAM): Health Center Cluster 

9. GRANTEE NAME AND ADDRESS: 10. DIRECTOR: (PROGRAM DIRECTOR/PRINCIPAL I 
Western Sierra Medical Clinrc INVESTIGATOR) 
PO BOX 286 Scott McFarland 
Downieville, CA 95936-0286 Western S1erra Medical Clinic 
DUNS NUMBER: PO BOX 299 
092403675 Downieville, CA 95936 
BHCMIS # 0921760 

11.APPROVED BUDGET:(Exdudes Direct Assistance) 12. AWARD COMPUTATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE: 

[ ] Grant Funds Only a. Authorrzed Financial Assistance This Period $1,003,697.00 

[X] Total project costs including grant funds and all other financial participation b. Less Unobligated Balance from Prior Budget 
Periods 

a . Salarie5 and Wages : $5.704,16'1.00 
i. Add: tiona! Authority so.oo 

b Fnnge Benefits : 5907.285 00 
ii. Offset $0.00 

c. Total Personnel Costs: $6,611.446.00 
c. Unawarded Balance of Current Year's Funds 50.00 

d. Consultant Costs sooo 
d. Less Cumulative Prior Awards(s) This Budget so.oo 

e . Equ1pment 50.00 Period 

f. Supplies: $523.891 .DO e. AMOUI'-JT OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE THIS $1,003,697.00 

g. Travel 558,600.00 
ACTION 

t•. Construction/Alteration and Renovation : so.oo 13. RECOMMENDED FUTURE SUPPORT: (Subject to the 
availability of funds and satisfactory proqress of project) 

I. Other· 51,660.811.00 YEAR I TOTAL COSTS I 
J. Consortium/Contractual Costs . $85,201.00 10 I 51.074,723.00 I 
k. Trainee Related Expenses . $0.00 

14. APPROVED DIRECT ASSISTANCE 8UDGET:{In lieu ofcashJ 
I. Trainee Stipends: $0.00 a. Amount of Direct Assistance so.oo 
m Tra1nee Tuitron and Fees · $0.00 b. Less Unawarded Balance of Current Year's Funds $0.0C 

n. Trainee Travel $0.00 
c. Less Cumulative Pr!or Awards{s) This Budget Period so.oc 
d. AMOUNT OF DIRECT ASSISTANCE THIS ACTION $0.00 

0 TOTAL DIRECT COSTS • S8.939 .949.00 

p, INDIRECT COSTS {Rate: %of S&WrrADC): $0.00 

q . TOTAL APPROVED BUDGET: $8,939,949.00 

i. Less Non-Federal Share: $7,936,252.00 

ii. Federal Share· $1.003,697.00 

15. PROGRAM INCOME SUBJECT TO 45 CFR 75.307 SHALL BE USED IN ACCORD WITH ONE OF THE FOLLOWING ALTERNATIVESo 

A=Addition B=Deduction C=Cost Sharing or Matching D=Other [D] 

Estimated Program Income: $7,060.847.00 

16. THIS AWARD IS BASED ON AN APPLICATION SUBMITIEDTO, AND AS APPROVED BY HRSA, IS ON THE ABOVE TITLED PROJECT 
AND IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS INCORPORATED EITHER DIRECTLY DR BY REFERENCE IN THE FOLLOWINGo 
a. Tne Q<ant program legtS!atton cried attov~. b. The gran! program re9ulalion Ctled above. c. Th15 award notiCe tncludtngle'm~ ami condt!lon~. tl any. noted below under REMARKS. d. 45 C<=R Part 7S ~$ 

applrca~le. In lite event !her" are con~tcltng or oiMrw••e tnconsrolenl policoes appltcable lo Ill~ grant. the above order or precedence s~all prevaol Aeceptanc" otltre grant terms and condtltons tS 
;~cknowledged by the grantet> whett lunds ate drawn Ot ctnerwtse obtained from the. gr~nt payn>enl systeno 

REMARKS: (Other Terms and Conditions Attached [X ]Yes []No) 

Electronically signed by Helen Harpold, Grants Management Officer on: 03/17/2015 

17. OBJ. CLASS: 41.51 \18. CRS-EINo 1942279011A1\19. FUTURE RECOMMENDED FUNDING: SO.OO 

Pag.c: I 
II ~'""W ¥•"·'·"" tln,.~menl ''"'Y Hw <bccm<•m <r~Jycoot'"" "''"'eaa~s.<r~!ioy clt;11J~ng"·' /Of IM ""'~~n <o.><Jet "'e" Tn ~""""'" "'m••mto<m.>Owl. ~tully ''ilh o<tmpi•JOI JCCO:>.,.Dkl HrM; '"'''""'''' M.lll1/>lo n~/1 , Hi>$~ El~c<"""'" H,.od·""""' il ''"" ~'"'" ''""'" 
mform.Wc.n. p/0.1$~ OM/,"){"/ HRSA CDr"/,>el CO~IN~I 8/1·464-'17<. ~ Mr /Of! ~nr /iT ""'~""·'Y'· 
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FY-CAN 

I 
CFDA DOCUMENT NO.I AMT. FIN. ASST. 

15-3981150 I 93.224 14HSOCS08234 I $633.046.00 

15- 398160E I 93.527 14H80CS08234 I 5370,651.00 

AMT. DIR. ASST. 

so.oc 
50.00 

Da1~ l~suc·d. 3 17~UI." IJ5 -U 1'\1 
A\\ard ~umha :-II~I.I('SII.~~3-1-0().(1(1 

SUB 

I 

SUBACCOUNT PROGRAM 
CODE 

CODE 

CH I Hea!thCareCenters 

CH I HefllthCareCenters 
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Date bm·J_ 3-l7'."JOI ~ I J5:..J:'\ l'i\'1 

t\llllrd f\;llmlxr. ~ H.'\0\.'SO:<'"<-l-P'Lilil 

HRSA Electronic Handbooks (EHBs) Registration Requirements 
The Project Director of the grant (listed on this NoA) and the Authonzing Official of the grantee organtzatton are required to register (If not 
already reg·ts!ered) within HRSA's Electronic Handbooks (EHBs). Registratton with1n HRSA EHSs ts reqUired only once Tor each user for each 
organization they represent. To complete the registration quickly and efficiently we recommend that you note the 1 0-digit grant number from bo>-
4b of this NoA. A her you have completed the tnittal registration steps {i.e.,created an individual account and associated 11 with the correct 
grantee organization record), be sure to add this grant to your portfolio. ThiS registratton in HRSA EHBs rs requtred for submissron of 
noncompe:.ing continualton applications. In addlt'1on. you can also use HRSA EHBs to perform other activiftes such as updating addresses 
updating email addresses and submitting certain deltverables electrontcally. Visit 
https://grants3.hrsa.govi20101VVebEPSExternal/lnterface/common/accesscontrol/login.aspx to use the: system. Additional help ts available onltne 
and/or from the HRSA Call Center at 877-Go4-HRSA1877-464-4772. 

Terms and Conditions 
Failure to comply with the remarks, terms, conditions, or reporting requirements may result in a draw down restriction being placed 
on your Payment Management System account or den'lal of future funding. 

Grant Specific Term(s) 

1 . Effective December 2G. 20 14. all references to Or>.-18 C1rculars lor the adm1wSirat1Ve and audit requirP.mcnts and the cost prrnciples that govern F e~erat rnome:; i-lSSOCI~Ied with 

th1s award ar<: superseded lly the ltnitorm Guiclance 2 CFR 200 as cod,rretl by HHS a! 4[, CFR 75 

2. The funds for this award are sub-accounted in the Payment Management System (PMS) and will be in a P type (sub accounted) account 

This type of account allows recipients to specifically identify the indivrdual grant for which they are drawing funds and will assist HRSA tn 

monitoring the award. If your organization previously received a grant under this program, it was in a G type {cash pooled) account 

designated by a PMS Account Number endrng in G or G1. Now that th-rs grant !S sub accounted the PM$ Account Number will be changed 

to reflect either P or P1. For example. if the prior year grant was in payee account number 2AAG it will now be in 2AAP. Stmilarly, if the 

prior year grant was in payee account 2AAGI, the grant will be in payee account 2AAP1. The P sub account number and the sub account 

code (provtded an page 1 of this Notice of Award) are both needed when requesting grant funds 

Ynu mil'/ U5€' your cx:~ling PMS usecname and password lll cllf'r.k. your orparllzalrons P account accec:s. If you do r•ot have a~;ces~ r:oruplele a PM!" Acc~ss. Fonn (PI'-.1SirfF-: 

Form) !ou'ldilt Ill:' "''"/1"1 'J;-n, p • gc.:,c;r;on·~rc:~rprt:r·.t·[".;'w'· _lc-"''"·'E"' and send !llo the fa~ num111~r rndir:ated on the bol\orn ot tne torm. If you t1avc a;1y que,.trono.atwut 

access1ng PMS contact lhe PMS lrilison A-:;counlanl as rdenti!tN! at. rnu_ l-'1" .w rtr•:r: r ,:· _ _;m·.··, •"JI;~,:r:t;:n:~IT:CI~ ;;~n •. ' · '''·'''"· ,,,; .. q;'O~' v .. 

3 This Notrce of Award is issued based on HRSA's approval of the Non-Competing Continuation (NCC} Progress Report. All post-award 

requests. such as significant budget revisions or a change in scope, must be submitted as a Prior Approval action via the Electronic 

Handbooks (EHBs) and approved by HRSA prior to implementatron. Grantees under "Expanded Authority.'' as noted ·In the Remarks 

section of the Notice of Award, have different prior approval requirements. See "Prior-Approval Reqlriremenls' in the DHHS Grants Poltcy 

Statement 

http: f/www. hh s. g ov/asfr/ogapa/a bo u tog/h hsg ps 1 0 7. pdf 

4. Thrs act1on approves the rY 2015 Budget Progress Rerwrt or Service Area Con,petltron applicatiOn and awards full support tor the upr;oming ~udgoot permo at me granh!0's 

current target lundrng level 

5. FY 2015 outreach and enrollment (0/E) fund1ng h<Js been incluaed With ttle ongo1ng level ot funding to support conhnued OlE ass1stance achvtttes lunded inilratry tn FY 2D 13 

The grant~:e will be required to continue to report on 0/E progress ~1a a quarterly progress report (QPR) tQ Oe submitted through the HRSA Electronic Handbooi<. (EHB) HRSA 

will pro~1de ildditronal guidance regarding tulure fundrng and reporting requirements. 

6. Health centers ilre expected to recognize any same-sex marnage legally erHered into in a U.S. junsdictron thai recogntzes thetr marnage. includ·ng one uf the 50 stales, the 

Dtstrict of Columbia, or aU S. territory, or in a foreign country so long as that rnarrrage would also be recognized Oy a U.S. jurrsd1ct1on. Th1s applies regardless or whether or not 

the couple lives in a jucisdrction that recognizes same-sex marriage. However, this does not apply to registered domestic partnerships. civil uni:ms or s1m1lar formal 

relationshipS recognized under the law of the jurisdtdion of celebratton as something othec U1an a marriage. Accordingly. health centers must rr. y1ew and revise. a~ needed 

Internal health center po!1cies cmd procedures that include references to familial relatiOnshTps. such as "spouse." "husband." •wife." -mamage, .. or ot1er tern1s relater/ to the 

recognition or a mamage and/or famiJy.to reflect this recognitlon.ln addttion. HRSA will apply perttnent Health Centec Program rel)w•ernents. including those relatrng to shdmg 

fee scale arKI conflrct ol inleres~. consistent with this interpretatiOn. 
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Nf !TIC f, ()F.'\ 'I\ 1\,RD (Cuntun.:<.~ll<_lll She::~ I 

Program Specific Term(s) 

D;Jit ls.wed. 3 17 ~01:\ 1:35:-:131'~1 
Aw:ml 1\.unn;r. 5 Hl--.OCSI!~:2:>.:!-(19-(1{1 

1. If Federal funds have been used toward the costs of acquiring a building. including the costs of amort1zing the pnnc1pal of. or pay1ng interest 

on mortgages. you must notify the HRSA Grants Management Contact listed on th1s Not1ce of Award for assistance regardmg Federal 

Interest m the property within 60 days of the issue date of this award. 

2. All HRS . .c., grantees that receive discretionary fund1ng issued under Sect1on 330, Community Health Cluster Programs (HBOj. must ensure 

that all Federal funds used in support of this project adhere to the applicable cos' principles ·ldennflabte to your type ol organ1zat'1on (Le. 

OMS C1rcular A-122. Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations and OMB Ctrcular A-87. Cost Principles for State Local and Indian Trib<JI 

Governments). Special attention is called to Sect1ons 11 and 15 Within Attachment B of both OMB CirCLJiars A-122 and A~87 regarding the 

cost treatment of depreciation and equ1prnent and other ca~ital expenditures. 

Be adv1sed if Federal funds from this grant are used to pay for equipment which meets the Federal equipment defmilion as defmed m Title 

45 CFR Parts 74.2 and 92.3 as appropriate, and 1n the applicable cost principles. your organization wit! be reqwred to prov1de a list of the 

eqUipment item(s} that are to be purchased and the cost per item. ThJs information MUST be submitted to the Di1Jision of Grants 

Management Operations (DGMOJ within 30 days of receipt of this Notice of Award (NoA). If we do not receive th s mformation. our records 

and your subsequent annual award will reflect that only non-Federal resources were us':!d to support these costs. Should you have any 

concerns regarding the allowabil!ty of Federal costs please contact DGMO prior to expending funds on any questionable items 

3. Program income (Item 15(d}}- Non·grant funds (State. local, and other operational funding and fees, premiums, and third-party 

reimbursements which the project may reasonably be expected to receive. including any such funds in excess of those or1g1na1ly expected). 

shaH be used as permitted under the law and may be used for such other purposes as are not specifically prohibited under the law If such 

use further the objectives of the pmJect. 

4_ An independent annual financial audit of any books accounts, financial records. files. and other papers and property which relate to the 

d'tsposition or use of the funds received under this grant and such other funds received by or allocated to the project for which such grant 

was made is required by the authorizing legislation. The due date for all audits is within 30 days of receipt of the aud1t from the auditor or 

with1n 9 months of the end of the corporate fiscal year. whichever is earlier. OMB Circular A~ 133 requires that an A.-133 audit (total Federal 

funds expended ·In the corporate frscal year must be $500,000 or more) must be conducted for the ent1ty named !:-t block 9 of this Notice of 

Award and that a copy of the audit must be sent to the Federal Audit Cleannghouse designated by OMB (Federal Audit Clearinghouse 

Bureau of the Census. 1201 East 1Oth Street Jefferson, IN 4 7"132. PHONE: (31 0) 457-1551, (800)253-0696 {to!! tree). email. 

http :1 tha rveste r. census . gov/sac/faccon ta .h tm. 

In addition. section 330(q) of the Public Health Service Act also requires that entities funded under sectton 330 be audited. For th1s reason. 

a copy of the A-133 audit must also be submitted to the HRSA through the electronic handbooks. The A-133 aud;t report1ng package 

submitted to HRSA must mclude: 

Evidence that the audit included a review and opinion on the compliance standards for the Health Centers program (CFDA 93.224} 

contained in the applicable A-133 Compliance Supplement. If not required by OMB Circular A-133 (Total Expenditure of Federal funds is 

less tha:-1 $500.000). per section 330(g) of the Public Health Service Act, the audit must be completed in accordance with generaUy 

accepted accounting principles and must evaluate: 

A. The entity's implementation of cost accounting requirements, 

B. The processes used by the entity to meet the financial and program reporting requirements; and, 

C. The billing and collection procedures of the entity and the relation of the procedures to its fee schedule and schedule of d1scounts and to 

the availability of health insurance and public programs to pay for the health services it provides. 

D. The audit must mclude the Auditor's report (including the auditor opinion, financial statements, auditor's notes and required 

communication from the auditor. In addition. the audit must include any management letters issued by the audttor. The non-A 133 audit must 

be submitted to the HRSA through the electronic handbooks. 

5. Consrstenl with De1Jartmental gu1dance. HRSA grantees that purchase. are reimbursed or provrde reimbursement lo other en!ilu:ls for oUiflatrenl prescnptron drugs are exp!!Cied 

to secure the besl prrces available for such products and tu max1mJZe results for the granlee organization and its pallents_ Eligible heaUh care organizations/covered enli!ies that 

enroll1n the 3408 Program must comply With aii34DB Program requirement~ and will be subjeCt to audil regarding 3408 Program compliance. 3408 Program requirements 

indud111g eligibility. can Ue found at VIWI'I.IlG<Lt)irv/c.p<:. 

6. Uniform Data System (UDS) report is due in accordance with specific instructions from the Program Office 

7. Pursuant to ex·lsting law, and consGtent with Executive Order 13535 (75 FR 15599), health centers are prohibited from us1ng Federal funds 

to provide abortion services (except in cases of rape or incest. or when the life of the woman would be endangered). 

8. Grantees are reminded that separate Medicare enrollment applications must be submitted for each ''permanent unit" at which they provtde 

services.This includes units considered both "permanent sites" and "seasonal sites" under their HRSA scope of p~oject. (For the definition 

of permanent and seasonal sites under the scope of project, see Section Ill of Program lnformatJon Not1ce 2008·01. Defln1ng Scope of 
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Nl I riC'f Cli A\\ AIU) l(ontlm:.llinn She~e:l) Oall' Js~ucd: 3 I! ]1115 1:35:..:.:; l','vl 
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Project and Pol1cy for Request1ng Changes at :-:~:;:: ~~liJ~I::_. 'r;~ ~::1· .~J:JI'~-~·::,,~, f:~ · :J':·ir· ,,-,_;J:o.::;~~ .rw-) Therefore. for Med1care purposes. a 

single health center organtzalton may consist of two or more FQHCs each of which must be separately enrolled in Medicare and submit 

bil!s usrng its unique Medicare Billing Number. 

The Medicare enrollment applicatiOn can be located at •·,;;­

where the package should be mailed, please refer to tn~ , , 

appro;::riat:: Medtcare cont~actoris listed next to "Fiscal Intermediary'' 

· r·:, /! r·.:.·:: , ·,:;::_ .::.. ::• ;:: - -, _ ;d- To identify the address 

, :t '~·r--:c···.-: .: ~. :,_,;J::_rl·:>l .. ~:· .-:-.L?:' . The 

Successful enrollment in Medicare as an FQHC does not automatically qualify a health center for payment as an FOHC under iis State 

Medicaid program_ Health centers should contact their State Medicaid office directly to determine the process and timeline for becoming 

eligible for payment as an FQHC under Medicaid. 

Standard Term(s) 

1. Recipients must comply with all terms and condittons outlined in their grant award including grant policy terms and conditions outlmed m 

applicable Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) Grants Policy Statements, and requirements imposed by program statutes 

and regulations and HHS grant administration regulations, as applicable; as well as any requirements or limitations in any applicable 

appropriations acts. 

2 . .t\11 discretionary awards issued by HRSA on or after October 1, 2006, are subject to the HHS Grants Pol1cy Statement (HHS GPS) unless 

otherwise noted 1n the Notice of Award (NoA). Parts I through Ill of the HHS GPS are currently available al 

!lttp:/Jwww.hhs.gov/asfr/ogapa/aboutog/hhsgps107.pdf. Please note that the Terms and Conditions explicitly noted in the award and the 

HHS GPS are in effect. 

3. HRSA requrres [Jrantee5 rouse tne tollowrng acknowledgement amJ disclaimer on all products prulluced by HRSA QlanlluncJs 

TillS prcwc~ Js/WJS supporter;! bJ- lhe .Ye<i.'lh Resources and Serv;ces AdmJ~IS/raliofl (H.R.SN a' the US Oe;Jartmem: or He,lllh ar:ri Human S8rVtces IH,'--i$1rmde' grJn: numoet 

an~! /Hie for grant amoUI!I/SpOlctfy gran• n11mber. /1/le. total award amount aN! percenld£1'2 fman~ed l':ltf< 110fl9:1Vemmenlal sourcesr Hns mf8rrrrJI;o/J or corr:en~ and concl,tsron~ 

<Ue /nose o• tile <JUtliQr and should not O<J conslruea ilS the offtCia/ pos1lrrlrl rJI poltcy of. nor snoul(! any endarsem<Jnrs De •nfr:wed by .YRS-~ HI-'S 0' Ill':' U S Go•;emment 

Granlm.ls iJrl• required to usE, thrs language wben issuing statements. pres:, releases, requests for propos<JIS. b1d solocrlatrons and other HRSA. s~rppOit'O<d pubhcnloons nnU 

lonm1s cttJScflbrng PfOJBC\5 oo prawam$ funded n• whole or rn par\ will! HRSA funding Example~ of HRSA-supported publrcahons inCltitic. but are m1t lnlll\":f1 ro manuals 

toolk•t~. resourc~ guide.:;, C<J:>e studies nnd rssues brrefs 

4. Recipients and sub-recipients of Federal funds are subject to the strictures of the Medicare and Medtcaid ant1-kickback statute (42 U.S.C. 

1320a- 7b{b) and should be cognizant of the risk of criminal and administrative liability under this statute. specifica!ly under 42 U.S.C. 1320 

7b(b) Illegal remunerations which states, in part, that whoever knowingly and wlllfully: (A) Solicits or receives (or offers or pays) any 

remuneration (includ1ng kickback, bribe, or rebate) directly or indirectly, overtly or covertly, in cash or in kind, in re:urn for referring (or to 

induce such person to refer) an individual to a person for the furnishing or arrangtng for the furnishing of any item or service, OR (B) In return 

for purchasing. leasing. ordering, or recommending purchasing, leasing, or ordering. or to purchase, lease, or order. any goods. facility, 

services, or item .... For which payment may be made in whole or in part under subchapter XIII of this chapter or a State health care program. 

shall be guilty of a felony and upon conviction thereof. shall be fined not more than $25,000 or imprisoned for not more than five years, or 

both 

5. Items that require prior approval from the awardrng office as mdicated in 45 CFR Part 75 [Note: 75 (d) HRSA has not warved cost-related 

or administrative prior approvals for recipients unless specifically stated on this Notice of Award] or 45 CFR Part 75 must be submitted in 

writing t::l the Grants Management Officer (GMO). Only responses to prior approval requests signed by the GMO are considered valid 

Grantees who take actron on the basis of responses from other officials do so at their own risk. Such responses will not be considered 

b·lnding by or upon the HRSA 

In addition to the prior approval requirements identified in Part 75, HRSA requires grantees to seek prior approval for significant 

rebudgeting of project costs. Significant rebudgeting occurs when, under a grant where the Federal share exceeds $100,000, cumulative 

transfers among direct cost budget categories for the current budget period exceed 25 percent of the total approved budget (mclusive of 

direct and indirect costs and Federal funds and required mat:::hing or cost sharing) for that budget period or $250 000, whichever is less. 

For example, under a grant in which the Federal share for a budget per'1od is $200,000, if the total approved budget is $300,000, cumulative 

changes within that budget period exceeding $75,000 would require prior approval). For recipients subject to 45 CFR Part 75 this 

requirement is in lieu of that in 45 CFR 75 which permits an agency to require prior approval for specified cumulative transfers within a 

grantee's approved budget. [Note, even if a grantee's proposed rebudgeting of costs falls below the significant rebudgeting threshold 

identified above, grantees are still required to request prior approval. if some or all of the rebudgeting reflects either a change in scope. a 
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proposed purchase of a unit of equ1pment exceeding $25,000 (if not included 1n the approved application) or other pnor approval action 

Identified in Part 75 unless HRSA has specifically exempted the grantee from the requirement(s).] 

6. Payments under th1s award wit! be made available through the DHHS Payment Management System (PMS). PMS IS admmistereo by th~ 

Div1S10n of Payment Managemert, Financial Management Services Program Support Center, which will forvvard instructions for obtaming 

payments. Inquiries regarding payments should be directed to: ONE-DHHS Help Desk for PrvlS Support at 1-877-614-5533 or 

PMSSupport@psc.hhs.gov. For addiiionaf information please visit th~ Divtsion of Payment Managemeni Website at www.DPM.PSC.GOV 

7. The DHHS Inspector General maintains a toll-free hotl1ne for receiving 1nformat1on concerning fraud. waste. or abuse under grants and 

cooperat1ve agreements. Such reports are kept confidential and callers may decline to give their names if they choose to remain 

anonymous. Contact Office of Inspector General. Department of Health and Human Serv1ces, Attent1on: HOTLINE, 330 Independence 

Avenue Southwest Cohen Building. Room 5140. Washington. D_ C 20201 EmaH Htips@os.dhhs.gov or Telephone. 1-800-447-8477 (1-

800-HHS-TIPS). 

e. Submit audits. if requ1red, 1n acccrdance wl!h 45 CFR Part 75. to. Federal Aud1l Clearinghouse Bureau of the Census 1201 East 10th 

Street Jefferson. IN 47132 PHONE: 131 0) 457-1551 (31 0) 457-1551. (800)253-0696(800)253-0696 toll tree 

http:f/harvester.census.gov/sac/facconta.htm 

9. EO 13 ~ 66, August 11, 2000. requrres recipients receiving Fed era! financial assrstance to take steps to enS Lire that people with limited 

E nghsh proficiency can mean·lngfully access health and social services. A program of ~anguage assistance should provide for effective 

communicatiOn between the servtce provider and the person with limited English proficiency to facilite:~le participation tn. and mee:~ningful 

access to. services. The obligaltons of recipients are explamed on the OCR website at http://www.hhs.gov/ocr!lep/revlsedfep.html. 

10. This award is subject to the requirements of Section 106 (g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2DOO,as amended (22 U.S.C. 

71 04). For the full text of the award term. go to http://www.hrsa.gov/grants/trafficking.htm. If you are unable to access thiS lmk please 

contact the Grants Management Spec1al1st identified in this Nottce of Award to obtain a copy of the Term. 

11 . 111~ Consolidated Approp•ialion:; and Further (.ont1nwng Appropriahons 2015 (P.L. 113-235) €1racted December 16. 2014. limils lhe sabry amounl lila I may be awa1ded and 

cll<Hgec 10 HRSA grants and r.oopero!lve agreements. HRSA funds may no! he ust:(l to pay the salary o1 an rndrvidual at a rale 111 exec% or 5183.300 -The Execulive L evP.I II r.l 

Ill~ Fed~ral Execulrve Pay Scale salary 10 currenlly set al S 183.300. effecli'N January l l. 2015 This amounl re!lects an rndrVIdual"s base ~11!ary exclusrv(, or IIIIIYt" <.Uld any 

1ncom-:, tl1at an mdrv1dual may be permillEld m eam outsaie olllle dUlles lc lh~ appl1;:an\ organiZE! liOn. ThJ5 salary hnlitallon also ;rpphes to sutlawardstsuhr:unlracls !01 

subsl<lnllve work under a I·IRSA grant or cooperalr'le agreement The salary limit;rllon does nol apply In p;1ymenl~ made to consull1lniS uncer \IllS award alllroul)h as w1lh all 

costs those pnyrnt:orHs rnus! mecllne lest ol reasonatJieness and be consi.~ten: wrttl rnst:tuflonal polrcy. '(cur ;Jward amount Will nolneccs~arily be recalculated Ia adJliSt for 

nectlssary reducllons 1n satarios mcluded Ill your proposal. However. none of tile funds m lh1~ award shall he uSell to pay the sai<Jry or an mjlvlrt:Jal at a rale In excess of ll1e 

salary linutalion. !II is tmporlant to note 111at an indl'lrdual's base salary. per se. rs NOT conslr<uned by lh(· )eg1slali'le provrsion fnr a lrm•taliOn of sal~ry Tlw. ratel1mrlal•on 

Simply limits the arnounl that may lle awarded and cllarged to HRSA wanls and cooperative agreements.) 

12. To serw persons most in need and t:J comply w1th Federal law. services must be widely accessible Sr:;rv1ces must not d1scrimlllCJte on the basis or age, 

disability. sex, race, color, national origin or religion The HHS Office for Civil Rights provides guidance to grant and coopera:ive agreement recipHonts on 

complymg With civil righ~s laws that prohibit diSCnmina\ion on these b«ses. Please see 11tr p ./I"'·"·'~"·' r<11 :, r.ov;o:r 1~ 1vit nplll "Jillnd'::'rst .1 rlOI!rf./lml·:>.'- i1tn1 :. 

HHS also prov1dt-s specihc guidance for rec1pients on meetrng weir legal obligation umler Title VI of tile Crvil R1ghts Act ot 1%4, wt!'1ch prohibits 

d1scriminat1on on the basts of race, color or natmnal origin rn prograrn5 and activ1t1es that recePIC Federal financial assistance {P. L. 88·352, ao amended 

and 45 CFR Part 75). lr, some instames a rec1pient's failure to provide l<~nguage asststance servi-ees may have the effect of discriminating aga1nst persons 

on the basis of their national origin. Please see Imp:/ /WW>\ .I •lls.r ov/o·:r /r.1vling11 t~/ ro:st;uru;1/ l~iWS/ reVI';edlef)JJtml to learn more about the Title VI 

requiH:'ment for grant and cooperati'Je agreement recipients to tal\e reasonable steps to oro vide meafllngful access to the1r programs and activities by 

persons with limited Engl1.~h proficiency 

13. Important Notice: The Central Contractor registry (CCR) has been replaced. The General Services Administrat1cn has moved the CCR to 

the System for Award Management (SAM) on July 30, 2012. To learn more about SAM please visit https://'NWW.sam.gov. 

It is incumbent that you, as the recipient, maintain the accuracy/currency of your information in the SAM at all t1mes during which your entity 

has an active award or an application or plan under consideration by HRSA, unless your entity is exempt from this requirement under 2 

CFR 25.110. Additionally, this term requires your entity to review and update the information at least annually after the initial registration. 

and more frequently if required by changes in your information. This requirement flows down to subrecipients. Note: SAM information must 

be updated at least every 12 morlhs to remain active (for both grantees and sub-recipients). Grants.gov will reject submissions from 

applicants with expired registrations, It is advisable that you do not wait until the last minute to register in SAM or update your information. 

According to the SAM Quick Gutde for Grantees (https:/lwww.sam.gov/samltranscript/SAM_Quick_Guide_Grants_Reg!strations-v1.6.pdfJ. 

an entity's registration will become active after 3-5 days. Therefore, check for active registration well before the appl1catton deadline 
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Reporting Requirement(s) 

Dah: ls~unl: ;· 17 .:"!ll :' I J5:·D ['\.! 
1\\l,,rd Numher: 5 Hsocso.c;,:o_I-!-(I•J-011 

Due Date: Annually (Calendar Year) Beginning: 01/01/2015 Ending: 12/31/2015, due 75 days after end of reporting period. 

1 ne Un1lorn1 Datil Syslem IUDS liS a corE se\ of m!Drmahon t~ppropnate tor rev•ew•ng the operahon and pertor.nance ot heall•• cenlt!rc, Tnt· UDS lracl;s a ~o·anety or 111lormal10r 

1ncludmg p;~he1r den•ographoc!'- serv1ces prov:ded. slafiing. clinical mdg;a'.Drs utilizaiwn rates costs. anti I\'Vf:'llllf'5_ II ·~ f'i'VieW<JC to ensure cornpl1<1nce w1tt1 leg•slat1ve and 

regulalllrv tEQIIiternents lrTiprov~ health cente1 pen·ormanct <Hld operali0!15. and rr;por1 overall progra!ll <l~complishments. The data heir Je •cl"nllll' tr~nds over l1111e. enablln~ 

Tor pr11nary care. U D:': d<Jla atsc. 111forrH fie<~lllo Centt;l programs. parmers ilTHi r.ornmumties about lilt pal•ent~ served by Health CenTers Health ceniers mu~;l rc;nort annuall-,. '" 

tne for~lflU<Jrwr of l/1() year 111e UO~-; subm1~s.on d'ladl1.1e 1s February Hi every year_ Plea~e can3ul! UTe Prvgram (JffiCB !01 adcht10nalill5lrucL•ons R~porl•rw te~hn1cal 

i.lss•.slance can be found a•. http //bph;:._hr~a_gov/he<JII!Jcenterdat<J;tatiStiCSireporlingJintle; . .lltml. 

2 Due Date: Annually (Budget Period) Beginning: Budget Start Date Ending: Budget End Date, due Quarter End Date after 90 

days of reporting period. 

Tht' ~tr;mtee must subm•t an annual Federal f manc1al Report {FFRJ. The repor1 should renect cumulall\IC reporting witiTW lh1i" prorect renod and must he stJIJmllled usong the 

Electronic Handbook~ (EHBs). The FFR d:.re dates have been aligned wiUl 111e Payment Management SystBm quarterly report due dates and will lle due 90 120, or 150 days 

i:lfter the tmdgel penod end dale. Please refer to the chart below for the spec1fiC due date for yolll FFR 

Budget Period enrts Jiugusl ~ Octo:mr: FFR due January 30 

Bunger Period ends November- January FFR d'"" 1\pnl 30 

Budget Perwd ends February- Apnl FFR duE July 30 

Elull\)et Perrod emls May- July: FFR tiue October 30 

Failure to comply with these reporting requirements will result in deferral or additional restrictions of future funding decisions. 

Contacts 

NoA Email Address(es): 
Name Role 
Scott Mcfarland Program Director 
Note: NoA emailed to these address(es) 

Program Contact: 
For assistance on programmatic issues. please contact Tanya Cepero-Chapman at 
MaiiStop Code_ 16-105 
BPHC/HRSA/Southwest Division/North Pacific Branch 
5600 Ftshers Ln 
Rockville. MD. 20852-1750 
Email TCepero-Chapman@hrsa.gov 
Phone: (301} 443-7439 
Fax (301) 594-4983 

Division of Grants Management Operations: 
For assistance on grant administration issues, please contact Christie Walker at 
MaiiStop Code: 10SWH03 
OFAM/DGMOIHCB 
5500 Fishers Ln 
Rockville, MD. 20852-1750 
Email: cwalker@hrsa.gov 
Phone (301) 443-7742 
Fax (301 1 443-9810 

Email 

scott@wsmcmed .org 
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TAB E: Required Statements 

By sib'Tiature on the cover letter of this submittal and by including this proposaL the undersigned, 
as a duly authorized officer of and on behalf of Western Sierra Medical Clinic, Inc. ("WSMC"), 
attests and ab>rees to the following: 

A. Scope of Work and Addenda 

WSMC will perfom1 the services and adhere to the requirements described in RFP No. I 0541. 
including the following addenda issued by the County: Addendum No. 1 dated December I I. 
2015. Addendum No.2 dated December 17, 2015, Addendum No. 3 dated December 18, 2015, 
and Addendum No.4 dated January 13, 2016. 

B. Public Records Act 

WSMC acknowledges that subsequent to award of RFP I 0541, all of part of this submittal may 
be released to any person or firm who may request it as prescribed by the State of California 
Public Records Act (Govt. Code 6250 et seq.), and that: 

The portions of this submittal identified below arc proprietary and/or confidential for the reasons 
stated: 

_____ None. ______________________________________________________ ___ 

WSMC acknowledges that the above statements may be subject to legal review and challenge. 

C. Non-Substitution of Designated Staff 

WSMC assures that the designated project team, including sub-consultants (if any), is used for 
this project and that departure or reassib'Timent of, or substitution for, any member of the 
desi!,'Tiated project team or sub-consultant(s) shall not be made without the prior written approval 
of the County. 

D. Non-Conflict oflnterest 

WSMC warrants that no official or employee of the County has an interest, has been employed 
or retained to solicit or aid in the procuring of the resulting contract, nor that any such person 
will be employed in the perfonnance of such contract without immediate divulgence of such fact 
to the County. 

E. Non-Collusion 

WSMC warrants that this proposal is made without any previous understanding, agreement or 
connection with any person, finn or corporation submitting a separate proposal for the same 
project and is in all respects fair, without outside control, collusion, fraud, or otherwise illegal 
action. 

1 
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F. Insurance Requirements 

WSMC agrees to the indemnification and insurance requirements provided in the draft contract 
attached to the original RFP No. J 0541 and that the cost of complying with the insurance 
requirements is included in the submitted pricing. The undersigned aro•rees to provide complete 
and valid insurance certificates within ten (I 0) days of the County"s written request and 
acknowledges that failure to provide the documents within the time stated may result in rejection 
of this proposal. 

G. Debarment and Suspension Cetiification (Title 49. Code of Federal Regulations. Pati 0 9) 

The undersigned, under penalty of perjury, cetiifies that he or any other person associated with 
the undersiro'tled and WSMC in the capacity as director or officer: 

• Is not cunently under suspension, debam1ent. voluntary exclusion, or detennination of 
ineligibility by any Federal agency; 

• Has not been suspended, debaned, voluntmily excluded or detennined ineligible by any 
Federal agency within the past 3 years; 

• Does not have a proposed disbarment pending: and 

• l-Ias not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against him, her or it 
by a court of competent jurisdiction in any manner involving fraud or official misconduct 
within the past 3 years. 

WESTERN SIERRA MEDICAL CLINIC. INC. 

Scott McFarland, CEO 

2 
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TAB R: Exceptions 

WSMC proposes changes to the form ofa.~o'Teement attached to the RFP as Attachment B: 

Section I: Changes may be required to the extent WSMC"s proposal that Placer County Health 
and Human Services operate the Auburn and Kings Beach clinics until a transition point is 
accepted. Moreover, none ofthe exhibits to the at,'Teement are attached and will have to be 
negotiated. 

Section B: Changes may be required to the extent WSMC's proposal is accepted with respect to 
Placer County Health and Human Services operating the Aubum and Kings Beach clinics until a 
transition point at which time WSMC takes responsibility fm care of the transitioned patients. 
Moreover, none of the exhibits to the a.~o~·eement are attached and will have to be negotiated. 

Section 3: Changes may be required to the extent WSMC's proposal is accepted with respect to 
Placer County Health and Human Services operating the Auburn and Kings Beach clinics until a 
transition point at which time WSMC takes responsibility for care of the transitioned patients. 
Moreover. none of the exhibits to the agreement are attached and will have to be negotiated. 

Section 4: None ofthe exhibits to the a.~o'Teement are attached and will have to be negotiated. 

Sectlon 5: Changes may be required to the extent WSMC's proposal is accepted with respect to 
Placer County Health and Human Services operating the Aubum and Kings Beach clinics until a 
transition point at which time WSMC takes responsibility for care of the transitioned patients. 
Moreover. none of the exhibits to the a)o'Teement are attached and will have to be negotiated. 

Section 6: WSMC proposes changes to reflect that once the agreement is awarded to WSMC, 
WSMC will begin to make tenant improvements and interview and hire providers, at which point 
the a.~o'Teement should become terminable only in the event of a breach by WSMC upon written 
notice of the breach with a minimum of fifteen days to cure. Additionally, all records. or at a 
minimum copies of records, for patients transitioncd to WSMC should become the property of 
WSMC for purposes of patient care and legal compliance. All writings and other proprietary 
information belonging to WSMC as of the date of the contract (and not relating to the RFP. 
agreement and transition of patients) must remain the property ofWSMC and shall not be 
transfened to Placer County without WSMC's consent. 

Section 15(A) (3): In the last line, insert "and/or Contractor" in the last line after, "which 
County''. 

Section 19: All records, or at a minimum copies of records, relative to patients transitioned to 
WSM C should become the property ofWSMC for purposes of patient care and legal 
compliance. Moreover, all w1itings and other proprietary information belonging to WSMC as of 
the date of the contract (and not relating to the RFP, agreement and transition of patients) must 
remain the property ofWSMC and shall not be transfeiTed to Placer County without WSMC's 
consent. 

1 
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